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From the Chief Commissioner
In accordance with the Financial Management
Act 1994, I am pleased to present the Victoria Police Annual Report for the reporting period ending
30 June 2012.
The 2011–12 Victoria Police Annual Report provides a record of performance and achievements against a range of statutory requirements, as well as the Victoria Police strategic plan – The Way Ahead 2008–13, and the Victoria Police Business Plan 2011–12. It also provides an outline of the various programs, initiatives and achievements within Victoria Police in 2011–12.
In 2011–12, we maintained our focus on delivering a safer Victoria for all Victorians. A highlight for Victoria Police was the continued deployment of an additional 1,700 frontline police, and 940 Protective Services Officers (PSOs) on our train network by June 2014.
In 2011–12, Victoria Police deployed an additional 644 frontline police across Victoria and 88 PSOs to Flinders Street, Southern Cross, Footscray,
Dandenong and Melbourne Central railway stations.
During 2011–12, 270 Victorians were killed on our roads, and a further 18,739 Victorians were injured. This represents a small decrease in fatalities
(8.2 per cent) compared to the 2010–11 period, with total injuries increasing by 1.7 per cent. Whilst the decrease in fatalities is a positive result, there are still too many people being killed or injured on our roads. Victoria Police will continue to work with our road safety partners in ensuring we all play a part in reducing the road toll.
Family violence continues to be responsible for a significant portion of all crime across Victoria.
Responding effectively to violence against women and children requires all parts of the system to work together. Victoria Police will continue to collaborate with our key partners to provide effective responses to family violence, sexual assault and child abuse.



In the 2011–12 period, the total crime rate, measured as a rate per 100,000 population, increased by 6.8 per cent from the 2010 –11 rate. While there has been some level of increase across a range of offence types,
the greater part of this increase can be attributed to the deployment of extra frontline police resulting in more offences being reported, an increased focus on family violence reporting, and increases in reported and detected drug offences.
We have continued to focus on community engagement and improving service delivery. Independent results tell us that 85.1 per cent of Victorians surveyed report that they have confidence in Victoria Police, and that 85.3 per cent of all Victorians who had direct contact with Victoria Police during 2011–12 were satisfied with the service they received. We will continue to focus on our core mission of delivering a safe, secure and orderly society for all Victorians.
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Ken Lay APM
Chief Commissioner
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ABOUT VICTORIA POLICE
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Victoria Police provides policing services to the Victorian community 24 hours a day, seven days a week, working to keep over 5.71 million Victorians safe.
To achieve this, Chief Commissioner of Police (CCP) Ken Lay APM leads a total staff of over 16,100 people2 including approx. 12,770 sworn police members, 2,900 public servants, 280 PSOs, forensic scientists and other specialists.
These people work from more than 500 locations across the state, ensuring that a safe and secure society underpins the economic, cultural and social wellbeing of Victoria.
In 2011–12, Victoria Police had a budget of approximately $2.04 billion to deliver policing services to the community, including:
· Responding to calls for assistance in matters of personal and public safety, emergencies and serious incidents; 
· Preventing crime and providing services to ensure community safety through a range of proactive crime prevention programs; 
· Detecting and investigating offences and bringing to justice those responsible for committing them; 
· Supporting the judicial process to achieve efficient and effective court case management, providing safe custody for alleged offenders, supporting victims and ensuring fair and equitable treatment of victims and offenders; and 
· Promoting safer road user behaviour and enforcing road safety laws. 



Effective service delivery is provided through 54 Police Service Areas (PSAs), split across 21
divisions within four regions – North West Metro, Southern Metro, Eastern and Western. These regions correspond with those of other Victorian government departments, enhancing cross-department service delivery, particularly in
the area of emergency management.3
Victoria Police operates under the Victorian
Police Regulation Act 1958.
The Chief Commissioner reports directly to the Minister for Police and Emergency Services, the Hon. Peter Ryan, MLA.
Strategic Priorities
The Victoria Police strategic plan, The Way Ahead 2008 –13, nominated three key priorities:
A SAFER VICTORIA
Crime, public safety and road safety are our focus for delivering a safer Victoria.
CONNECTING THE COMMUNITY
Police connect people within and across communities. Victoria Police is often the first point of contact for people in need of help, and connects them with others who can provide ongoing assistance.
VALUING OUR PEOPLE
Victoria Police values its people and the work they do in providing policing services to the community. The organisation wants its people to be safe, skilled, capable and confident in their roles, professional at leading and influencing change in the community and working effectively within an adaptive and responsive organisation.
1 Based on 2011 Australian Census and Department of Planning and Community Development population projections. 2 See Appendix B for Workforce Statistics showing the composition of Victoria Police staffing.
3  See map over the page for regional structure and police station locations
[image: image14.jpg]
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01  About Victoria Police
Our Values
The Victoria Police organisational values underpin the culture and behaviour of all staff within our organisation and help us to become a more effective and capable policing service. Our values are:
· Flexibility – remain open-minded at all times, be adaptive to change, while welcoming difference and practicing tolerance. 
· Leadership – be approachable, consistent and committed to, and inspire these organisational values. 
· Integrity – act with honesty, respecting the right of fair process for all, maintain confidentiality and respect for those we deal with, demonstrate moral strength and courage and behave with honour and impartiality. 
· Professionalism – accept responsibility, be accountable to our customers and ourselves. We must communicate honestly, openly and consistently and continually strive for excellence. 
· Respect – embrace the diversity that exists within our community, valuing opinions while appreciating and acknowledging the efforts of others. 
· Support – recognise and reward the service of our colleagues, and promote professional and career development. At all times, we must care for the wellbeing of our colleagues. 
VICTORIA POLICE MOTTO
Uphold the Right
‘I uphold the right in my role within Victoria Police by acting impartially, with integrity and by providing service excellence to everyone.’
OUR MISSION
To provide a safe, secure and orderly society by serving the community and the law.



Victoria Police Annual Report 2011–12
OUR OBJECTIVES
· Preserve the peace 
· Protect life and property 
· Detect and apprehend offenders 
· Prevent offences 
· Help those in need of assistance. 
Victoria Police Priorities
and Standards 2011–12
PRIORITIES
· Responding to public safety, especially on public transport 
· Reducing and preventing crimes against the person 
· Fighting serious crime and organised crime 
· Policing our roads 
· Responding to incidents and emergencies 
· Reducing and preventing property crime. 
STANDARDS
· Be Available 
· Act Professionally 
· Respond with Respect 
· Keep People Informed. 
—
The Victoria Police organisational values underpin the culture and behaviour of all staff within our organisation and help us to become a more effective and capable policing service.
[image: image16.jpg]7]





06
Revisiting The Way Ahead 2008–13 and the Victoria Police Blueprint 2012–15
As of 1 July 2012, the Victoria Police Blueprint
2012–15 will replace The Way Ahead 2008–13.4 A number of factors influenced the decision to
cut short The Way Ahead but in reality, the Blueprint is a reflection of, and proactive reaction to our current environmental context. Victoria Police needed to quickly refocus and articulate a clear vision for
the future that was underpinned by tangible but ambitious actions.
Although Victoria Police has had different approaches and emphases over time, our mission has remained constant – to ensure a safe, secure and orderly society by serving the community and the law. The objectives have also been consistent: preserving the peace; protecting life and property; preventing offences; detecting and apprehending offenders and helping those in need of assistance. In formulating the Blueprint, the focus has been not so much what the organisation stands for, but what changes are needed to service delivery and support to the frontline to ensure the achievement of its mission and objectives in the current and future environment.
There have been changes in the policing environment which need to be reflected in the community policing model, which is based around providing a localised policing service, tailored or adapted to the needs of a local community – working in collaboration with the local community in line with its priorities and expectations. For Victoria Police, there have been some fundamental changes to our original concept of community policing. The notion of community is now more fluid and fragmented than ever before and can include communities that are defined by a range of factors such as culture, technology and special interests, not just geographic location.



There have also been a series of external reviews, by the Ombudsman, the Office of Police Integrity, the Victorian Auditor General’s Office and also the Rush Inquiry into the governance of Victoria Police. All of these reviews made recommendations which needed to be considered and implemented.
Additionally, Victoria Police has a new executive management team which brings some new perspectives and approaches to the way
in which we deliver on our mission.
The Blueprint has drawn on a number of sources for its context, priorities and actions, including:
· Government priorities and commitments (such as the deployment of 1,700 additional frontline police, and 940 PSOs who will ensure the safety of rail commuters); 
· An organisation-wide environmental scanning process; and 
· The roll out of an Integrated Planning and Risk Management (IPRM) Model. For the first time, organisational priorities and actions have been set ‘bottom-up’, on five common areas of focus and through Executive review of all the proposed priorities and actions. 
The Blueprint is a significant departure from previous plans in that it is not only our strategic plan, but it also incorporates key findings from our environmental scanning (Context), our annual business plan (Actions 2012–13) and outlines what our future Service Delivery Model will look like (Outcomes 2012–15). The Blueprint will also improve the alignment of the single year business plan with the three-year strategic plan Those single-year Actions will be reported in the 2012–13 annual report.
4  See Chapter 3 of this annual report for a summary of the results achieved over the four year life of The Way Ahead.
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Victoria Police Regions (Metro)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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Victoria Police’s corporate governance arrangements are modelled on best practice principles to ensure an effective and transparent approach to accountability, decision making and performance management.
Chief Commissioner
As at 30 June 2012, Victoria Police was led by the Chief Commissioner of Police (CCP), Ken Lay APM. CCP Lay was officially appointed to the role of Chief Commissioner on 14 November 2011, following a period in which he was Acting Chief Commissioner from 30 June 2011. The Chief Commissioner
is responsible to the Minister for Police and Emergency Services, the Hon. Peter Ryan MLA for the overall governance, performance and direction of Victoria Police.
Victoria Police Executive
The role of the Victoria Police Executive (VPE)
is to support the CCP in the day to day management of the organisation and acts as its key decision-making body on statutory and organisational reform. At 30 June 2012, VPE membership comprised of:
CCP
Deputy Commissioner (DC) Regional and
Road Policing
DC Strategy and Organisational Development
DC Crime and Operations Support
Executive Director Infrastructure and IT
Executive Director Business Services
The Victoria Police Executive meets on a weekly basis.
Victoria Police Leadership Group
The Victoria Police Leadership Group (VPLG) is a high-level consultative and information sharing body established for the purpose of providing advice to the VPE on key issues, and ensuring the strategic direction of Victoria Police is responsive to community needs and expectations.
The VPLG also provides an opportunity for executive managers to be briefed on issues and emerging trends affecting the organisation. The members
of the VPLG include:
CCP (Chair)
DCs
Executive Directors
Assistant Commissioners
All Directors
All Commanders
EO3 level personnel
Chief of Staff
The VPLG meets at least six times each year.



Management Committees
In 2011–12, Victoria Police’s Accountable Officers were supported by the following management committees.
· Information Management and Information Security Committee 
· Operations Committee 
· People Committee. 
Each management committee is chaired by a member of the VPE who is the Accountable Officer. Each committee has its own charter and terms
of reference. The committees meet as required.
INFORMATION MANAGEMENT AND INFORMATION SECURITY COMMITTEE (IMISC)
IMISC provides organisational leadership and governance and sets the strategic direction for information management and information security in Victoria Police. Membership is comprised of representatives from major areas
of the organisation involved in, and/or impacted by, effective information management and security. IMISC is chaired by the DC, Crime
and Operations Support.
OPERATIONS COMMITTEE
The Operations Committee is the primary source of advice to the VPE on operational programs and monitors operational performance against
The Way Ahead and arrive alive road safety strategy in order to develop actions/strategies to execute key operational activities across the State. Responsibilities of the committee include monitoring service delivery across the state, identifying and proposing specific accountability for operational activities and informing on policy or legislative reform relevant to operations.
The Operations Committee is chaired by the DC Regional and Road Policing.
PEOPLE COMMITTEE
The People Committee was established to provide a central, consultative group to consider and resolve strategic organisational people issues and was fully empowered to provide advice to the VPE via the Executive Director, People (the Chair).
The committee comprised staff from Victoria Police able to represent the organisation when discussing, developing and implementing actions that relate to organisational wide people issues, thereby ensuring communication and consultation
across the organisation.
Note: The People Committee was wound up and ceased to operate as of 30 April 2012.
[image: image41.jpg]
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Corporate Governance 
Executive Management Changes in 2011–12 
· Mr Tony Bates was appointed Executive Director Business Services on 6 February 2012 
· Ms Jenny Peachey was appointed Executive Director Service Reform Group on 6 February 2012 
· Mr Graham Ashton was appointed Deputy Commissioner Crime and Operations Support on 15 February 2012 
· Mr Tim Cartwright was appointed Deputy Commissioner Regional and Road Policing on 15 February 2012 
· Ms Lucinda Nolan was appointed Deputy Commissioner Strategy and Organisational Development on 15 February 2012 
· Mr Cliff Owen was appointed Executive Director, Infrastructure and IT on 20 June 2012 
· Mr Andrew Loader was appointed Group Director Human Resource Department on 20 June 2012 
· Ms Rebecca Munn resigned as Executive Director People Department on 5 April 2012 
· Mr Kieran Walshe, Deputy Commissioner for Regional and Road Policing retired from Victoria Police on 1 July 2012. 
[image: image43.jpg]



Organisational Realignment 2012–13
In 2012–13, Victoria Police is to undergo an organisational realignment in accordance with recommendations arising from the Rush Review. This realignment will include significant changes to the structure of executive command positions
[image: image44.jpg]
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Victoria Police Audit and Risk Committee
The Chief Commissioner of Police has established the Victoria Police Audit and Risk Committee (VPARC) pursuant to his role as the Accountable Officer. The VPARC operates under a charter that is based on the provisions and intent of the Directions of the Minister for Finance.
The objective of the VPARC is to provide independent assurance and assistance to the Chief Commissioner regarding Victoria Police’s financial and organisational risk, control and compliance framework, and its external accountability responsibilities.
At 30 June 2012, members of the VPARC are:
Chairperson (Independent)
DC Strategy and Organisational Development
Executive Director Business Services
Executive Director Infrastructure and IT
Assistant Commissioner Ethical Standards
Department
Assistant Commissioner Operations Support
Acting Director Corporate Strategy and Governance
There are also two independent members of VPARC. Victoria Police’s Chief Financial Officer is an ex-officio member of the VPARC. The Internal Audit Unit oversees the Secretariat function for the VPARC.
[image: image45.jpg]



and management committees, together with the reporting realignment of a number of business units. These changes will be reflected in the Victoria Police 2012–13 Annual Report.
12
Integrated Planning and Risk
Management Model
In 2011–12, Victoria Police introduced a new Integrated Planning and Risk Management (IPRM) Model to improve its planning processes and practices.
The model brings together intelligence, business planning, service delivery and performance management, across the organisation and is reflective of a ‘bottom up – top down’ approach.
The IPRM is designed to:
· Assist decision-making at all levels by focusing on a common set of objectives for each aspect of management – improving community safety, working with our stakeholders, achieving through our people, developing our business and effective police service delivery; 
· Streamline effort by incorporating planning, risk management and business continuity into one activity; 
· Capitalise on expertise by drawing on specialist skills and knowledge; 
· Communicate priorities and risks in a standardised form to identify shared issues and gaps; and 
· Act on identified priorities and risks by raising issues to the appropriate level. 
[image: image46.jpg]





This model is about linking corporate support areas to operational frontline policing divisions and having the opportunity to highlight risks and issues that are impacting on their service delivery.
The model has five distinct phases where information is collected, researched, analysed and developed into corporate documents. The phases are:
· Request for Information (RFI): The RFI is provided by all Departments and Regions and informs 
an environmental scan of Victoria Police’s operating environment that is a key input into the planning process; 
· Local Profile: The local profiles are developed by all Departments and Regions to identify their objectives and priorities for the purpose of Divisional and Regional/Departmental Action Plans; 
· Action Plans: Developed by all Divisions, Departments and Regions to formulate their work programs; 
· Development of State Profiles: (Business Development; Community Safety, People Development; Police Service Delivery and Stakeholder Engagement) based on organisational objectives; and 
· Organisational Priorities and Actions for 2012–13: Developed by VPE to define Victoria Police service priorities over the period 2012–15. 
2011–12 Risk Management Attestation
(in accordance with Standing Direction 4.5.5 of the Minister for Finance)
I, Ken Lay, Chief Commissioner, certify that Victoria Police has risk management processes in place consistent with the Australian /New Zealand Risk Management Standard.



Victoria Police is currently implementing a new risk and planning model to improve the identification and management of risk and the effectiveness of the risk control environment.
The Victoria Police Audit and Risk Committee has verified this assurance and can attest that the executive understand, manage and satisfactorily control risk exposures.
Ken Lay APM
Chief Commissioner
24 July 2012
[image: image47.jpg]
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02  Corporate Governance
Governance and Organisational
Review Initiatives
INTERNAL AUDITS
VPE and VPARC approved the implementation of a three-year Strategic Internal Audit Program
commencing in 2011–12. This risk based program is performed by a panel of two outsourced service providers (Oakton and Ernst and Young), as well as an in-house internal audit team of five sworn police members primarily focusing on the intelligence and covert areas.
Thirty (30) planned internal audit projects were undertaken by the outsourced service providers and the in-house team addressing the following risk themes:
[image: image49.jpg]



	Risk
	Planned Projects

	Themes
	Undertaken

	
	

	Contract management
	

	and procurement
	3

	Core police operations
	10

	Emergency preparedness
	

	response and readiness
	2

	Execution of major
	

	programs and projects
	3

	Information management
	1

	Infrastructure and
	

	information technology
	2

	People capability,
	

	capacity and safety
	4

	Regulatory compliance
	

	and ethical conduct
	1

	Core organisation controls
	4

	Total
	30
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A further 12 management requested audits and reviews were also undertaken by the outsourced service providers and the in-house team during the course of the financial year.
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CONTINUOUS AUDITING
In 2011–12, Continuous Auditing Programs (CAPs) continued to provide control monitoring and data quality assurance to senior management. New tests were developed for the Purchasing Cards and Fixed Assets modules to ensure internal controls related to business activities and financial reporting are working as intended. Further enhancements were also made to existing reports in the System User Activities, System User Administration and Operational Data Quality modules. Exceptions identified continue to be returned to business stakeholders for determining the cause, correction and escalation when appropriate.
TEAMCENTRAL: FORCE-WIDE RECOMMENDATION TRACKING SYSTEM
The TeamCentral Force-wide Recommendation Tracking System continues to centrally record and monitor recommendations arising from internal audits, as well as reviews conducted by external agencies, such as the Commissioner for Law Enforcement Data Security (CLEDS), Ombudsman, Office of Police Integrity (OPI) and Victorian Auditor-General’s Office (VAGO). Work is in progress to upload recommendations from the Coroners Court of Victoria. The status of all recommendations is reported to the VPE and VPARC on a bi-monthly basis. As at 30 June 2012, there were a total of
778 recommendations recorded on TeamCentral.
Summary of Recommendations by Review Type (as at 30 June 2012):
[image: image59.jpg]



	Review Type
	Recommendations

	
	

	CLEDS
	207

	Internal audit
	314

	Ombudsman
	127

	OPI
	72

	VAGO
	58

	Total
	778
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External Reviews
SPECIAL INQUIRY – RUSH REVIEW
A review entitled ‘Inquiry into the command, management and functions of the senior structure of Victoria Police’ conducted by Mr Jack Rush QC and the State Services Authority (SSA) was tabled in Parliament on 1 March 2012. The review highlighted much of the positive work that Victoria Police undertakes, and underlined key areas for progression including cultural reform, strategic planning, workforce planning and performance management and discipline.
This review of the senior command structure of Victoria Police was conducted in accordance with section 52 of the Public Administration Act 2004, and delivered 25 recommendations, 24 of which were approved for implementation by the Victorian Government and Victoria Police.
Other External Audits and Reviews
In 2011–12, the following reports into aspects of Victoria Police performance were published:
VICTORIAN AUDITOR GENERAL’S OFFICE (VAGO)
August 2011 – Road Safety Camera Program
June 2012 – Obsolescence of Frontline ICT:
Police and Schools
June 2012 – Effectiveness of Justice Strategies in Preventing and Reducing Alcohol-Related Harm
OMBUDSMAN VICTORIA
September 2011 – SafeStreets – Investigation into Victoria Police’s handling of a Freedom of Information Request
October 2011 – Investigation into the Office of Police Integrity’s handling of a complaint
November 2011 – Own motion Investigation into ICT enabled projects
June 2012 – The death of Mr Carl Williams at HM Barwon Prison – investigation into Corrections Victoria
June 2012 – Investigation into allegations of detrimental action involving Victoria Police –
Whistleblowers Protection Act 2001



OFFICE OF POLICE INTEGRITY (OPI)
September 2011 – Enabling a flexible workforce for policing in Victoria
October 2011 – Crossing the Line
May 2012 – Review of Victoria Police use of ‘stop and search’ powers
June 2012 – Reporting wrongdoing in the workplace: problems for police
June 2012 – Victoria Police: recurring themes
in the management of high profile investigations
COMMISSIONER FOR LAW ENFORCEMENT DATA SECURITY (CLEDS)
December 2011 – Targeted Compliance Review:
Sex Offenders Register
December 2011 – Implementation Review of
Information Governance
February 2012 – Review of Implementation of CLEDS Report Recommendations: Education and Training on Law Enforcement Data Security
June 2012 – Interpose Logging and Audit Review
Victoria Police has reviewed the recommendations from all reports and provided an initial response to the originating agencies. Implementation status and reporting is being managed through the TeamCentral Force-wide Recommendation Tracking System.
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Victoria Police Organisational Structure as at 30 June 2012
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My Place – Making Performance Data Accessible to the Community
My Place is an online application featured on the Victoria Police News website.
By simply typing in their postcode, Victorians are able to view their local crime statistics, read a personalised message from their local police inspector and view targeted crime prevention information. Victoria Police provides its services through 54 PSAs, each of which has a My Place page, which is updated quarterly.
Performance Framework
Victoria Police has an integrated planning and reporting framework which enables us to maintain focus on achieving our strategic priorities. The Way Ahead strategy set the strategic goals and priorities for the five year period (2008–13) and was focused around three key priorities:
· A Safer Victoria; 
· Connecting the Community; and 
· Valuing our People. 
The Victoria Police Business Plan 2011–12 underpinned the priorities identified in The Way Ahead and reflected the organisation’s commitments to government and the community for the 2011–12 period, in terms of what would be delivered, how it would be delivered and the cost of delivery.
This chapter provides a report against the objectives and targets from The Way Ahead, which after four years of its life will be superseded in July 2012 by the Victoria Police Blueprint 2012–15. It provides
a report against the key performance measures in the annual Business Plan. It also provides additional data and information relating to Victoria Police crime statistics, as well as the contextual information which aids the interpretation of the numbers.
Key Results: The Way Ahead 2008–09 to 2011–12
A SAFER VICTORIA
Crime, public safety and road safety are our focus for delivering a safer Victoria. Over the life of
The Way Ahead, Victoria Police has committed to:
· Reducing crime by 12 per cent; and 
· Reducing deaths and serious injuries on our roads. 



This aims to promote a mutual responsibility between police and the community in creating safer neighbourhoods. By providing people with the knowledge about what crime is taking place in their area, it empowers them to work to prevent it. My Place is not just about putting police data and statistics online, but also about displaying information in a format that is easy to read and understand as well as providing people with the knowledge and confidence to live safer lives.
My Place can be accessed at www.vicpolicenews.com.au
1. Reducing Crime
At the end of 2011–12, the total crime rate was 7,020.0 offences per 100,000 population. This represents an increase of 6.8 per cent over the rate of 6,575.9 per 100,000 population as at 30 June 2011.
The increase in the crime rate is largely attributable to continued significant increases in recorded/ reported family violence related assault and property damage offences, an increase in reported/detected drug offences and other volume crimes.
Current societal and economic factors are also driving crime, with opportunist crimes seeking quick access to cash and other property resulting in an increase in burglary, deception, and some other theft-related offences.
The Code of Practice for the Investigation of Family Violence (CoPIFV) continues to support victims
of family violence recorded in the context of police attendance at Family Violence Incidents (FVI). In 2011–12, there was a 43.3 per cent increase in the number of family violence related Assault offences recorded. This should be viewed as a positive result, as it indicates greater confidence and willingness on the part of victims to report such incidents.
In addition, family violence related property damage offences rose 37.9 per cent (accounting for 9.2 per cent of all property damage offences).
The number of non-family-violence related Assaults increased by 1.3 per cent in 2011–12 compared with the total recorded in 2010–11. There was an overall increase in assaults of 14.0 per cent for 2011–12. Assault offences constituted over 77.3 per cent of
all crime against the person and 10.8 per cent of total crime for 2011–12.
Table 1 (over page) provides detailed comparison of results in all crime categories (comparing results in 2010–11 with those for 2011–12). In line with a Recommendation from the Parliamentary Public Accounts and Estimates Committee (PAEC), those results are shown as both the total number of offences and as a rate per 100,000 population.
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Table 01. Overview of Offences: 2011–12 Compared with 2010–11
(Total Recorded Crime and Offence Rate per 100,000 Population)
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	Number of Offences
	Rate per 100,000 population

	Offence
	2010–11
	2011–12
	% Change
	2010–11
	2011–12
	% Change

	
	
	
	(2010–11 to
	
	
	(2010–11 to

	
	
	
	2011–12)
	
	
	2011–12)

	Homicide
	151
	173
	14.6
	2.7
	3.1
	13.0

	Rape
	1828
	2044
	11.8
	33.2
	36.7
	10.3

	Sex (non-rape)
	5982
	6264
	4.7
	108.8
	112.4
	3.3

	Robbery
	3353
	3286
	-2.0
	61.0
	58.9
	-3.3

	Assault
	36907
	42076
	14.0
	671.2
	754.8
	12.5

	Abduction / kidnap
	491
	611
	24.4
	8.9
	11.0
	22.8

	Crimes against the person
	48712
	54454
	11.8
	885.8
	976.8
	10.3

	Arson
	2899
	3091
	6.6
	52.7
	55.4
	5.2

	Property damage
	48169
	49027
	1.8
	876.0
	879.5
	0.4

	Burglary (aggravated)
	2163
	2516
	16.3
	39.3
	45.1
	14.7

	Burglary (residential)
	27519
	29235
	6.2
	500.4
	524.4
	4.8

	Burglary (other)
	14929
	14977
	0.3
	271.5
	268.7
	-1.0

	Deception
	19895
	22773
	14.5
	361.8
	408.5
	12.9

	Handle stolen goods
	5752
	7323
	27.3
	104.6
	131.4
	25.6

	Theft from motor vehicle
	44654
	46696
	4.6
	812.0
	837.7
	3.2

	Theft (shopsteal)
	20567
	19828
	-3.6
	374.0
	355.7
	-4.9

	Theft of motor vehicle
	14374
	15663
	9.0
	261.4
	281.0
	7.5

	Theft of bicycle
	4023
	4187
	4.1
	73.2
	75.1
	2.7

	Theft (other)
	48655
	50156
	3.1
	884.8
	899.7
	1.7

	Crimes against property
	253599
	265472
	4.7
	4611.7
	4762.3
	3.3

	Drug (cult., manuf., traff.)
	4258
	4741
	11.3
	77.4
	85.0
	9.8

	Drug (possess, use)
	10994
	13991
	27.3
	199.9
	251.0
	25.5

	Drugs
	15252
	18732
	22.8
	277.4
	336.0
	21.2

	Going equipped to steal
	403
	489
	21.3
	7.3
	8.8
	19.7

	Justice procedures
	20021
	25563
	27.7
	364.1
	458.6
	26.0

	Regulated public order
	1382
	1354
	-2.0
	25.1
	24.3
	-3.4

	Weapons/explosives
	6915
	8697
	25.8
	125.7
	156.0
	24.1

	Harassment
	2805
	3786
	35.0
	51.0
	67.9
	33.1

	Behaviour in public
	6901
	6414
	-7.1
	125.5
	115.1
	-8.3

	Other
	5621
	6364
	13.2
	102.2
	114.2
	11.7

	Other crime
	44048
	52667
	19.6
	801.0
	944.8
	17.9

	Total
	361611
	391325
	8.2
	6575.9
	7020.0
	6.8
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Note
Data was extracted from LEAP database on 18 July 2012 and is subject to variation. Figures may not match previous reports.
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Table 2 below provides information on the trend in the number of recorded offences for key crime
categories over the four-year life of The Way Ahead.
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Table 02. Trends in Key Crime Categories: 2008–09 to 2011–12
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	2008–09
	2009–10
	2010–11
	2011–12
	% Change

	
	
	
	
	
	(2008–09 to

	
	
	
	
	
	2011–12)

	Crimes against the person
	44,226
	45,978
	48,712
	54,454
	23.1

	Assault
	33,686
	35,067
	36,907
	42,076
	24.9

	Crimes against property
	280,974
	262,369
	253,599
	265,472
	-5.5

	Theft of motor vehicle
	15,983
	15,067
	14,374
	15,663
	-2.0

	Theft from motor vehicle
	47,474
	45,420
	44,654
	46,696
	-1.6

	Burglary (residential)
	28,026
	27,350
	27,519
	29,235
	4.3

	Property damage
	54,189
	52,501
	48,169
	49,027
	-9.5


Family Violence
Responding to family violence and violence against women and children is a key priority for Victoria Police and is one of the areas where increases in crime statistics are considered a positive. Increased reporting signifies that community members have the confidence to report family violence to police. An increased focus on reporting and effective response to FVI is one of the Chief Commissioner’s main priorities for Victoria Police.



The CoPIFV was introduced in August 2004, as one of a number of initiatives designed to enhance police responses to family violence. The CoPIFV ensures
a greater focus on evidence gathering, investigation and laying of charges where appropriate and has led to significant improvement in the way in which Victoria Police responds to family violence. It was reviewed and revised in December 2010.
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Table 03. Family Violence Statistics
[image: image95.jpg]



	FVI*
	2008–09
	2009–10
	2010–11
	2011–12
	% Change

	
	
	
	
	
	(2008–09 to

	
	
	
	
	
	2011–12)

	FVI attended
	33,891
	35,687
	40,839
	50,382
	48.7

	Number of FVI where charges laid
	8,644
	9,382
	12,076
	17,528
	102.8

	as a result of police attendance
	
	
	
	
	

	% of FVI where charges laid
	25.5
	26.3
	29.6
	34.8
	36.5


Note
* This is the number of Family Violence Reports submitted (including Family Violence Safety Notices) over the four-year life of The Way Ahead.
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Our Performance 
2. Reducing Deaths and Serious Injuries on Our Roads 



Victoria Police Annual Report 2011–12
During 2011–12, Victoria Police continued its commitment to working with its road safety partners to reduce collisions on our roads, particularly those that result in fatalities or serious injuries Victoria Police is focused on tactical road traffic law enforcement operations and on improving communications with road users regarding road safety.
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At the end of the 2011–12 period, road deaths had been reduced by 10.3 per cent and injuries by 2.2 per cent in comparison with the same time in 2008–09. Over the financial year 2011–12, road deaths reduced by 8.2 per cent and injuries increased by 1.7 per cent compared to the same time in the previous year.
Table 04. Road Safety Statistics
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	2008–09
	2009–10
	2010–11
	2011–12
	% Change

	
	
	
	
	
	(2008–09 to

	
	
	
	
	
	2011–12)

	Fatalities
	301
	288
	294
	270
	-10.3

	Injuries
	19,151
	18,952
	18,419
	18,739
	-2.2


Notes
1. Data in Table 4 was correct at date of download (20 July 2012). Data downloaded on a different date may reflect minor variations. 

2. Injury data contains both Serious Injury and Other Injury data in the April 2011 – March 2012 period. There is an approximate 6 week time lag with Injury data. 

Policing initiatives addressing the 2012 road toll include:
· Operation HALO: aimed to change road user behaviour by providing a sustained enforcement strategy during February 2012. The operation also sought to reduce road trauma associated with cyclists, pedestrians and motorcyclists 
by targeting those road users that intelligence suggests contribute to road trauma associated with these groups. Operation HALO operated in five PSAs – Melbourne, Yarra, Boroondara, Stonnington and Port Phillip. 
· Operation CROSSROADS – Easter 2012: conducted throughout all operational police regions and PSAs, this aimed to increase driver awareness and journey planning while reducing road crashes and associated trauma. 
· Operation AEGIS: a state-wide road safety operation conducted at key risk times, such as Christmas, Easter and Queen’s Birthday Holiday weekend. 
· Operation RAID: aimed to ‘Remove All Impaired Drivers’ from our roads through increased enforcement of alcohol and drug testing. Operation RAID increases the profile of random breath /drug testing (RBT/POFT), public awareness of alcohol and drug testing, and public perception of the 
risk of being tested. 
· Operation AUSTRANS: a national heavy vehicle enforcement operation by police and road safety agencies run throughout the month of May. Further information regarding this operation 
is outlined in Chapter 5 of this report. 
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Chief Finance Officer’s Declaration

We certify that the attached financial statements for Victoria Police have been prepared in accordance
with Standing Direction 4.2 of the Financial Management Act 1994, applicable Financial Reporting
Directions, Australian accounting standards and other mandatory professional reporting requirements.

We further state that, in our opinion, the information set out in the Comprehensive Operating
Statement. Balance Sheet, Statement of Changes in Equity, Cash Flow Statement and notes forming
part of the financial statements, presents fairly the financial transactions during the year ended 30 June
2012 and financial position of Victoria Police at 30 June 2012.

We are not aware of any circumstance which would render any particulars included in the financial
report to be misleading or inaccurate.

‘We authorise the attached financial report for issue on 16" August, 2012.

Q

Ken D’Lay APM Duncan McColl CPA
Chi€f Commissioner of Police Chief Finance Officer

Melbourne
16" Augus

Melbourne
012 16" August, 2012







· Operation REBUS: using intelligence to support operational road policing, numerous Automated Number Plate Recognition (ANPR) systems were deployed on Friday 8 June 2012. Operation REBUS, ultimately supporting AEGIS XII, involved a large scale ‘ring of steel’ style approach utilising ANPR systems and operational Police members across six major entry points to the CBD preventing and deterring traffic and public order related offences. The operation was split into two phases with phase one targeting sites within a 5km radius of the CBD and phase two targeting sites within a 10km radius of the CBD. The operation ensured 24,674 vehicles were scanned with 186 offences detected equating to a strike rate of one offence detected every three minutes – many of these offences being for serious unauthorised driving offences. 
We are the Toll
On 2 April 2012, the Chief Commissioner, along with many of his colleagues, launched the ‘We are the Toll’ road safety enforcement campaign. This three-month initiative focused on increasing visible road policing and educating the community on the dangers of unsafe driver behaviour.
Speed, impaired driving and vulnerable road users were key focus areas for the campaign. Resources were allocated to high-risk areas throughout the campaign, supporting local capabilities with hard-hitting enforcement.
A ‘We are the Toll’ campaign Facebook page was set up to engage with the community, providing a space for communication and discussion regarding road trauma.
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Victorian Auditor-General’s Office Emall comments@audit.vic.gov.au
Website www.audit.vic.gov.au

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Chief Commissioner of Victoria Police

The Financial Report

The accompanying financial report for the year ended 30 June 2012 of the Victoria Police which
comprises the comprehensive operating statement, balance sheet, statement of changes in equity, cash
flow statement, notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information, and the accountable officer's and chief finance officer’'s declaration has been audited.

The Chief Commissioner’s Responsibility for the Financial Report

The Chief Commissioner of Victoria Police is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
financial report in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, and the financial reporting
requirements of the Financial Management Act 1994, and for such internal control as the Chief
‘Commissioner determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that is free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

As required by the Audit Act 1994, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report
based on the audit, which has been conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those
standards require compliance with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and that
the audit be planned and performed to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report is
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial report. The audit procedures selected depend on judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, consideration is given to the internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and
fair presentation of the financial report in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Chief Commissioner, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
audit opinion.

1
Auditing in the Public Interest





Table 05. Additional Road Policing Performance Indicators Utilised in 2011–12
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Independence

The Auditor-General's independence is established by the Constitution Act 1975. The Auditor-General is
not subject to direction by any person about the way in which his powers and responsibilities are to be
exercised. In conducting the audit, the Auditor-General, his staff and delegates complied with all
applicable independence requirements of the Australian accounting profession.

Opinion

In my opinion, the financial report presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Victoria Police as at 30 June 2012 and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with applicable Australian Accounting Standards, and the financial reporting
requirements of the Financial Management Act 1994.

Matters Relating to the Electronic Publication of the Audited Financial Report

This auditor’s report relates to the financial report of the Victoria Police for the year ended 30 June 2012
included both in the Victoria Police’s annual report and on the website. The Chief Commissioner of
Victoria Police is responsible for the integrity of Victoria Police's website. | have not been engaged to
report on the integrity of the Victoria Police’s website. The auditor's report refers only to the subject
matter described above. It does not provide an opinion on any other information which may have been
hyperlinked to/from these statements. If users of the financial report are concerned with the inherent
risks arising from publication on a website, they are advised to refer to the hard copy of the audited
financial report to confirm the information contained in the website version of the financial report.

R

MELBOURNE D D R Pearson
20 August 2012 Auditor-General
2

Auditing in the Public Interest





	Indicator
	2009–10
	2010–11
	2011–12
	% Change

	
	
	
	
	(2009–10 to

	
	
	
	
	2011–12)

	Number of vehicles impounded (hoon driving)
	3,458
	3,473
	4,171
	20.6

	Number of drivers, vehicle impounded, 2nd offence*
	140
	349
	500
	257.1

	Number of alcohol screening tests administered**
	1,104,962
	1,027,500
	735,478
	-33.4

	Number of drug tests administered***
	39,675
	26,468
	16,290
	-58.9


Notes
Note that actual data for the number of alcohol and drug tests conducted in 2011–12 is partial/incomplete data due to Protected Industrial Action when data was not collected (no data was collected in Quarter 1 and during a part of Quarter 2).
· No comparison should be attempted between this data and previous data provided as different counting rules have been applied. 

· Refers to Road Policing Drug and Alcohol Section (RPDAS) Booze Bus tests only. 

· Refers to RPDAS Drug Bus Tests only. 

CONNECTING THE COMMUNITY
Police are often the first point of contact for people when they need help. When we can, we help straight away and through our partnerships we are able to connect people with community and government organisations who can provide ongoing assistance.
Victoria Police recognises that the community are at the centre of everything we do and that it relies heavily on the support it receives from the community in order to deliver effective policing
services. It is essential therefore, that the community has confidence in us to perform our role, and that they know we will always demonstrate the highest



standards of professionalism and ethical behaviour. Victoria Police works closely with the community, helping those in need of assistance and connecting them with others who can provide ongoing support.
Over the life of The Way Ahead (2008–09 to 2011–12), Victoria Police committed to:
· Improving community confidence in Victoria Police; and 
· Increasing satisfaction with the delivery of policing services. 
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Table 06. Performance Results – Connecting the Community
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	2008–09
	2009–10
	2010–11
	2011–12
	% Change

	
	(%)
	(%)
	(%)
	(%)
	(2008–09 to

	
	
	
	
	
	2011–12)

	Improving community confidence in police*
	82.0
	81.9
	84.1
	85.1
	3.1

	Increasing satisfaction with the delivery
	83.3
	83.6
	84.0
	85.3
	2.0

	of police services**
	
	
	
	
	

	General satisfaction with services provided
	67.2
	65.4
	73.0
	75.9
	8.7

	by Victoria Police***
	
	
	
	
	


Notes
All results are measured by the independently conducted National Survey of Community Satisfaction with Policing.
· Reporting the proportion of respondents who Strongly Agreed/Agreed that they had confidence in police. 

· Reporting the proportion of respondents who had business contact with Victoria Police in the previous 12 months and were Very Satisfied/Satisfied with the service they received from police during that contact. 

· Reporting the proportion of respondents who were Very Satisfied/Satisfied with the performance of Victoria Police in general. 
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03  Our Performance
1. Improving Community Confidence
Victoria Police aims to improve community confidence by increasing community engagement and by enhancing organisational capacity for policing diverse communities, including youth, multicultural and marginalised groups. In 2011–12, Victoria Police continued to support local communities, building on the results achieved through our existing partnerships and examining opportunities for further engagement that contributes to community strengthening
and resilience.
Over the life of The Way Ahead, confidence in police increased by 3.1 per cent.
For the financial year 2011–12, Confidence in Police increased by 1.0 per cent. Confidence levels for Victoria Police at 85.1 per cent are slightly above the national average result of 85.0 per cent.
Chapter 5 of this Annual Report explores and demonstrates Victoria Police’s engagement with some of Victoria’s diverse communities, and outlines a range of achievements and initiatives during 2011–12.
2. Increasing Satisfaction with Police Services
Victoria Police works to increase satisfaction with police services by developing service strategies tailored to the needs of local communities. We monitor the community’s perceptions of crime and safety issues at the local level and also its satisfaction with the delivery of policing services to address identified problems.
Over the life of The Way Ahead, general satisfaction with policing services increased by 8.7 per cent, and customer satisfaction (contact with police) increased by 2.0 per cent. For the financial year 2011–12, general satisfaction with police services increased 2.9 per cent. Of these respondents who had contact with police in the 2011–12 reporting period, 85.3 per cent reported they were at least ‘satisfied’ with the service they received during their most recent contact with Victoria Police. This represents an increase of 1.3 per cent from the 84.0 per cent result recorded at the end of 2010–11 and remains above the national average of 84.1 per cent.
VALUING OUR PEOPLE
Our people are the public face of policing. More than 16,100 people work for Victoria Police, dealing with complex issues, contributing to positive social outcomes. Each year, police deal with millions of people in a wide range of challenging situations. Police members are supported in their roles by public service professionals who work as administrators, managers and specialists in a range of functions such as law, accounting and forensic sciences.
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It is important that our people are supported to perform their roles in terms of their health, safety and wellbeing and through the provision
of appropriate facilities and equipment. We also continue to ensure that our people are supported by building leadership capability across all levels and creating opportunities for the professional development of our staff.
Over the life of The Way Ahead, we worked towards ensuring that:
· The health, safety and wellbeing of our people were improved; 
· Our managers were committed to providing ethical, values based leadership and improving organisation performance; and 
· Our people know that their skills and experience were valued. 
Improving the Health, Safety and Wellbeing
of Our People
Our priority during 2011–12 continued to be on improving the health, safety and wellbeing of our people. This focus was demonstrated by the development and commencement (in July 2012) of the new Victoria Police Occupational Health and Safety (OHS) Strategy – Safety First, a key
commitment and focus of the Chief Commissioner. The aim of the new strategy is to embed safety as part of Victoria Police culture, and ensure safety is a key element of all we do. Each employee who comes to work for Victoria Police each day should be able to go home at the end of the day in the same manner they arrived in.
Our OHS performance was measured through incremental achievement of the Victoria Police Protecting our People Strategy 2009–2012 objectives of:
· Zero workplace fatalities; 
· A reduction in workplace injuries; and 
· A reduction in days lost to injury. 
The table below shows our performance against the targets forecast at the beginning of the year. Additional information on health and safety performance and initiatives and performance is included in Chapter 4 – Our People.
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Table 07. Performance Results – Valuing Our People
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	2011–12
	2011–12
	% Variation

	
	Target
	Result
	From Target

	Zero
	0
	0
	0%

	fatalities
	
	
	

	Workplace
	-27%
	-16.4%
	-10.6%

	injuries
	
	
	

	Days lost to
	-12%
	-28%
	-16%

	new injuries
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Key Results: Business Plan 2011–12
Victoria Police delivers a range of services to the community on a daily basis. These services include:
· Responding to calls for assistance in matters of personal and public safety, including emergencies, serious incidents and routine response calls; 
· Detecting and investigating offences and bringing to justice those responsible for committing them; 
· Supporting the judicial process to achieve efficient and effective court case management; 



· Providing community safety and crime prevention programs such as the authorised release of criminal history information in the interests of public safety; and 
· Promoting safer road user behaviour and enforcing road safety laws. 
In 2011–12, Victoria Police measured the quantity, quality and timeliness of its delivery of policing services through 12 key performance indicators. A summary of those indicators and results for 2011–12 appears in Table 8 below.
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Table 08. Output Results Reported to Government at 30 June 2012
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	Measure
	Performance
	Performance
	Performance

	
	
	Target
	Result
	Variation

	Quantity
	
	
	

	Reduction in property crime1
	-3.00%
	4.7%
	-7.7%

	Reduction in crimes against the person2
	-2.00%
	11.8%
	-13.8%

	Number of events responded to (metro area
	750,000
	811,930
	8.3

	and from regional police communication centres)3
	
	
	

	Number of crime prevention and community
	470,000
	557,401
	18.6

	safety checks conducted4
	
	
	

	Quality
	
	
	

	Proportion of community satisfied with policing services
	68.0%
	75.9%
	7.9%

	(general satisfaction)5
	
	
	

	Proportion of the community who have confidence in police6
	82.0%
	85.1%
	3.1%

	Proportion of drivers tested who comply with alcohol limits7, 13
	99.5%
	99.8%
	0.3%

	Proportion of drivers who comply with posted speed limits8, 13
	99.5%
	99.8%
	0.3%

	Proportion of drivers tested who return clear result
	98.0%
	96.0%
	-2.0%

	for prohibited drugs9, 13
	
	
	

	Proportion of successful prosecution outcomes10
	92.0%
	93.0%
	1.0%

	Timeliness
	
	
	

	Proportion of crimes against the person resolved
	54.0%
	55.0%
	1.0%

	within 30 days11, 14
	
	
	

	Proportion of property crimes resolved within 30 days12, 14
	21.0%
	18.8%
	-2.2%

	Notes
	
	
	

	1
	Calculated as the number of recorded offences per compared with the result at the same time in the previous year. Negative variation

	
	denotes a negative result against target.
	
	
	

	2
	Calculated as the number of recorded offences per compared with the result at the same time in the previous year. Negative variation

	
	denotes a negative result against target.
	
	
	

	3
	Events to which a police response is dispatched.
	
	
	

	4
	Includes fee and non-fee based criminal history checks, crime and collision records, licence restorations and external agency referrals.

	5
	Community Survey question related to those respondents who are satisfied or very satisfied with policing services in general

	6
	Community Survey question related to those respondents who agree or strongly agree that they have confidence in police

	7
	Drivers tested, as part of state-wide random/preliminary alcohol screening testing, who comply with blood alcohol content levels.

	8
	Vehicles assessed, as part of the state-wide mobile speed camera operations, as travelling within given speed thresholds.

	9
	Drivers tested as part of the random drug testing program who return a clear result for prohibited drugs.
	


10 Matters listed for a contested hearing that result in a successful prosecution. 
11 Crimes against the person offences resolved or cleared within a 30 day period from the date reported to police. 
12 Property crime offences resolved or cleared within a 30 day period from the date reported to police. 
13 Note that actual data is partial/incomplete data due to Protected Industrial Action when data was not collected (no data was collected in Quarter 1 and during a part of Quarter 2). 
14 From 2012–13 onwards, clearance rates will be reported without ‘intent to summons’ offences, in accordance with a recommendation made by the Office of Police Integrity in the Report of investigation into Victoria Police crime records and statistical reporting, 
May 2011. This will lower these performance measures, and targets should be revised accordingly. 
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03  Our Performance
Factors Significantly Affecting Output Performance
The 2011–12 results against output performance indicators have generally been positive. This section provides comment on those results which fall outside the forecast range (more than 5 per cent variation from target) or where performance variation might otherwise be regarded as significant.
Reduction in Property Crime
The most significant contributors to the increase were in the areas of Family Violence related Property Damage, Aggravated Burglary, Handle Stolen Goods and Deception offences. Family Violence related Property Damage offences increased by 37.9 per cent, compared with the same time in the previous year. In addition, Deception offences were up 14.5 per cent. A 16.3 per cent increase in Aggravated Burglary and 27.3 per cent increase in Handle Stolen Goods also contributed to the overall increase.
Reduction in Crime Against the Person
The significant increase in recorded offences in this category is almost entirely driven by a 14.0 per cent increase in total assault offences. That increase is, in turn, driven by a 43.3 per cent increase in assaults recorded in the context of police attendance at family violence incidents. These results should be viewed in the context of continued improvements
in the Police response to support victims of family violence – leading to an increase in willingness on the part of victims to seek assistance from police. There have also been increases ranging from 4.7 per cent to 24.4 per cent in most other offence types in this category.
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Number of Events Responded to (Metropolitan Area and from Regional Police Communication Centres)
The overall increase in recorded crime (number of offences) is likely to impact on the number of calls for assistance to which a police response is
despatched. In addition, the incremental roll-out of Emergency Services Telecommunications Authority (ESTA) and Computer Aided Dispatch (CAD) across the state may have led to more accurate /more consistent recording of calls for assistance (in those areas previously reliant on manual, paper-based recording systems).
Number of Crime Prevention and Community
Safety Checks Conducted
Overachievement at the end of 2011–12 is largely attributable to legislative changes to checking requirements for persons seeking to be employed in the private security industry. Some impact is also attributed to a service initiative designed to reduce a long standing backlog in checks waiting to be processed.
Proportion of Community Satisfied with Policing Services (General Satisfaction)
This measure continues to improve and exceed the stated target, indicating a greater and increasing level of satisfaction with policing services in Victoria. It is anticipated that the results will stabilise at the higher level in the 2012–13 year.
—
The proportion of community satisfied with policing services continues to improve and exceed the stated target, indicating
a greater and increasing level of satisfaction with policing services in Victoria.
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Output Costs and Resource Allocation
In 2011–12, Victoria Police expended $2.081b on the delivery of the Policing Services output (compared to a budget of $2.041b for 2011–12).
The 2011–12 year-end net result is a deficit of $36.3m.



This preliminary result incorporates the effect of trusts and end of financial year accounting adjustments.
The following table provides information on Victoria Police’s financial result for the financial year just completed and comparative information for the preceding four financial years.
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Table 09. Five Year Summary of Financial Results
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	2007–08
	2008–09
	2009–10
	2010–11
	2011–12

	
	$’000
	$’000
	$’000
	$’000
	$’000

	Total income from transactions
	1,676,603
	1,784,140
	1,859,679
	1,972,598
	2,051,482

	Total expenses from transactions
	1,630,431
	1,731,520
	1,858,714
	1,965,125
	2,081,451

	Net result from transactions
	46,172
	52,620
	965
	7,473
	(29,969)

	Net result for the period
	45,766
	36,373
	4,496
	13,364
	(36,286)

	Net cash flow from operating activities
	54,694
	54,398
	78,793
	24,466
	58,877

	Total assets
	1,190,259
	1,298,833
	1,377,255
	1,713,200
	1,708,763

	Total liabilities
	496,927
	538,730
	555,530
	536,638
	551,894


Financial Performance
Victoria Police’s result from transactions for 2011–12 is a deficit of $30.0m, compared to a surplus of $7.5m in 2010–11. With the inclusion of net loss from other economic flows of $6.3m, the net result for the
year is a deficit of $36.3m, compared to a surplus of $13.4m in 2010–11.
The deficit from transactions has been caused by a range of one-off factors that occurred during 2011–12 including:
· Markedly lower retirement and resignation rates of experienced Police members throughout the year. Whilst this had the positive outcome of retention of experienced officers, the planned training of new personnel was continued in order to meet the delivery of additional police personnel in accordance with government priorities; 
· Higher than expected overtime cost pressures arising from events such as natural disasters which befell the State in 2011–12, the Occupy Melbourne protests, and the Royal Visit; 
· A draw down from prior year accumulated surpluses to continue the purchase and deployment of semi-automatic pistols and operational equipment vests to Police members; and 
· Increased employer contribution to the defined benefit superannuation scheme for sworn officers following actuarial recalculations and declines in investment market returns over recent years. 
It is anticipated that the a number of provisions agreed in the 2011 Police EBA will provides more flexibility in the workforce enabling better management of resources in future years and an improved ability
to respond to cost pressures.



Balance Sheet
Victoria Police’s net asset base as at 30 June 2012 was $1,156.9m comprising total assets of $1,708.8m and total liabilities of $551.9m.
The major assets of the Victoria Police are property, plant and equipment; these assets represent
75 per cent ($1,276.7m) of the total assets of the Victoria Police.
Liabilities of the Victoria Police, consisting mainly of payables and employee benefit provisions totalling $551.9m, represent an increase of $15.3m during 2011–12, mainly as a result of increases in long service leave provisions related to increases in numbers of sworn police and outcomes of enterprise bargaining agreements.
Subsequent Events
The Victorian Public Service Workplace Determination 2012 was made by Fair Work Australia on 23 July 2012, which replaces the 2009 Extended and Varied Version of the Victorian Public Service Agreement 2006. The Workplace Determination takes effect from 29 July 2012 and will remain in force until 31 December 2015. The Workplace Determination provides for wage increases of 3.25 per cent and 1.25 per cent on
1 July 2012 and 1 January 2013 respectively over 2012–13, with six monthly wage increases thereafter. A lump sum payment of $1,500 (or equivalent pro-rata amount for part time employees) will also be payable to eligible Victorian Public Service employees who received a salary on 1 July 2012 and were employed on 29 July 2012.
As the Workplace Determination takes effect from 29 July 2012, no adjustments have been made to the financial statements contained this annual report.
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Capacity
1,700 ADDITIONAL POLICE
Recruitment and Deployment
Victoria Police continued to recruit towards implementing the Government’s election commitment of an additional 1,700 frontline police by November 2014. At 30 June 2012, there were 12,478 sworn police (FTE) with a further 124 recruits in training. Victoria Police exceeded its target for sworn police in 2011–12 by 204 officers, deploying an additional 644 police over the 2011–12 period. As a result, 65 per cent of the additional 1,700 police have already been deployed. The successful recruitment and deployment of these additional police members has resulted in many stations approaching ‘full capacity’.
The investment in 1,700 additional police is expected to deliver many benefits to the Victorian community including increased satisfaction with policing services, increased perceptions of safety and a stronger police presence in areas of greatest demand. These benefits will be measured by increases in customer satisfaction, police activity, police presence and perceptions
of safety in the community. The allocation of police resources to areas of greatest need will help ensure consistency in service delivery across the state.
To facilitate the process of effectively deploying additional police to areas of greatest need, Victoria Police has developed and implemented a Demand Allocation Model. In 2011–12, Victoria Police allocated 400 new operational general duties, specialist support and supervisor positions across the state. The model for allocation of new police
in 2012–13 was also finalised and distributed.
Various infrastructure upgrades to the Victoria Police Academy were completed in 2011–12 to ensure it is able to accommodate the increased number of police recruits. Police station infrastructure refurbishment and/or expansion works to accommodate the additional police numbers will also commence in 2012–13.
Training
During 2011–12, the 33-week recruit program, which was introduced during the previous year, has been embedded to ensure that the necessary operational skills, capabilities and confidence of our people in performing their roles have been strengthened.
The two-week Probationary Constables Taking Charge Program, which is completed prior to confirmation, commenced this year and introduced a more learner centred, problem based learning program. Distinct themes are explored acknowledging that there will be an enormous turnover of front line staff over
the next few years, and that current probationary constables need to be leaders and mentors earlier in their careers.



940 PROTECTIVE SERVICES OFFICERS (PSOs)
Recruitment and Deployment
Increasing safety on the public transport system is an integral part of the State Government’s commitment to improve community safety for all Victorians. To help address this important issue, the Government committed funding for the recruitment and operational deployment of 940 PSOs to be stationed at 212 metropolitan railway stations and four regional stations from 6pm until after the last train. This project commenced in 2011–12 and will conclude in November 2014.
The deployment of 940 PSOs aims to improve community safety and security in and around train stations, and this will be measured through increases in perceptions of safety on public transport, increases in PSO presence in and around train stations and reductions in crime
in and around train stations.
In February 2012, the first squad of 18 PSOs graduated and undertook their first shifts on Flinders Street and Southern Cross railway stations. Since that initial deployment, five additional squads have graduated with a total of 88 PSOs deployed by 30 June 2012.
In this time, PSOs have been deployed to railway stations including Flinders Street, Southern Cross, Dandenong, Footscray and Melbourne Central. CBD loop stations and surrounding inner suburban stations remain the immediate priorities for
the upcoming deployment of new PSOs. Priority stations are determined based on criteria including infrastructure issues, high patronage, high crime counts and significant public order issues.
Victoria Police worked with the Department of Justice to run an extensive media campaign promoting the initiative and advertising the
employment opportunity the initiative provided. Victoria Police engaged the services of HOBAN Recruitment to assist in processing the large number of expected applicants. At 30 June 2012, Victoria Police had received in excess of 5,000 enquiries from potential applicants, had over 150 applicants in training, and in excess of 500 applications progressing through the recruitment process.
During the period that HOBAN Recruitment has been engaged, Victoria Police has taken the opportunity to review its recruitment processes to gain efficiencies in terms of time, resources and cost. Amongst the work completed was the move from a paper based to electronic online application system known as the Springboard Applicant Tracking System (SATS). SATS provides applicants with a modern online application process that includes the ability to track the progress of their application. For Victoria Police, SATS has removed duplication of process, reduced the handling of paperwork and provided efficiencies for recruitment practitioners.
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Training
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PSOs undertake a 12-week training course and undergo the same two-week Operational Tactics and Safety Training (OTST) that sworn police currently receive. They will be required to re-qualify every six months. PSO training includes elements in how to deal with vulnerable groups and people with mental health issues and they receive similar community engagement and diversity training as sworn police members. PSO training focuses on the more targeted range of powers and responsibilities that PSOs have in protecting the community at railway stations.
PSOs also undergo a period of ‘on the job’ training where they gain hands-on experience under the supervision of experienced Victoria Police Transit Safety Division officers. The supervision model has been built around capacity building, rotational experience, coaching and intense supervision in initial deployments.
In line with police recruit courses, the 12-week Academy residential training provides PSOs with training in operational safety and tactics
qualifications, ethics, basic laws and arrest powers, communication and writing skills, IT, radio and foot patrol duties. The training includes an increased awareness in community engagement, youth congregation, human rights, risk assessments, conflict resolution and emergency management. PSO training focuses on preparing the members to safely work in a dynamic environment with a high level of unpredictability with respect to vulnerable people such as the homeless, youth, drug and alcohol affected people, the aged and people
living with mental health illness.
DIVERSITY
Victoria Police remains committed to the attraction, recruitment and retention of a workforce that is diverse and reflective of the community. In 2011–12, Victoria Police has focused on strategic planning and developing related products to ensure sustainable and consistent efforts are directed towards workforce diversity throughout the organisation. This planning has to date resulted in products such as:
· The development of the Victoria Police Equity 
and Diversity Strategy and Action Plan 2012–2015. 
The drafting of this strategy and action plan has involved widespread research and consultation, recognition of good practice, greater understanding of the workforce and the history of diversity in Victoria Police, and the establishment of internal and external partnerships to ensure consistency, sustainability and effective implementation. 
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The Strategy and Action Plan is expected to be effective in late 2012;
· Research and analysis has been performed to identify trends and develop strategies to improve the attraction, retention and support of women in policing. Primary focus remains on greater representation of women in leadership and decision making roles; and 
· A Multicultural Employment Steering Committee has been established to inform good practice in the attraction, recruitment and retention of a multicultural workforce and to drive strategic efforts in this space. To date, the committee 
has delivered tailored information sessions to encourage applications and confidence in the employment process. 
Capability
DEDICATED TRAINING WORKPLACES
Following on from the successful implementation of Phase 2 – Dedicated Training Workplace Program
(DTWP), accredited stations increased to 92 locations across Victoria. To complement the strategic geographical growth, over 2,000 mentors were trained in basic and advanced mentoring skills
and they now provide the support and development to our newest members of Victoria Police. To ensure accessibility, the program now offers mentor training through both online e-learning and more comprehensive face to face sessions. In addition, all probationary constables transitioning through the Taking Charge course receive both Level 1 and Level 2 training. The DTWP is now an accepted and required program in the training and development of junior members.
INCIDENT COMMAND AND CONTROL
SYSTEM (ICCS)
During 2011–12, version 3 of the ICCS training to support our emergency management response was created and successfully delivered across all 21 Divisions of Victoria Police. Designed to
complement the previous two rounds of theory based ICCS training, version 3 focused on an application based exercising regime through Divisional Incident Management Teams within Police Operation Centres. This process assisted Divisional Managers in developing staff capability to respond to incidents and emergencies, through the effective deployment of Incident Management Teams.
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MENTORING TRAINING
Victoria Police continues to strengthen its leadership and management training. The highly successful Victoria Police Leadership Mentoring Program (VPLMP) has just completed its fifth year with a total participation of 98 Victoria Police leaders at the rank of senior sergeant through to Deputy Commissioner and VPS equivalents. The program is an innovative partnership development opportunity which has established networks with the business community and Rotary International. Whilst the core of the program is focused on mentoring, it also involves other activities, such as the ‘Thought Leadership’ presentations and enhanced opportunities to network with other participants of the program.
SPECIALISED TRAINING
Our leadership and people management learning has been enhanced with the introduction of the Inspector Qualification examinations and evaluation of the Inspector Qualification Program content, which both support development towards a key management role in the organisation.
Specialist skills have also been enhanced with the implementation of the Road Policing Investigator’s Program. The program has been embedded to successfully create a comprehensive training program developing a cohort of police members with superior road policing investigative skills. The Centre for Road Policing now delivers into other relevant programs, increasing the awareness and capability of recruits and confirmed Constables in the area
of road policing investigations.
The Centre for Operational Safety has commenced delivering tactical arrest options training to frontline and specialist police. This course is a refreshed version of the forced building entry training course, and is the internal qualification for members engaging in planned Level 2 forced entries. The course will provide participants with contemporary building clearance techniques as well as an exposure to alternative arrest options.
The course focus is on the critical issue of planning and risk assessment and is conducted over a five day period.
Our Community Engagement training recently moved from our Operations Coordination Department to People Development Department and is working
out of the Centre for Ethics, Community Engagement and Communications at the Victoria Police Academy. Whilst their main function will be delivering into police and PSO recruit training, courses for Youth Resource Officers (YROs), portfolio Aboriginal Liaison Officers, Aboriginal Community Liaison Officers and Multicultural Liaison Officers are also being developed for delivery across Victoria Police.



TRAINING DEVELOPMENT
The Victoria Police Learning Hub (VPLH) went live in June 2012 and aims to provide a contemporary learning approach that utilises curriculum based instructional design e-learning packages that when delivered together with face to face training, will deliver contemporary blended learning outcomes in an efficient manner across the state.
The VPLH provides for self paced, timely and efficient e-learning in a user friendly online environment on the desktop at a members workplace. A number of e-learning packages are currently hosted on the VPLH, including OTST, Critical Incident Management and Information Security.
The continued growth of e-learning through the VPLH over the next 18 months will, together with other enhanced technology solutions, be facilitated through the Victoria Police Academy Information Communication Technology Plan.
COMMUNITY ENCOUNTERS
Community Encounters continues to be the foundation on which community engagement is undertaken by Victoria Police. Police and PSO
recruits attend the Community Encounters session in their first week of training. In this scenario,
20 people per session from diverse and minority community backgrounds spend time with the recruits. The people are representative of Muslim, African and Aboriginal communities, the mental health sector, various other faiths, the Gay/Lesbian, Bi-sexual/Transgender and Intersex community (GLBTI) and a variety of employment groups. The sessions are managed with the community members spending 15 minutes with four recruits and then rotate through the participants. These sessions
are run every two weeks.
These sessions are an inspiring interaction between the recruits and our diverse community which provides an opportunity to gain an understanding of the diverse needs and issues that may confront them when dealing with various community groups in an operational environment. Additionally, these community volunteers are championing the cause to build relationships with police within their communities by relating their experiences back through the community. This is invaluable in building community confidence in our policing services.
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04  People
Occupational Health and Safety (OHS)
PROTECTING OUR PEOPLE
The second phase of the ‘Protecting Our People’ health and safety strategy (2009–12) concluded in June 2012. Substantial improvement in performance was achieved this year.
Key initiatives and achievements during 2011–12 were:
· Victoria Police was the recipient of the Institute of Public Administration Australia (IPAA) ‘Leading the way in health, safety and wellbeing award’ 
in February 2012; 
· A safety marketing campaign to further promote health, safety and wellbeing awareness across the organisation has delivered a safety calendar, a range of safety posters, regular safety bulletins on key issues and other various communications to all employees; 
· Safety and return to work management has been integrated into several promotional examinations and training courses; 
· An OHS Innovation fund provided through the WorkCover agent has been instrumental in all regions and major departments developing and implementing their own health, safety and wellbeing initiatives. The fund has proven 
successful with projects covering safety leadership coaching programs for key managers, development and provision of manual handling equipment 
and the purchase of inflatable vests for members working in the Mounted Branch; and 
· Our injury management personnel continued to work with managers and our WorkCover agent to achieve early return to work of our injured employees. 
The management of psychological injury is an important health and wellbeing issue. Improved analysis of the results of psychological related research and data continues to guide direction for further improvement.
We have continued our focus firstly on eliminating or reducing risk factors; secondly, assisting employees to be more resilient and to manage stress; and finally offering support for employees who become ill.
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Initiatives and achievements in this area during 2011–12 included:
· Expanded roll out of the Resilience At Work (RAW) program. This package now includes individual resilience, team resilience and leadership resilience; 
· Infusion of core aspects of the RAW program into core curriculum at recruit level and in sergeant, senior sergeant and Inspector qualifying programs; 
· Training of over 30 facilitators to assist in the roll out of the RAW program; 
· Re-establishment of a Psychological Health module on the police recruit program; 
· Establishment of a Psychological Health module on the PSO program; and 
· Continued roll out of the Working Well Preventing Stress (WWPS) program. 
These initiatives have continued to raise awareness and understanding of psychological related issues and how they can be better managed by using the support systems available across Victoria Police. 56 workgroups participated in one or more of our programs in 2011–12.
EXTERNAL RELATIONSHIPS
Victoria Police was successful in being accepted to take part in an organisational health initiative with Deakin University’s Graduate School of Business in collaboration with Melbourne University’s School of Population Health and the Victorian Health Promotion Foundation.
The initiative will be undertaken over the next
2 to 2.5 years and is aimed at demonstrating the types of strategies that organisations can use when identifying and addressing the work-based sources of job-related stress.
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Victoria Police – OHS Governance Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) 2009–12
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	2009–10
	2010–11
	2011–12

	
	FTE
	14,381.4
	14,995
	15,622

	1.
	Incidents and Hazards
	
	
	

	
	Number of incidents
	3,356
	3,481
	4,175

	
	Rate of Incidents
	23.5
	23.2
	26.7

	2.
	Standardised Claims
	
	
	

	
	Number of standard claims lodged this year
	738
	671
	702

	
	Number of standard claims (claims lodged in any year that
	800
	726
	755

	
	became standard this year)
	
	
	

	
	Rate of standard claims per 100 FTEs
	5.3
	4.5
	4.5

	3.
	Lost Time Standard Claims
	
	
	

	
	Number of lost time claims
	282
	288
	232

	
	Rate of lost time claims per 100 FTE’s
	2.0
	1.9
	1.5

	4.
	Number of Claims Lodged this year that exceeded 13 weeks
	90
	91
	83

	
	where a Compensation Payment was made
	
	
	

	
	Number of claims that were active this year that exceeded
	131
	143
	90

	
	13 weeks of compensation payments
	
	
	

	5.
	Compensated Fatalities
	0
	0
	0

	6.
	Average Cost per Claims Actual Costs
	$6,575
	$7,680
	$5,041

	
	Costs plus estimates
	$42,703
	$70,803
	$37,377

	7.
	Return to Work Index
	75.44%
	80.24%
	81.42%

	
	Percentage of workers who have returned to work six months
	
	
	

	
	after the lodgement of a claim which exceeded 10 days time lost.
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	8.
	Management Commitment
	The Victoria Police Safety Management System Safe-T-Works
	

	
	Evidence of OHS Policy statement;
	is embedded into the Victoria Police Manual and communicated
	

	
	
	across the organisation. A formal audit program supports
	

	
	OHS objectives; regular reporting
	
	

	
	
	continuous improvement.
	

	
	to Senior Management of OHS
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	and OHS plans (signed by Chief
	A new “Safety First” campaign covering the next three years
	

	
	Executive Officer or equivalent)
	
	

	
	
	(2012–15) has been endorsed by the CCP (to commence in
	

	
	
	July 2012).
	

	
	
	Regular Compstat (Comparative Statistics) reviews of the
	

	
	
	performance of Divisions across the whole of Victoria Police,
	

	
	
	in an executive-level forum, are conducted, including OHS
	

	
	
	performance.
	

	
	
	Health and Safety activities are integrated into Regional
	

	
	
	and Department Business Plans.
	

	
	
	OHS objectives are identified from analysis of data and
	

	
	
	discussion with relevant stakeholders.
	

	
	
	A Health, Safety and Wellbeing Accountability framework
	

	
	
	outlines the roles and responsibilities of our people at all
	

	
	
	levels and includes KPIs for performance management.
	

	
	
	
	

	9.
	Management Commitment
	Safe-T-Works Management System includes specific procedures
	

	
	Evidence of OHS criteria in
	for purchasing, contractor management and workplace design.
	

	
	
	Each of these highlights the need for OHS specifications to
	

	
	purchasing guidelines (including
	
	

	
	
	be considered as part of the procurement process of goods
	

	
	goods, services and personnel)
	
	

	
	
	or services to be used by or for Victoria Police personnel.
	

	
	
	
	

	
	
	Clarification of these guidelines and OHS expectations
	

	
	
	continues with key stakeholders.
	

	
	
	Examples of procurement processes involving OHS consideration
	

	
	
	in specification development include, but are not limited
	

	
	
	to; firearms, Integrated Operational Equipment Vest (IOEV),
	

	
	
	equipment belts, provision of new uniforms, office furniture,
	

	
	
	major works and Oleoresin Capsicum (OC) spray.
	

	
	
	

	10. Consultation
	All Health and Safety Representatives (HSRs) and deputy
	

	a)  Evidence of agreed structure
	HSRs provided with the opportunity to attend initial and
	

	
	refresher training courses. A preferred supplier panel has
	

	
	of Designated Work Groups (DWG),
	
	

	
	
	been established for this training.
	

	
	Health and Safety Representatives
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	(HSRs) and Issue Resolution
	Issue resolution procedures are actively promoted to address
	

	
	Procedures (IRPs).
	
	

	
	
	disputes as appropriate.
	

	
	
	
	

	
	
	There is a secure private online Intranet Forum for all elected
	

	
	
	HSRs and deputy HSRs to discuss and resolve issues.
	

	b)
	Compliance with agreed
	Consultation at the local level and beyond has been undertaken
	

	
	structure DWG, HSRs and IRPs.
	with Unions, HSRs and region and department representatives
	

	
	
	on specific projects. Examples include: Manual handling
	

	
	
	workshop, uniform committee; major works and renovations.
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	11. Risk Management –
	Safe-T-Works Safety Management System audit program
	

	Regular Internal Audits/
	has continued throughout 2011–12. All audits scheduled
	

	Inspections Conducted
	in 2011–12 were completed with comprehensive findings
	

	
	presented to management. Support and guidance continues
	

	
	to be provided for the development of action plans.
	

	
	A self assessment tool has been developed and implemented
	

	
	and is a practical tool for audit preparation.
	

	
	Approximately 65–70 per cent of Station Hazards Inspection
	

	
	Checks completed by resident staff.
	

	
	
	

	12. Risk Management Issues
	OHS Projects included: Senior Sergeants OHS training; Effective
	

	Identified and Actioned
	OHS committee training; development of Safety Fact Sheets
	

	▶ Internal audits
	for identified issues; Incident investigation and Analysis
	

	
	package; rollout of safety components of HR Assist system;
	

	▶ WorkSafe notices
	
	

	
	risk assessments for new OC Spray, equipment, firearms
	

	
	and uniforms, involvement with major works at the Academy.
	

	
	Forty three (43) Provisional Improvement Notices (PINs)
	

	
	issued and attended to this financial year.
	

	
	
	

	13. Staff and Managers
	Safety induction is delivered to all police recruits (100 per cent)
	

	with OHS Training
	in their first weeks of employment. A Health, Safety and
	

	
	Wellbeing online induction program for VPS employees and
	

	
	temporary staff is now in place with 100 per cent of new
	

	
	starters required to complete the intranet based program
	

	
	within 3 months of commencement.
	

	
	Safety training for recruits continues as part of the preliminary
	

	
	training program. Resilience At Work program developed and
	

	
	implemented across the organisation to over 2000 employees.
	

	
	
	

	14. Health and Safety
	Relevant training is made available to HSRs and deputy
	

	Representatives Training
	HSRs – 98 per cent completed.
	

	
	
	

	15. OHS Survey
	The People Matter survey was conducted with the assistance
	

	
	of the State Services Authority in May 2012. The results will
	

	
	inform future planning.
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Service Delivery
ENTERPRISE BARGAINING AGREEMENT
Enterprise bargaining negotiations were successfully concluded between Victoria Police and The Police Association (TPA) following year long negotiations conducted in accordance with the Government’s wages policy.
The Victoria Police Force Enterprise Bargaining Agreement (EBA) applies to sworn members and contains process reforms, productivity improvements and service efficiencies which,



over time, will deliver enhanced community safety outcomes while also improving policing services through a range of changes to increase operational capacity and capability.
The Government acknowledged that the new plain English EBA delivers workforce improvements that represent the most significant package of reforms to Victoria policing in a generation.
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04  People
2011–12 Honours and Awards
AUSTRALIAN POLICE MEDAL (APM)
(Awarded in recognition of distinguished service by a member of an Australian police force)
Assistant Commissioner BLAYNEY,
John Joseph 19362
Assistant Commissioner CRISP, Andrew Stuart 21169
Senior Sergeant DEVESON, Steven Gordon 19871
Senior Sergeant ILARDI, Gaetano (Joe) 27757
Superintendent NEWBY, Geoffrey Allan 21429
Inspector WADDELL, Stephen James 20582
Commander CARTER, Trevor Estyn 21583
Leading Senior Constable O’BRIEN,
Jeffrey Stephen 25997
Superintendent WATKINS, Richard Julian 23153
Superintendent WILSON, Rodney Graham 19554
MEDAL FOR COURAGE
(Awarded to an employee/s who has/have performed an act of courage in fulfilment of their duties in dangerous and volatile operational circumstances).
Sergeant WILLIAMS, Matthew Robert 32733
Sergeant IGOE, Brian Edward 22584
Constable GUERIN, Courtney Elizabeth 36458
Constable GIAMPICCOLO, Paul Gerald 36176
Senior Constable ANDERTON, Luke Alan 34835
GROUP CITATION MEDAL FOR MERIT
(Awarded to an employee/s who has/have demonstrated exemplary service to Victoria Police and the Victorian community).
Inspector LEWIS, Margaret Ann 21373
Senior Sergeant NICHOLS, Peter Declan 27366
ARCHER, Jodie Nicole VPS5
THOMPSON, Cathrine VPS5
BIENIAK, Laura VPS3
WHELAN, Michael
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MEDAL FOR MERIT
(Awarded to an employee/s who has/have demonstrated exemplary service to Victoria Police and the Victorian community).
Sergeant DUNN, Ian Michael 14653
Superintendent FISK, George William 14687
Leading Senior Constable GAMBLE,
David James 26200
Acting Sergeant LEAN, Daniel John 33676
Superintendent COLE, Shane Robert 19934
CHELIGOY, Elizabeth EO3
CITIZENS COMMENDATIONS
(Awarded to a community member who has performed a conspicuous act of bravery or provided exemplary service in connection with Victoria Police operations or for the community).
ARMSTRONG Mary
PARKER Thomas
BORG Brendan
AUSTRALIAN BRAVERY AWARD
(Awarded for acts of (the most) conspicuous courage in circumstances of extreme/great peril or for acts of bravery in hazardous circumstances)
Sergeant BLICK, Lisa Joy 24988
Senior Constable CAINE, Cameron Scott 32039
Acting Sergeant THOMPSON, Ian Richard 32126
Leading Senior Constable WOOD,
Roger Leonard 24754
Leading Senior Constable COLLYER, Peter Lee 23702
Leading Senior Constable DWIGHT,
Kenneth James 26884
Senior Constable HAMILL, Ian Graham 22768
Senior Constable WALKER, Andrew Peter 27716
ROYAL HUMANE SOCIETY AWARDS
(Awarded if a person risks their life in saving or attempting to save the life of others)
Senior Constable CARVER, Lawrence Lee 32889
Constable COLQUHOUN, Luke Edward 36859
Constable GIAMPICCOLO, Paul Gerald 36176
Sergeant GILLANDERS, Iain 25841
Constable GUERIN, Courtney Elizabeth 36458
Constable MURPHY, Steven Alan Neville 36154
Acting Sergeant LEAN, Daniel John 33676
36
VICTORIA POLICE STARS
(An award for employees killed or seriously injured, on or off duty)
Constable BILBY, Scott Bradley 31288
Detective Senior Sergeant COATES, Patrick Kevin
Francis John 11414
Constable CYGAN, Harry 19672
Constable DUFF, John Alexander 2364
Detective Senior Sergeant HARRISON,
Peter Anthony 21888
Sergeant HENDER, Francis Charles 9751
Leading Senior Constable LOBE, Michael 21100
Constable McDONALD, Rodney Gordon 21544
Constable McGRATH, David Edward 4819
Constable McNEIL, Kenneth 18081
Senior Constable McTIGUE, Shayne Anthony 31288 Sergeant 1st Class PORTER, James 1885
Senior Constable TRELOAR, Warren 26449
VICTORIA POLICE SERVICE MEDAL (8TH CLASP)
(Awarded by the Chief Commissioner in recognition of the sustained diligent and ethical service of Victoria Police employees. Medal issued for 10 years service with a clasp issued for each further period of 5 years eligible service).
Sergeant DUNN, Ian Michael 14653
Superintendent FISK, George William 14687
Inspector WILLS, John 14240
Corporate Strategy and Governance’s Superintendent George Fisk and Heidelberg Prosecutions’ Sergeant Ian Dunn celebrated 50 years of service on 6 February 2012. Inspector John Wills also achieved 50 years of service on 27 April 2012.
MEDAL (OAM) OF THE ORDER OF AUSTRALIA GENERAL DIVISION
Senior Constable CAINE, Cameron Scott 32039
Senior Constable Cameron Caine received an Order of Australia (OAM) GENERAL DIVISION on Queen’s Birthday 2012 for service to the
community of Kinglake, during and in the aftermath of the 2009 ‘Black Saturday’ Victorian Bushfires.
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INITIATIVES AND ACHIEVEMENTS
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Corporate Initiatives
GENERAL DUTIES UNIFORM PROJECT
In 2011–12, the new Victoria Police dark blue-coloured uniform was launched.
Victoria Police has not had a holistic uniform change for more than 30 years and the General Duties Uniform Project aimed to bring the uniform in line with today’s modern policing needs by developing
a fit-for-purpose and professional uniform.
Since concept designs were released to the public in June 2011, significant progress has been made.
Specifications were developed for 14 garments across six tender categories, with a bundled Request for Tender being released to the market in August 2011. Given the breadth and complexity of the tender, potential suppliers were given 12 weeks to respond to the tender.
After extensive testing and evaluation, shortlisted suppliers were selected and notified in early February 2012. User trials were conducted between May and June 2012, with 150 police in a range of operational duties across Victoria involved in the trial.
The project has also been working on a new-look peak cap that is more comfortable, lightweight and integrates with the solid dark blue-coloured uniform. Changes to the peak cap are expected to be completed by November 2012.
The project is scheduled to enter into contract negotiations with proposed suppliers in the first quarter of 2012–13. A final tender evaluation report is due to be completed by August 2012, with relevant procurement approvals to be sought in the second quarter of 2012–13.
The uniform is scheduled to be launched at the end of 2012 with transition to follow in 2013.
Operational and Emergency
Management
FIREARMS: DEPLOYMENT OF SEMI-AUTOMATIC
PISTOLS (SAPs)
The transition to Semi-Automatic Pistols (SAPs) across Victoria Police continued in 2011–12.
As part of the transition, all operational members are required to attend a five-day training course before being authorised to use a SAP.
The five-day course covers weapon familiarisation, cleaning, safety and firearm justification.
An additional full day is also dedicated to less lethal training options including tactical communication, conflict resolution, cordon, containment and self defence.
During training, members fire up to 600 rounds each before becoming qualified to use the SAP.



The Firearms Replacement Project and OTST Units run 10 courses per week across Victoria. Members who are SAP qualified are required to undertake a refresher course 90 days and 180 days after their initial qualification. Members who were still using revolvers at the end of 2011 requalified in revolver use for 2012.
More than 50,000 pieces of equipment including SAPs, holsters, magazine pouches, torches, gun safes and unloading devices have been delivered to members, stations and OTST venues. Equipment components include the SAP, tactical lighting device, new ammunition, holsters, small torch, rechargeable batteries, magazine pouch, safe load and unload devices at police stations, weapon cleaning equipment and secure carry cases.
It is anticipated that deployment of the new firearms will be completed by the end of 2012, and that the last of the revolvers in use at Victoria Police will
be removed from service by 31 December 2012.
TASERS: CONDUCTED ENERGY DEVICES (CEDs)
In February 2012, CCP Lay approved the phased implementation of Conducted Energy Devices (CEDs), otherwise known as ‘tasers’, as standard operational equipment across Victoria Police.
CEDs give frontline police an additional tactical option and enhanced capability to help resolve high-risk situations and incidents without using lethal force. The CED rollout aims to minimise the need for lethal force when responding to incidents or threats of violence. All police with access to the CEDs will be fully trained in their use.
The rollout of CEDs across Victoria Police follows a successful 12-month trial in the Bendigo and Morwell PSAs from July 2010. The comprehensive and rigorous trial was independently evaluated.
Following the trial, Victoria Police is expanding its use of CEDs, with training and procurement commencing for rollout to the Geelong, Corio, Ballarat, Traralgon and Moe areas.
The final evaluation of the Victoria Police Conducted Energy Device Pilot Project, which examined a range of materials and considered interview feedback, supports the assertion that the CED is an effective tactical option in safely resolving critical incidents.
Strict accountability processes are in place for
the use of CEDs in Victoria and these are continually monitored by Victoria Police. Their use is strictly governed by policy and legislation, with robust governance and reporting arrangements in place
to ensure full compliance and appropriate use. Victoria has the most stringent criteria and thresholds for use of CEDs of any law enforcement jurisdiction in Australia.
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PROJECT AIM
The Advancing Investigation Management (AIM) model, which supports members in the investigative process, was approved for metropolitan rollout
in 2011–12. The Project AIM model was designed after extensive consultation with members and pilot programs at one rural (Morwell) and two metropolitan (Moorabbin and Fawkner) divisions.
The project is focused on improving the management of investigations in preparation for future demands on investigation across the organisation.
The goals of Project AIM are to:
· Define and describe what the investigation role will be like in the future; 
· Design a model for managing investigations; and 
· Design a career structure for all Victoria Police investigators. 
Implementation involves the recruitment of Intelligence and Investigation Support Officers for each division, the creation of Tasking and Coordination Managers at inspector level, and the recording of all investigation and response work and unit investigations on the Interpose case
management system. There are also new processes for initial action, crime screening, handover and ongoing case management.
All police in rollout locations are trained by the Project AIM team, which includes a three-day Supervisor Response and Crime Scene Management Course.
Implementation of the Project will be incremental with a schedule developed in consultation with regional commanders. Dandenong and Frankston are the first divisions to commence the rollout.
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OPERATION FIRESETTER
The Bushfire Arson Prevention Campaign, ‘Operation Firesetter’, was launched in November 2011 in response to recommendations from the Bushfire Royal Commission. Operation Firesetter will be reactivated annually.
The state-wide operation aims to reduce deliberately-lit fires across Victoria by targeting suspicious, intentional or reckless bushfire activity. It involves enhanced police patrols during the bushfire season in 39 PSAs where Victoria Police suspects there has been a deliberately-lit bushfire within the last 10 years. The operation is activated on days where the fire danger rating is forecast to be Severe, Extreme or Code Red for a designated CFA or Victoria Police service area.
As part of Operation Firesetter, highly visible police patrols are conducted to prevent and apprehend arsonists. As well as proactively patrolling identified arson risk areas during high-risk times, Operation Firesetter patrols intercept suspicious people or vehicles and inquire about any reported or detected suspicious activity.
Arson prevention activities are also boosted in the areas Victoria Police has identified as at risk of bushfire arson. These areas were identified because of their location and significant population and represent a wide geographic spread across the state.
Prevention activities include door-knocking at residences, visiting shopping centres and primary and secondary schools in bushfire prone areas to educate the community about how they can assist in preventing bushfire arson.
Dedicated police patrols intensify across the state during periods of high fire danger with specialist support resources drawn from the Operations Response Unit (ORU) to assist local police and Operation Firesetter.
—
Project AIM is focused on improving the management of investigations in preparation for future demands on
investigation across the organisation.
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OPERATION NORTHBANK
Operation Northbank is an initiative of the North West Metro Region, specifically targeting antisocial youth gang activity and serious crime
across the region. The operation complements the SafeStreets Taskforce and Public Order Response Team (PORT) models.
Operation Northbank started on 4 May 2012 and will run until the end of August 2012. It aims to reduce the incidence of serious crimes against the person through:
· Intelligence; 
· Disruption; 
· Enforcement; and 
· Investigation. 
Each Operation Northbank shift is led by a detective senior sergeant with a team of 20 plain clothes members in five unmarked vehicles. The team targets areas identified by an intelligence-led process. Staffing is drawn from the North West Metro Region’s Crime Investigation and Divisional Response Units.
Reported crime statistics to the end of June 2012, demonstrate a dramatic decline in robberies, serious assaults and affrays in the Operation Northbank area, compared to the same period in 2010–11.
Operations Support Department
ORU DEPLOYMENT TO CHOGM
More than 100 members of the ORU were deployed to Perth, Western Australia, in October 2011 to assist in policing and security for the Commonwealth Heads of Government Meeting (CHOGM). Members assisted in providing security for visiting Prime Ministers and delegates attending the conference. The professionalism of the ORU members for this deployment was nothing short of exceptional. The daily presentation and commitment of the ORU at CHOGM, following on from the unit’s deployment
to Christchurch, New Zealand to assist in the aftermath of the February 2011 earthquake, again enhanced Victoria Police’s reputation with other police jurisdictions both within Australia and internationally.
OUTLAW MOTORCYCLE GANGS (OMCGS)
The ORU worked closely with Taskforce Echo to develop a vehicle checkpoint package for OMCG operations in Victoria. This package was tested by the ORU, Taskforce Echo and members of Western Region Divisions 5 and 6 in October 2011, with members of the Rebels OMCG during their national run in Mildura. Since then, similar operations on other OMCGs involving ORU members, Taskforce Echo and North West Metro, Southern Metro and Eastern regions have been conducted successfully.



PUBLIC ORDER RESPONSE TEAM (PORT)
The PORT commenced operation in June 2011. In specially-marked vehicles and dark coloured uniforms, members of the unit worked across the state throughout 2011–12, supporting local units
with day-to-day policing issues, particularly around public order. Members of PORT work every Thursday, Friday and Saturday night and Sunday afternoon, focusing their attention on the Melbourne CBD and the cities of Stonnington and Port Phillip. Since PORT was established, its members have spoken to more than 15,000 people, arrested more than 700 people for various offences and issued 3000 crime and traffic penalty notices. In October/November 2011, the PORT was instrumental in dispersing Occupy Melbourne protestors. The PORT have continued to work with the Mounted Branch and Dog Squad in refining tactics that can be used in demonstrations, riots and other unruly crowd situations.
TRANSIT CRIME INVESTIGATION UNIT (CIU): ROBBERY TASKFORCE
The Transit CIU Robbery Taskforce (RTF) is responsible for the investigation of all robbery and armed robbery offences, including attempts, committed on the public transport system.
This includes all trains, railway stations, station car parks, trams, buses and transport hubs.
The RTF coordinates robbery and armed robbery investigations, liaises with the officers in charge
of regional CIUs, provides liaison for the Armed Crime Taskforce and other regional Embona Taskforces, and monitors recidivist offender bail compliance.
In 2011–12, the unit made a concerted effort to ramp up its bail compliance activities, with members being rostered specifically to perform ‘target hardening’ duties and processing offenders found to be breaching bail conditions or curfews. These activities specifically target recidivist offenders on the public transport system, and have positively impacted on reducing crimes against the person and improving public perceptions of safety. Proactive measures such as Operation Lumpy’s, which targets identified high-risk locations of criminal behaviour, and Operation Round-Ups, where coordinated arrests
of multiple suspects are conducted, have also contributed to favourable statistical results.
The focus of the unit in 2011–12 has also been to improve engagement with divisional Embona units, working collaboratively to reduce crimes against the person by sharing resources during routine and planned operations. Improved liaison between
Tactical Intelligence Operatives (TIOs) and Divisional Intelligence Units (DIUs) towards intelligence gathering and exchange has also had a positive impact on reducing crime.
An improved partnership between Transit CIU and Public Transport Victoria has had a positive influence on reporting of crime, intelligence capture and CCTV analysis.
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MAJOR COLLISION INVESTIGATION GROUP (MCIG)
The Victoria Police Major Collision Investigation Group (MCIG) attends and investigates fatal or life threatening injury collisions where there is evidence of a surviving driver committing a serious criminal offence.
Investigators at the MCIG have historically attended and qualified at the Major Collision Investigation Course and, in some cases, the Field Investigations Course. These courses are continually being updated to increase the capability of MCIG investigators
to understand the requirements of modern investigations and complexities of collision scenes attended and investigated. This ensures that high quality investigative responses are undertaken, as MCIG investigators are exposed to the best training available. Continual improvement and training also ensures that MCIG investigators are able to progress into allied investigative fields such as those at the Crime Department or divisional CIUs.
As a result of a comprehensive review, investigators at the MCIG transitioned to ‘detective status’ and were able to attend and qualify at the Centre for Investigator Training. The adoption of detective status and provision of detective training has provided improved service delivery and an improved career structure for members at, and those seeking appointment to, the MCIG.
POLICING OPERATIONS AND INVESTIGATION DIVISION (STATE HIGHWAY PATROL HEAVY VEHICLE UNIT): OPERATION AUSTRANS
Operation Austrans, a Victoria Police initiative,
is a national heavy vehicle enforcement operation that has been conducted annually under various guises since 1989.
The operation has grown to encompass regulatory authorities from all Australian states and New Zealand conducting similar coordinated efforts.
In Victoria, the operation is run by the State Highway Patrol with the support of regional Highway Patrol Units and general duties police. It targets the road transport industry, particularly truck drivers and operators, as heavy vehicle collisions represent not only a huge impost to the Victorian community in terms of death and serious injury, but also financially.
As a result of long transport distances combined with strong competition in the transport industry, drivers of heavy vehicles travel for lengthy periods of time, sometimes without taking the required and necessary rest breaks. Breaches of the regulated
work and rest hours occur and falsification of drivers’ records is not uncommon in an attempt to hide illegal activities. Driver fatigue is recognised as a major contributor in serious collisions involving heavy vehicles. Some drivers resort to using amphetamines and/or other drugs to overcome fatigue and an increase in these instances is apparent.
Operation Austrans targets heavy vehicles only and during May 2012 a total of 7215 heavy vehicles of various sizes and combinations were checked in Victoria. The Victoria Police results for 2012 included:
· 4208 preliminary breath tests; 
· 2268 preliminary oral fluid tests; 
· 78 positive oral fluid tests; 
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· 15 drug offences; 
· 174 seatbelt offences; 
· 99 speeding offences; 
· 80 defect notices for speed limiter tampering offences and a further 913 defects for other mechanical shortfalls on trucks; 
· 34 unlicensed drivers; and 
· 665 fatigue-related offences (work diary offences). 
In addition to these results, members of the Heavy Vehicle Unit used their powers under the Road Safety Act 1986 to enter and conduct searches at three transport companies under the Chain of Responsibility legislation. The searches resulted in the identification of an initial 135 offences with investigations ongoing.
Operation Austrans creates wide media interest with stories running on television, in radio and print. Industry publications also highlight police activities. The operation highlights the likelihood of detection to people involved in the transport and heavy vehicle industry who are failing to manage their road safety and community obligations.
Crime Department
ECHO TASKFORCE
In 2011–12, the Echo Taskforce continued to develop and maintain strong relationships with other national and international law enforcement agencies, which has resulted in excellent information and intelligence sharing. Strong partnerships and improved intelligence and resource sharing are also in place with non-law enforcement-based agencies such as Australian Customs, the Australian Taxation Office and Victorian Sherriff’s Office.
A number of factors have contributed to the Echo Taskforce’s success in disrupting OMCGs during the past 12 months:
· Good lines of communication have been developed with OMCGs, which have been used to defuse emerging issues; 
· There is a heavy focus on the training of members at Victoria Police to improve their understanding of OMCGs. The Taskforce also provides training presentations to other organisations such as 
the Metropolitan Fire Brigade (MFB) and Corrections Victoria; 
· The Crime Department and Victoria Police regions work closely in all aspects of OMCG policing (e.g. serious and organised crime, public order policing and road safety matters); 
· Management guidelines for OMCG runs and rides involving large groups of OMCG members have been developed to assist regional managers in planning for these events. 
· The strong marketing of the Echo Taskforce internally and externally has ensured members have a good understanding of the Taskforce and feed through information and intelligence; and 
· The Taskforce works closely with the DoJ to make recommendations for legislative reform. 
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LIVESTOCK AND FARM-RELATED CRIME STRATEGY
In October 2011, the Livestock and Farm Crime Specialists Group was launched to support and improve investigations into stolen livestock and other farm-related crime. Underpinning a decentralised resourcing approach with central coordination
from the Specialists Community of Practice (SCoP) Framework is the Livestock Theft and Farm Related Crime Strategy 2012–15, launched at the Inaugural Livestock and Farm Crime Specialist Group State Conference in April 2012.
Key elements of the Specialists Group are:
· A network of subject matter consultants – Agricultural Liaison Officers (AGLOs) – who are specialists and are recognised as having high levels of knowledge, skills and expertise to deal with livestock theft and farm-related crime; 
· A central information hub, which is available to all police, provides all users, especially AGLOs, with timely access to information from various authoritative sources. In time it will be used to deliver distance education and training; and 
· A Strategic Advisory Group, including representatives from the Victorian Farmers Federation, Department of Primary Industries and the Municipal Association of Victoria. The group has regular meetings to discuss emerging trends and issues relating to livestock theft and farm-related crime. Over time, it is intended that additional stakeholder representatives will be included. 
There are shared responsibilities between law enforcement and agricultural industry stakeholders. Victoria Police integrates with its partners to conduct joint operations and responses to livestock theft and farm-related crime.
SERIOUS CRIME AND ORGANISED
CRIME FRAMEWORK
The Serious Crime and Organised Crime Framework is part of a Crime Department initiative to inform the community, key stakeholders from state and federal governments and law enforcement agencies on how Victoria Police will improve detection, increase prevention and disrupt serious crime
and organised crime.
The framework will assist Victoria Police in building the strategic operational capability and capacity to effectively undertake high level serious crime and organised crime investigations. It includes operational and non-operational mechanisms to address serious crime and organised crime.



The framework guides improvement in:
· Organisational governance over serious crime and organised crime investigations; 
· Leadership and management development; 
· Strategy development; 
· Government and stakeholder partnership development; 
· Community engagement; 
· Early intervention and diversion techniques to reduce the level of criminal behaviour; and 
· Development of proactive research agendas for organised crime. 
The framework outlines the focus for Victoria Police to improve service to the community through enhanced serious crime and organised crime investigation. Victoria Police will work in partnership with local, national and international government agencies, industry members and the community
to respond to serious crime and organised crime.
CRIME INTELLIGENCE GROUP (CIG)
On 1 July 2011, the Crime Intelligence Group (CIG) was formed. This initiative saw the Crime Department’s Crime Analysts and TIOs being placed under a specialist management structure with the aim of increasing the department’s intelligence capability. Since being formed, the CIG has developed a stronger link between the Crime and Intelligence and Covert Support departments with better information feeding into the tasking
and coordination process.
TASKFORCE CLAYS
In 2011–12, Taskforce Clays was established to investigate a Health Department complaint
following a number of victims contracting Hepatitis C from a Croydon day surgery. The investigation identified fifty-four victims, with the doctor allegedly responsible being charged and committed to stand trial in January 2013.
CORRUPTION IN SPORT
In December 2011, the first of a series of workshops was held by Victoria Police to examine how police can work with major sporting bodies to help prevent organised crime threatening the integrity of relevant sports. Since then, further meetings and workshops have been held with key internal and external agencies to develop the proactive and reactive capability of police to address this issue in future.
This theme will continue to be a focus for Victoria Police through the development of a Corruption in Sport Specialist Community of Practice.
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JOINT COUNTER TERRORISM TEAM (JCTT)
The Melbourne Joint Counter Terrorism Team (JCTT) is a multi-agency taskforce comprising Victoria Police’s Crime Department, Australian Federal Police (AFP) and the Commonwealth Attorney-General’s Department. The JCTT conducts investigations to prevent, respond to, and investigate terrorist threats or attacks.
There are JCTTs maintained across each Australian jurisdiction and the multi-jurisdictional and transnational nature of terrorism requires that JCTTs provide a flexible and adaptive response
to these investigations. The JCTT conducts counter terrorism operations with the intention of disrupting terrorism and/or criminal prosecutions relevant to federal terrorism legislation.
The JCTT collaborates and has effective partnerships with a number of internal workgroups and external agencies within the counter terrorism theme.
JOINT ORGANISED CRIME TASKFORCE (JOCTF) AND NATIONAL ORGANISED CRIME TASKFORCE (NOCTF)
The JOCTF, based in Melbourne, and the NOCTF, in Sydney, focus on a multi-agency approach to organised crime entities. The JOCTF targets offenders on the National Organised Crime Target List who operate in Victoria.
Public Safety
SEXUAL AND FAMILY VIOLENCE
Victoria Police continued to improve its response
to violence against women and children, particularly in responding effectively to sexual assault, family violence and child abuse as outlined in the Living Free from Violence – Upholding the Right: Victoria Police Strategy to Reduce Violence Against Women and Children 2009–2014. CCP Lay highlighted that violence against women and children was a key priority for Victoria Police and in supporting this,
a Sexual and Family Violence Directorate was created in the Crime Department, overseen by a detective superintendent with responsibility for all sexual and family violence-related crime themes.
Taskforce Astraea
Taskforce Astraea was established in February 2012 to identify and investigate online child exploitation. The Taskforce is attached to the Sexual Crimes Squad and has an ongoing member exchange program with the AFP. The members specialise
in online investigations where sex offenders use social media platforms as a means to target and sexually assault vulnerable children.
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Taskforce Astraea contains objectives for a broad response which combines the following two elements:
· Strengthening Victoria Police’s capability 
and capacity to manage intelligence on sexual offenders and child abuse offences; and 
· Expanding Victoria Police’s Internet Child Exploitation Team (ICET) to undertake proactive investigations. 
The Taskforce is supported by a research and education area to ensure it is able to keep up with rapidly changing technology and the methodologies employed by offenders to avoid detection. It has
a covert capacity allowing police to target people actively grooming and attempting to procure children on popular chat rooms, and investigates the large-scale manufacturing, downloading and sharing
of child exploitation material. To date, more than 30 offenders have been arrested, 100 IP addresses closed down and in excess of 400,000 explicit images removed from the internet.
Victoria Police is also working on enhancing relationships with other state and federal law enforcement agencies, including working at a national level to improve its capacity to classify child pornography images to assist in investigation and prosecution.
Sexual Offences and Child Abuse Investigation
Team (SOCIT)
The SOCIT model has seen the creation of specialist units comprising of highly trained detectives to investigate the complex crimes of sexual assault and child abuse and respond to victims with dignity and respect. Commencing in 2009, the state-wide transition to the SOCIT model was completed
in February 2012 and now has 27 specialist units across the state. Three of these SOCITs are housed within Multidisciplinary Centres (MDCs) in Geelong, Frankston and Mildura, where police are located with sexual assault counsellors and child protection workers and have strong links to forensic medical services.
In addition, the 2012–13 State Budget announced funding for three new MDCs to be established over the next four years in metropolitan Melbourne, Bendigo and the Latrobe Valley. The funding will build on the child and adult sexual assault initiatives that have been implemented by Victoria Police and the Department of Human Services (DHS), together with Centres Against Sexual Assault (CASA) and forensic services.
Truth Testimony and Relevance Conference
Victoria Police, the Australian Centre of the Study of Sexual Assault based at the Australian Institute of Family Studies, and the Australian Institute of Criminology hosted a conference in May 2012 titled
Truth, Testimony and Relevance: Improving the quality of evidence in sexual offence cases. It was extremely successful and attracted speakers and participants from the judiciary, lawyers, police, prosecutors and researchers from across Australia and internationally.
44
The conference brought police investigators, researchers, prosecutors, relevant policy makers and the judiciary together for two days to explore the empirical evidence base about how offenders offend, the barriers to getting this information into the prosecution and court processes, and possible solutions to this that are relevant to and work for legal practice.
The conference focused on the disconnect that is apparent between the knowledge base about how sexual assault and abuse perpetrators set up, carry out and conceal their offending, and the way in which these offences are presented to and tried at criminal courts. Much of the information about how those assaults occurred (whether over hours, months
or years) is viewed by legal professionals as inadmissible evidence. This impacts on the capacity of the criminal justice system to adequately adjudicate because the whole story is unavailable.
At the same time, a public health prevention approach sees sexual violence as a primarily behavioural, rather than legal, problem to address. However, an understanding of offending behaviours is lost in translation as it moves into the legal field.
The conference organisers are producing an options paper that sets out approaches to improving the capacity of the justice system to identify what is relevant in victim’s accounts in order to inform
and enhance the criminal justice process.
Enhanced Family Violence Service Delivery Model
On 25 November 2011, CCP Lay launched the Enhanced Family Violence Service Delivery Model. The model represents Victoria Police’s commitment to responding to family violence for the next three years and includes a number of key projects, including targeting recidivist offenders and reducing repeat victimisation. Intelligence tools have been developed to identify and target these groups and improve early intervention efforts. A review of family violence training across the organisation has begun, and standardised role descriptions for specialist functions are being developed. As part of the model, a number of family violence teams across the
state have been established to support this work where demand is significant. The number of teams across the state has increased from 9 to 15 since November 2011.
Upfront Project
Victoria Police’s Upfront Project aims to improve frontline service delivery. During 2011–12 there has been a strong focus on family violence. A key piece of work has been the pilot of a streamlined template for the ‘Family Violence Risk Assessment and Risk Management Report’ which police use when attending a family violence incident. The pilot is being evaluated to inform future practice and will be rolled out across Victoria in 2012–13. This will significantly improve efficiencies for police when completing these reports and improve the information provided to services that receive referrals from police to assist them in effectively responding to victims of family violence following police intervention.



Indigenous Community Awareness Campaign
In 2008, the Indigenous Family Violence and Sexual Assault Awareness Campaign commenced and supports the Indigenous Strong Culture, Strong Peoples, Strong Families: Towards a safer future for Indigenous families and communities 10-year plan. The campaign is designed to target Indigenous people of all ages and both genders from four regional locations:
· Warrnambool; 
· Bairnsdale; 
· Shepparton/Echuca; and 
· Grampians. 
In 2011–12, the campaign included the creation of four 30-second television commercials for each regional location reinforcing the message that family violence is not part of Indigenous culture. Each regional television commercial reinforces particular issues relevant to, and created by, the local community. The commercials are currently being aired across the respective regional areas.
Local Indigenous Community Family Violence
Protocols Project
The Local Indigenous Family Violence Police Protocols Project is an initiative of the Aboriginal Justice Agreement (Phase 2), supporting goals identified in the Victorian Indigenous Affairs Framework, the Victorian Aboriginal Justice Agreement and Strong Culture, Strong Peoples, Strong Families 10-year plan. The project focuses on improving the police response to incidents of family violence in three Aboriginal communities – Mildura, Bairnsdale and Darebin – by developing protocols for police investigating incidents of family violence in the Koori community. Victoria Police has received funding from the State Government to expand the project to the Grampians and Shepparton areas. This work will continue in 2012–13.
Research Initiatives
Victoria Police, together with a variety of government partners and universities, has been involved in Australian Research Council-funded research projects relating to family violence and sexual assault. These research projects provide valuable information on how Victoria Police can enhance
its response to these crime themes.
In 2011–12, the Safety and Accountability in Families: Evidence and Research (SAFER) project conducted a review of the Victoria Police CoPIFV. This review will contribute to enhancing the guidance provided to police when responding to family violence, with
particular emphasis on supervision, risk assessment and risk management. A final report is expected to be available in early 2013.
The Policing Just Outcomes in Adult Sexual Assault project was completed at the end of 2011–12 and reports are being finalised. This important research and analysis covers police responses to reports of sexual offences, the management and investigation outcomes of these reports and the experiences and decision making of victims/survivors in regard to the reporting of sexual assault.
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Community Engagement
Victoria Police relies on having strong relationships with community stakeholders to deliver policing services that meet the specific needs of individuals and groups in the community. These relationships provide a pathway for stakeholders to communicate issues, priorities and advice to Victoria Police, and they also enable the organisation to communicate its strategies and responses to stakeholders.
As the Victorian environment continues to change rapidly and dynamically, Victoria Police has examined the changes it has to make in order to continue to meet existing community needs and expectations, while also being capable of identifying and responding to emerging requirements. As a result, the Enhanced Community Engagement Model
came into effect on 1 March 2012.
ENHANCED COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT MODEL
The Model provides specific responsibility for community engagement at each level (local, regional and state-wide) of the organisation. At each level, Victoria Police employees have two areas of focus:
1. To build and maintain two-way relationships with key community stakeholders to discuss community needs and expectations and to work together on effective and appropriate responses; and 

2. To advise others in Victoria Police of these needs and expectations so that they can also provide support. 

The Community Engagement responsibility at each level is as follows:
Leadership
CCP Lay appointed the DC Regional and Road Policing as the head of the Community Engagement portfolio for the organisation. The DC provides executive leadership on the strategic direction and key initiatives for Community Engagement. As the holder of the Regional Operations portfolio, the DC is responsible for ensuring that Community Engagement underpins policing policy and practices.
A dedicated Community Engagement Office, headed by the Commander, Community Engagement Advisor’s Office, represents Victoria Police on peak bodies, providing policing expertise to these bodies and advice on community issues to the Chief Commissioner and the DCs. The Commander has
a state-wide perspective and therefore identifies opportunities to improve police policy, practice and training.
The Commander is the key liaison for Victoria Police on high level and state-wide issues affecting diverse communities.
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Corporate Support
Translating these opportunities into new policy, programs or proposals for law reform is the responsibility of units within the Corporate Strategy and Governance Department. These units include subject matter experts from the former Operations Coordination Department and additional staff.
The units are:
· Community Engagement Support Team (CEST) – sets standards for police responses to community needs, works with other government agencies 
to improve service delivery and provides expert advice to other areas of Victoria Police on 
multicultural, youth, mental health, disability, GLBTI, aged and human rights issues;
· Aboriginal Policy and Research – sets standards for police responses to Indigenous issues, works with other government agencies to improve service delivery and provides expert advice to other areas of Victoria Police on Indigenous issues; 
· Strategic and Emerging Issues – identifies and considers issues that require a new or different police service and develops proposed responses; and 
· Strategic Projects Implementation – makes changes to police policy, practice and training so that improvements become part of business as usual. 
In addition, the Safer Communities Unit has been located within the Media and Corporate Communications Department to provide support and advisory services to Neighbourhood Watch coordinators and Crime Prevention Officers who assist frontline police to work more effectively across a range of community-focused policies, programs and strategies.
Education
Dedicated positions have been created in the Centre for Ethics, Community Engagement and Communication within the People Development Department to develop and deliver training to police recruits, operational police and PSOs on identifying and responding to community needs and priorities.
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Frontline Policing
Developing and monitoring the police response to local community needs and priorities is the
responsibility of dedicated Community Engagement Inspectors in each region across Victoria Police. These Inspectors are supported by liaison officers for key program areas such as new and emerging communities, multicultural issues, mental health and indigenous communities. These police are responsible for creating and maintaining relationships with local community stakeholders and providing a point of contact for addressing local issues.
Mental Health
Southern Metro Region commenced a 12-month trial of a Police and Community Triage (PACT) team, in partnership with Southern Health. Using the SupportLink electronic referral process, police refer consenting individuals to a team of case workers, who assess the individual’s needs and support them to make contact with local health and welfare services. PACT provides assertive outreach and advocacy for complex clients to assist them to make contact with a service and remain engaged. The trial will be evaluated to determine its future operation.
The Southern Metro Region also concluded the trial of the multi-disciplinary secondary response unit – Police, Ambulance and Crisis Assessment Team Early Response (PACER) – based at Moorabbin police station and commenced a similar trial based at Prahran police station. Comprising an operational police member and a mental health clinician operating an eight hour shift each day, the unit responds to requests for assistance from divisional vans and ambulance paramedics to situations involving people believed to be in mental health crisis. The unit also proactively monitors the police radio for incidents that may not be identified as mental health crises (including family violence and neighbourhood disputes). The Moorabbin-based trial was independently evaluated by Allen Consulting Group as cost-effective and the Prahran-based trial is in the process of being evaluated.
Project PRIMeD
The five-year Police Responses to the Interface with Mental Disorder (PRIMeD) collaborative research project between Victoria Police, Forensicare and Monash University, partly funded by an Australian Research Council grant, concluded in 2011–12. The project researched 13 different aspects of policing and mental health, including a symptoms study of people in police cells, police knowledge and attitudes to mental illness, a use of force study, and analysis of the Mental Disorder Transfer Form data. The results continue to inform practice and services development, including police training.



Human Rights Program
Human Rights audits continue to be conducted to confirm the human rights compliance of the different operational activities. In 2011–12, Victoria Police completed an exhaustive audit of current facilities of detention, to prepare for Australia’s commitment to the United Nations Optional Protocols against Torture and Degrading Treatment (OPCAT). As part
of this process, Mental Health First Aid was identified as an ongoing priority.
Victoria Police also contributed to the Charter on Human Rights and Responsibilities Act 2006 review, with a written submission to The Scrutiny of Acts and Regulations Committee (SARC), as well as a presentation to the Committee by the Deputy Commissioner, Regional and Road Policing.
Human rights education and information continues to be offered to Victoria Police staff, with case studies to give police confidence in providing services to people with disabilities, diverse communities and young people. Operational members working in Traffic and Transit continue to be a priority because the human rights education includes the current changes to the Equal Opportunity provisions.
Victoria Police Human Rights education has also been nominated as a model of good practice, and is included in the United Nations Human Rights
Education DVD, to celebrate human rights education. Victoria Police is the only public authority presented in the DVD.
Education and Training
The Community Engagement Support Team provides specialist input into the curriculum for police recruits and PSO education and training, as well as direct input into the training, such as bringing community members in to meet police recruits. In 2011–12,
the Team contributed to training to:
· 35 Squads containing on average 26 recruits each; 
· 11 Squads containing on average 20 PSO recruits each; and 
· 30 Community Encounters Sessions involving volunteers representing multicultural, indigenous, GLBTI and mental health communities. 
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Youth, GLBTI and Multicultural Program
The Action Plan to support the Victoria Police Child and Youth Strategy, and the necessary infrastructure was completed. This enabled the Youth Support Service Police Youth referral model to be rolled out. A Good Practice Guide on Working with Young people was also developed and uploaded to the Victoria Police Intranet for ready access by operational members.
The Youth Program also contributed to the development of an OTST course on police practice in managing young people in mental health crisis, following a Coroner’s report.
The Multicultural Program provided:
· 14 Cultural Competency sessions with a total of 
242 members from Traffic and Transit Division; and 

· 9 Cultural Competency Sessions with a total of 
172 members from other departments, such as the Crime Department. 

The Youth Program facilitated and delivered the Youth Resource Officer (YRO) Course in collaboration with the Centre for Adolescent Youth Health (University of Melbourne) and the Victoria Police Drug and Alcohol Strategy Unit. YROs also received the Fit to Drive training, which enables them to work with young people around road traffic and driving issues.
Managing Expectations
As part of the Government’s Newly Arrived initiatives, 21 community information sessions were delivered to newly arrived communities, focusing on prevention of family violence and the role of Victoria Police in the process.
The Youth Program delivered information to DHS Youth Justice Practitioners on specific issues involved in enabling young people through the police processes. This training and information is also delivered to Bail Justices, particularly with regard to bail and remand applications for young people.
Specialist Support
The Community Engagement Support Team also provides specialist services, including assisting bilingual staff to be accredited in LOTE (Language Other than English). To date, 75 Victoria Police staff have participated in relevant language workshops and accreditation testing.
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Custodial Risk Management Unit
VICTORIA POLICE CUSTODIAL HEALTH
SERVICE PROJECT
The Victoria Police Custodial Health Service Project commenced in September 2011 with the aim of developing sustainable solutions to issues related to persons in police custody and to identify options for a future service model.
The project identified seven strategic interventions to improve the clinical services provided to persons in police custody and support operational police:
1. Redesigning access and entry to the service; 

2. Restructuring and standardising the service model; 

3. Ensuring members liaise with custodial health staff regarding all detainee health-related incidents and risks; 

4. Redesigning the allocation systems for custodial health staff; 

5. Developing formal clinical governance systems; 

6. Developing service activity, quality and outcome measurement systems; and 

7. Realigning management roles and responsibilities for the service. 

The project was approved by VPE in May 2012 and work has begun on developing and piloting the key recommendations.
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Intelligence and Covert Support
Department
POLICING INFORMATION PROCESS AND PRACTICE (PIPP)
The PIPP Reform Project will define and set a clear vision for Victoria Police’s operational system and information requirements to support modern policing up to 2030.
Phase One of the project is currently underway and consists of a process, system and information review. In cooperation with designated staff across
Victoria Police, the project is capturing and analysing information about the organisation’s main operational scenarios, plus an assessment of the existing and planned systems that manage information.
The findings from Phase One will inform future phases of the PIPP project, which will result in
a roadmap for implementation of the operational systems and information changes needed to achieve the 2030 modern policing vision.
PRISONS INTELLIGENCE UNIT (PIU)
In July 2011, Victoria Police established the Prisons Intelligence Unit (PIU) within the Intelligence Collection and Liaison Unit. This followed discussions between Victoria Police and Corrections Victoria about the formation of a joint intelligence unit in December 2010.
The unit aims to be the most comprehensive source of intelligence relating to crime associated with Victorian correctional facilities.
The PIU is responsible for contributing to the risk assessment and management of high-risk prisoners in the Victorian prison system, including the coordination and management of the risk and threat assessment process for the Custodial Witness Management Program.
SEX OFFENDERS REGISTRY (SOR)
Funding of $8.8 million has been provided in the 2012–13 State Budget to support Victoria Police in the management of high-risk registrants.
The funding will enable Victoria Police to engage specialist clinical assistance and civilian analysts to identify and manage the risk posed by high-risk Registered Sex Offenders (RSOs).
The anticipated benefits for the community are:
· Children and the Victorian community will be better protected from sexual predators; 
· The recidivism rates of RSOs will decline and reduce the trauma and financial cost of crime on the community; and 
· Victoria Police will meet all statutory obligations and be able to more effectively case manage RSOs. 
In addition, the SOR Unit has been restructured
to ensure staff are aligned with regional boundaries to improve the response Victoria Police provides
to stakeholders.
The registrants are managed by more than 100 case compliance managers.



Sex Offender Registry as at 30 June 2012

Total Number of Persons who have ever been placed on the Sex Offender Registry: 4456

	
	Active
	Inactive

	Very high
	186
	

	High
	264
	

	Medium
	1164
	

	Low
	1305
	

	Not assessed
	111
	

	Total
	3030
	

	Total males
	2981
	1407

	Total females
	49
	19

	Total juveniles
	1
	1

	Reporting period
	
	

	4 years
	2
	

	7.5 years
	26
	

	Custom
	6
	

	8 years
	964
	

	15 years
	1234
	

	Life
	798
	

	In custody
	
	655

	Interstate/overseas
	
	458

	De-registered
	
	160

	Deceased
	
	139

	Alternate reporting
	
	14

	arrangements due to
	
	

	medical incapacitation
	
	

	Total
	
	1426



Notes
1. Statistics as of 30 June 2012. Data drawn from multiple back-up versions of the SOR database over the early June to mid-July 2012 period, cross referenced with data quality auditing records compiled in mid-July. 

2. Juvenile defined in this instance as offenders under the age of 18 at time of assessment. 

3. Both juveniles are male, for juvenile statistics presented are a subset of the gender statistics presented above. 

4. Data cannot account for offenders who were placed on the SOR database as registered, but may have been incorrectly registered in the first instance. These offenders would be figured as de-registered/inactive on account of subsequently being removed from the register, but their record retained for information purposes. 
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Infrastructure and IT
INTEGRATED STATE-WIDE EMERGENCY
COMMUNICATIONS (ISEC) PROJECT
The ISEC Project commenced in July 2010 after funding was provided for the transition of Triple Zero call taking/dispatch from dedicated police-resourced centres in rural Victoria to a centralised ESTA/Triple Zero call centre in Ballarat. This resulted in major benefits including the release of police working at the Communications Centre to local operational roles, and achieving the same high levels of technology and service as the Melbourne metropolitan area.
Ballarat D24 was transitioned to ESTA service delivery in December 2010 with 10 members returning to operations and Bendigo D24 transitioned in July 2011 with 22 members returning to operations. Mildura D24 transitioned in December 2011 with 8 members returning to operations 16 months ahead of schedule.
Moe was transitioned in March 2012 with
18 members returned to operations, nine months ahead of schedule. The final transition of Wangaratta D24 is planned to occur in November 2012.
Another consequent benefit of the transitions is the ability to establish optimum efficiency for State Mobile Radio (SMR) channel configuration based on CAD data workload indications. Rural performance benchmarks will then be confirmed from analysis of the initial transition with the Office of the Emergency Services Commissioner (OESC) to achieve an enhanced consistent level of service.
ESTA has incorporated police regional communications into the same service delivery model as metropolitan service delivery, which provides better access to dispatchers by operations. This has enabled latent demand for higher levels of database checks via LEAP (in some cases five times more) than were possible with the police managed D24 call centres. This has been achieved within ESTA performance benchmarks.
CUSTOMER ENGAGEMENT FRAMEWORK
A customer engagement framework was developed and a new division created to better identify and fulfil Victoria Police’s IT needs. Customer engagement strategies for all IT portfolios were developed and implemented. Customer consultations are frequent, with all interactions documented.
IT SERVICE REQUESTS
Monitoring of IT Service Requests and weekly reporting is in place, including balanced scorecards measuring service statistics. More than 5000 catalogue and 2000 complex IT service requests were processed and monitored end-to-end.
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IT GOVERNANCE
Improved IT governance has been documented, agreed to and implemented.
IT service desk, customer engagement, prioritisation and vendor management functions have been re-engineered.
NEW IT SERVICES
New IT Services have been implemented including Enterprise Smartphones (Blackberry) and connect.police – a secure remote access service allowing members to access the Victoria Police network from anywhere at any time.
Ethical Standards Department (ESD)
ETHICAL HEALTH PROCESS REVIEW
The Ethical Health Process Review (EHPR) continued in 2011–12 with the initial drivers for the review being:
· To ensure Victoria Police (given the marked growth of the organisation in the coming years) is best placed to identify and address current and emerging risks to community confidence, its reputation and the organisation’s ethical health; 
· To use intelligence in initial assessment of complaints to better inform referral decisions for investigative purposes and to identify long-term systemic issues for intervention at the earliest possible time; 
· To strengthen support to regions and departments in meeting targets for finalisation of investigation and completion of files; 
· To respond to recommendations made by the Office of Police Integrity (OPI) pursuant to its own motion review of the Victoria Police Discipline System; 
· To improve the health, safety and wellbeing of staff; and 
· To promote working in ESD as a positive career move. 
The EHPR also responded to the following matters which arose since the commencement of the review:
· The Rush Review and its support for OPI recommendations pending the transition from OPI to the independent broad based Anti-Corruption Commission; 
· Sustainable Government initiatives; 
· The introduction of the IPRM with ESD’s resultant joint responsibility for the development of the State Reputation Management profile; and 
· The physical location of ESD to other areas of the Victoria Police Centre. 
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The high level objectives of the EHPR are to:
Proactively Identify and Mitigate Risks
· Use intelligence and associated processes to identify risks; 
· Early constructive intervention, communication and education; 
· Simplify the performance management process; and 
· Encourage the use of the Professional Development and Assessment (PDA) system to promote responsibility and accountability for personal and organisational performance and conduct. 
Improve Timeliness
· Reduce the time currently taken to investigate and resolve complaints and any resultant discipline interventions. 
Improve Occupational Health, Safety and Wellbeing
· Increase the attractiveness of ESD as a workplace; and 
· Improve the welfare of all Victoria Police members, ESD staff and members under investigation. 
In October 2011, a draft EHPR which contained
39 recommendations was circulated to stakeholders for consideration and comment. After extensive consultation with various stakeholders including the Community and Public Sector Union (CPSU)
and TPA, the EHPR was finalised in June 2012 with 19 recommendations.
In 2012–13, ESD will move to a new organisational structure and will implement the EHPR review recommendations through divisional managers and the ‘2012–13 ESD Action Plan’ objectives, priorities and actions.



AFFIDAVIT PROJECT
In 2011–12, Victoria Police came under scrutiny when it was identified that members were not swearing affidavits correctly in some cases. As this involved non-compliance with the Evidence Act 2008, this impacted on the reputation of Victoria Police and the integrity of the justice system. Although this did not apply to every case, information suggested it was more widespread than just an isolated case.
The Affidavit Project involved extensive consultation with other agencies such as the Director of Public Prosecutions (DPP) and the OPI. A strategy and process was designed by Victoria Police with input from major stakeholders to identify the extent of the problem and for members to submit a Declaration form which required members to think about their current and past practices and to be honest about what their practices were when swearing affidavits.
A general disclosure form was introduced where members were required to acknowledge any incorrect procedure, including situations in the past where they were not sure whether the correct procedures were followed. A total of 9644 general disclosures were processed. The general disclosure form was introduced for any specific disclosures to address any matters that were pending or currently before the court, regardless of whether they were properly sworn or not, to acknowledge if any incorrect procedure had occurred and allow
the prosecution to best prepare their case.
Legal advice supported that where members had acted in good faith they had not committed an offence. The project provided the means to address the issue and for Victoria Police to address how widespread the problem was. In doing this, Victoria Police was able to provide the right people with the right knowledge to move forward swearing affidavits correctly, so that the organisation can be sure that its integrity is maintained in future.
Members providing the required declarations and demonstrating good faith were supported by Victoria Police in any ongoing matters or potential civil actions and, in these circumstances, the matters were dealt with as a learning and development process. Matters disclosed in good faith ensured
no career detriment to the member.
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Disclosure Index
The Victoria Police 2011–12 Annual Report is prepared in accordance with all relevant Victorian legislation. This index has been prepared to facilitate identification of Victoria Police’s compliance with statutory disclosure requirements.

Report of Operations

	Legislation
	Requirement
	
	Page

	Charter and Purpose
	
	
	

	FRD22C
	Manner of establishment and the relevant Minister
	
	05

	FRD22C
	Objectives, functions, powers and duties
	
	05–06

	FRD22C
	Nature and range of services provided
	
	05–06

	Management and Structure
	
	

	FRD22C
	Organisational structure
	
	16–17

	Financial and Other Information
	
	

	FRD22C, SD4.2(k)
	Operational and budgetary objectives and performance against objectives
	18–27

	FRD22C
	Employment and conduct principles
	
	6

	FRD22C
	Occupational health and safety
	
	32–35

	FRD29
	Workforce data disclosures
	
	56 –61

	FRD22C
	Summary of financial results for the year
	
	27

	FRD22C
	Significant changes in financial position during the year
	
	27

	FRD22C
	Major changes or factors affecting performance
	
	26

	FRD22C
	Application and operation of the Freedom of Information Act 1982
	
	67–68

	FRD22C
	Compliance with building and maintenance provisions of the Building Act 1993
	69

	FRD22C
	Statement on National Competition Policy
	
	66

	FRD22C
	Application and operation of the Whistleblowers Protection Act 2001
	
	71

	FRD25A
	Victorian Industry Participation Policy disclosures
	
	65

	FRD22C
	Details of consultancies over $10,000
	
	64

	FRD22C
	Details of consultancies under $10,000
	
	64

	FRD24C
	Reporting of office-based environmental impacts
	
	72–78

	FRD22C
	Statement of availability of other information
	Inside Back Cover

	FRD8B
	Consistency of budget and departmental reporting
	
	84–87

	FRD10
	Disclosure index
	
	53–54

	SD4.5.5
	Risk management compliance attestation
	
	13




53
6 Appendix A 
Disclosure Index 



Victoria Police Annual Report 2011–12


Report of Operations continued
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	Financial Management Act 1994
	97

	Corrections Act 1986
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Workforce Statistics

Victoria Police Headcount and Full Time Equivalent Numbers of Employees (30 June 2012)

	Rank/Classification
	Headcount
	Full-time Equivalent (FTE)

	Chief Commissioner
	1
	1.0

	Deputy Commissioner
	4
	4.0

	Assistant Commissioner
	7
	7.0

	Commander
	6
	6.0

	Chief Superintendent
	1
	1.0

	Superintendent
	82
	82.0

	Chief Inspector
	4
	4.0

	Inspector
	283
	283.0

	Senior Sergeant
	634
	631.4

	Sergeant
	2170
	2148.1

	Senior Constable
	6639
	6376.5

	Constable
	2941
	2934.3

	Total police
	12772
	12478.3

	Recruits in training
	124
	124.0

	Police and recruits
	12896
	12602.3

	Reservists
	8
	8.0

	PSO existing
	141
	140.7

	PSO new deployed
	88
	88.0

	PSO in training
	59
	59.0

	Total PSOs
	288
	287.7

	Public Servant Classification
	
	

	Executive Officer EO1
	
	

	Executive Officer EO2
	6
	6.0

	Executive Officer EO3
	8
	8.0

	Forensic Officer FO7
	2
	2.0

	Forensic Officer FO6
	16
	15.6

	Forensic Officer FO5
	27
	24.0

	Forensic Officer FO4
	58
	49.9

	Forensic Officer FO3
	54
	51.3

	Forensic Officer FO2
	73
	68.4

	Forensic Officer FO1
	1
	1.0

	Senior Technical Specialist
	13
	12.6

	Victorian Public Service Officer VPS6
	137
	135.3

	Victorian Public Service Officer VPS5
	211
	207.0

	Victorian Public Service Officer VPS4
	483
	452.9

	Victorian Public Service Officer VPS3
	602
	583.4

	Victorian Public Service Officer VPS2
	1179
	1076.6

	Victorian Public Service Officer VPS1
	43
	32.1

	Total public servants
	2913
	2726.1

	Total workforce
	16105
	15624.1



Notes
1. FTE Totals may not tally due to rounding. 

2. Includes 4 Federally funded police. 

3. Senior Technical Specialist (otherwise referred as VPS7). 

4. Excludes EO1s at Office of Chief Examiner (all other employees included). 
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Statutory and Nationally Funded Bodies Administered by Victoria Police (Headcount and Full-time Equivalent Numbers of Employees at (30 June 2012)

	Public Servant Classification
	Headcount
	Full-time Equivalent (FTE)

	Executive Officer EO1
	2
	1.8

	Executive Officer EO2
	2
	2.0

	Executive Officer EO3
	4
	3.8

	Forensic Officer FO7
	1
	1.0

	Forensic Officer FO6
	1
	1.0

	Forensic Officer FO5
	
	

	Forensic Officer FO4
	1
	0.6

	Forensic Officer FO3
	
	

	Forensic Officer FO2
	
	

	Forensic Officer FO1
	
	

	Senior Technical Specialist
	
	

	Victorian Public Service Officer VPS6
	3
	2.9

	Victorian Public Service Officer VPS5
	12
	8.6

	Victorian Public Service Officer VPS4
	12
	10.6

	Victorian Public Service Officer VPS3
	8
	7.4

	Victorian Public Service Officer VPS2
	2
	2.0

	Victorian Public Service Officer VPS1
	
	

	Total public servants
	48
	41.7



Notes
1. FTE Totals may not tally due to rounding. 

2. Statutory and nationally funded bodies included in the above table in the annual report: Commissioner for Law Enforcement Data Security, Australia New Zealand Policing Advisory Agency and Police Appeals Board. Executive Officers from the Office of the Chief Examiner are also included in this category. 

3. Senior Technical Specialist (otherwise referred as VPS7). 
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FRD29 Compliant VPS Numbers at Victoria Police as at 30 June 2012

	
	
	Ongoing
	
	Fixed Term
	
	Casual
	
	Total

	Public Servant
	Headcount
	Full-time
	Headcount
	Full-time
	Headcount
	Full-time
	Headcount
	Full-time

	Classification
	
	Equivalent
	
	Equivalent
	
	Equivalent
	
	Equivalent

	
	
	(FTE)
	
	(FTE)
	
	(FTE)
	
	(FTE)

	Executive
	0
	0.00
	0
	0.00
	0
	0.00
	0
	0.00

	Officer EO1
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Executive
	6
	6.00
	0
	0.00
	0
	0.00
	6
	6.00

	Officer EO2
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Executive
	8
	8.00
	0
	0.00
	0
	0.00
	8
	8.00

	Officer EO3
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Forensic
	2
	2.00
	0
	0.00
	0
	0.00
	2
	2.00

	Officer FO7
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Forensic
	14
	14.00
	2
	1.60
	0
	0.00
	16
	15.60

	Officer FO6
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Forensic
	25
	22.41
	1
	1.00
	0
	0.00
	26
	23.41

	Officer FO5
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Forensic
	57
	49.46
	0
	0.00
	0
	0.00
	57
	49.46

	Officer FO4
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Forensic
	51
	48.71
	0
	0.00
	0
	0.00
	51
	48.71

	Officer FO3
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Forensic
	61
	56.59
	10
	9.79
	0
	0.00
	71
	66.38

	Officer FO2
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Forensic
	0
	0.00
	1
	1.00
	0
	0.00
	1
	1.00

	Officer FO1
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Senior
	12
	11.60
	1
	1.00
	0
	0.00
	13
	12.60

	Technical
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Specialist
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Victorian
	131
	129.30
	6
	6.00
	0
	0.00
	137
	135.30

	Public Service
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Officer VPS6
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Victorian
	198
	194.54
	9
	8.50
	0
	0.00
	207
	203.04

	Public Service
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Officer VPS5
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Victorian
	437
	414.65
	23
	22.60
	5
	1.51
	465
	438.76

	Public Service
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Officer VPS4
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Victorian
	560
	542.51
	31
	30.70
	0
	0.00
	591
	573.21

	Public Service
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Officer VPS3
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Victorian
	994
	923.27
	130
	125.24
	15
	4.73
	1139
	1053.24

	Public Service
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Officer VPS2
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Victorian
	32
	30.14
	1
	1.00
	6
	2.92
	39
	34.06

	Public Service
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Officer VPS1
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Total public
	2588
	2453.16
	215
	208.43
	26
	9.16
	2829
	2670.75

	servants
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	



Notes
1. FTE Totals may not tally due to rounding. 

2. As per Department of Treasury and Finance FRD29. 

3. Senior Technical Specialist (otherwise referred as VPS7). 
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Victoria Police Employees by Classification and Gender (30 June 2012)
	
	
	
	
	
	
	Ongoing

	Rank/Classification
	M
	F
	Full-time
	M
	F
	Part-time

	
	
	
	Total
	
	
	Total

	Chief Commissioner
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Deputy Commissioner
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Assistant Commissioner
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Commander
	6
	
	6
	
	
	

	Chief Superintendent
	1
	
	1
	
	
	

	Superintendent
	76
	6
	82
	
	
	

	Chief Inspector
	4
	
	4
	
	
	

	Inspector
	259
	24
	283
	
	
	

	Senior Sergeant
	560
	66
	626
	2
	6
	8

	Sergeant
	1893
	218
	2111
	27
	32
	59

	Senior Constable
	4611
	1318
	5929
	116
	594
	710

	Constable
	2032
	893
	2925
	1
	15
	16

	Total police
	9442
	2525
	11967
	146
	647
	793

	Recruits in training
	97
	27
	124
	
	
	

	Police and recruits
	9539
	2552
	12091
	146
	647
	793

	Reservists
	2
	6
	8
	
	
	

	PSO existing
	127
	13
	140
	1
	
	1

	PSO new deployed
	76
	12
	88
	
	
	

	PSO in training
	55
	4
	59
	
	
	

	Total PSOs
	258
	29
	287
	1
	
	1

	Public Servant Classification
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Executive Officer EO1
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Executive Officer EO2
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Executive Officer EO3
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Forensic Officer FO7
	2
	
	2
	
	
	

	Forensic Officer FO6
	9
	5
	14
	
	
	

	Forensic Officer FO5
	12
	6
	18
	1
	7
	8

	Forensic Officer FO4
	17
	22
	39
	2
	17
	19

	Forensic Officer FO3
	14
	33
	47
	
	7
	7

	Forensic Officer FO2
	18
	35
	53
	1
	9
	10

	Forensic Officer FO1
	
	
	
	
	
	

	STS
	8
	3
	11
	
	1
	1

	VPS6
	82
	44
	126
	1
	4
	5

	VPS5
	104
	86
	190
	
	11
	11

	VPS4
	181
	212
	393
	11
	49
	60

	VPS3
	193
	331
	524
	3
	44
	47

	VPS2
	193
	636
	829
	
	199
	199

	VPS1
	19
	9
	28
	1
	4
	5

	Total public servants
	852
	1422
	2274
	20
	352
	372

	Total workforce
	10651
	4009
	14660
	167
	999
	1166

	M Male
	
	F Female
	
	
	

	FO Forensic Officer
	
	PSO Protective Services Officer
	
	

	EO Executive Officer
	
	VPS Victorian Public Service Officer
	
	


STS Senior Technical Specialist (otherwise referred as VPSG7)
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	Fixed Term
	
	
	Casual
	

	M
	F
	Full-time
	M
	F
	Part-time
	M
	F
	Total
	Total

	
	
	Total
	
	
	Total
	
	
	
	Staff

	1
	
	1
	
	
	
	
	
	
	1

	3
	1
	4
	
	
	
	
	
	
	4

	6
	1
	7
	
	
	
	
	
	
	7

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	6

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	1

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	82

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	4

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	283

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	634

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	2170

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	6639

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	2941

	10
	2
	12
	
	
	
	
	
	
	12772

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	124

	10
	2
	12
	
	
	
	
	
	
	12896

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	8

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	141

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	88

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	59

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	288

	4
	2
	6
	
	
	
	
	
	
	6

	3
	5
	8
	
	
	
	
	
	
	8

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	2

	1
	
	1
	1
	
	1
	
	
	
	16

	
	1
	1
	
	
	
	
	
	
	27

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	58

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	54

	3
	7
	10
	
	
	
	
	
	
	73

	1
	
	1
	
	
	
	
	
	
	1

	
	1
	1
	
	
	
	
	
	
	13

	4
	2
	6
	
	
	
	
	
	
	137

	4
	5
	9
	1
	
	1
	
	
	
	211

	7
	15
	22
	
	1
	1
	2
	5
	7
	483

	9
	21
	30
	
	1
	1
	
	
	
	602

	30
	88
	118
	1
	11
	12
	7
	14
	21
	1179

	
	1
	1
	
	
	
	2
	7
	9
	43

	66
	148
	214
	3
	13
	16
	11
	26
	37
	2913

	76
	150
	226
	3
	13
	16
	11
	26
	37
	16105


Notes
1. All public servants within the following statutory and nationally funded bodies are excluded from the above table in the annual report: Commissioner for Law Enforcement Data Security, Australia New Zealand Policing Advisory Agency and Police Appeals Board. Executive Officers from the Office of the Chief Examiner are also excluded. 

2. Includes 4 Federally funded police. 
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Victoria Police Employees by Classification and Gender (30 June 2012)

	Rank/Classification
	Male
	Female
	Total
	Male (%)
	Female (%)

	Police
	9598
	3174
	12772
	75.1%
	24.9%

	Recruits
	97
	27
	124
	78.2%
	21.8%

	Police and recruits
	9695
	3201
	12896
	75.2%
	24.8%

	Reservists
	2
	6
	8
	25.0%
	75.0%

	PSOs
	259
	29
	288
	89.9%
	10.1%

	Public servants
	952
	1961
	2913
	32.7%
	67.3%

	Total workforce
	10908
	5197
	16105
	67.7%
	32.3%



Notes
1. All public servants within the following statutory and nationally funded bodies are excluded from the above table in the annual report: Commissioner for Law Enforcement Data Security, Australia New Zealand Policing Advisory Agency and Police Appeals Board. Executive Officers from the Office of the Chief Examiner are also excluded. 

2. Includes 4 Federally funded police. 


Victoria Police Employees by Employee Type and Age Grouping (30 June 2012)

	Age
	Police
	Recruits
	Reservists
	PSOs
	Public
	Total

	Grouping
	
	
	
	
	Servants
	

	(Years)
	
	
	
	
	
	

	<25
	671
	48
	
	32
	184
	935

	25–34
	3246
	54
	
	76
	819
	4195

	35–44
	4572
	17
	
	87
	653
	5329

	45–54
	3372
	5
	
	66
	732
	4175

	55–64
	891
	
	4
	25
	457
	1377

	65+
	20
	
	4
	2
	68
	94

	Total workforce
	12772
	124
	8
	288
	2913
	16105


Notes
1. All public servants within the following statutory and nationally funded bodies are excluded from the above table in the annual report: Commissioner for Law Enforcement Data Security, Australia New Zealand Policing Advisory Agency and Police Appeals Board. Executive Officers from the Office of the Chief Examiner are also excluded. 

2. Includes 4 Federally funded police. 


Table 01. Number of Executive Officers Classified into 'Ongoing' and 'Special Projects'

	
	
	All
	
	Ongoing
	Special Projects

	Class
	No.
	Var
	No.
	Var
	No.
	Var

	EO1
	0
	0
	0
	0
	0
	0

	EO2
	6
	0
	6
	0
	0
	0

	EO3
	8
	-1
	8
	-1
	0
	0

	
	14
	-1
	14
	-1
	0
	0
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Table 02. Breakdown of Executive Officers into Gender for 'Ongoing' and 'Special Projects'

	
	
	
	
	
	Ongoing
	
	
	
	Special Projects

	
	
	Male
	
	Female
	Vacancies
	
	Male
	Female  Vacancies

	Class
	No.
	Var
	No.
	Var
	No.
	No.
	Var
	No.
	Var
	No.

	EO1
	0
	0
	0
	0
	0
	0
	0
	0
	0
	0

	EO2
	4
	0
	2
	0
	3
	0
	0
	0
	0
	0

	EO3
	3
	1
	5
	-2
	2
	0
	0
	0
	0
	0

	
	7
	1
	7
	-2
	5
	0
	0
	0
	0
	0

	Table 03. Reconciliation of Executive Numbers
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	2010
	2011
	2012

	Executives with remuneration over $100,000
	
	
	
	16
	15
	14

	Add
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Vacancies (table 2)
	
	
	
	
	
	
	3
	4
	5

	Executives employed with total remuneration below $100,000
	
	
	0
	0
	

	Less
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Separations
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	0
	4
	4

	Total executive numbers as at 30 June 2012
	
	
	
	19
	15
	14



Notes
1. The statutory positions [Chair, Police Appeals Board, the Office of Chief Examiner and the Commissioner for Law Enforcement Data Security] and nationally funded executive positions within Australia New Zealand Policing Advisory Agency have been excluded. 

2. This listing of executive numbers only includes Victorian Public Servants and excludes Police Commissioners. 

SELECTING ON MERIT

	Exemption from notification of vacancies pursuant
	Section 20 Exemptions by Department
	
	

	
	Business Services
	7
	

	to section 20 of the Public Administration Act 2004.
	
	
	

	During 2011–12, the Chief Commissioner approved
	Infrastructure and IT
	17
	

	the exemption of 98 positions from the requirement
	
	
	

	
	People
	16
	

	for advertisement. The breakdown of those
	
	
	
	
	

	exemptions is as follows:
	
	
	Corporate Strategy and Governance
	2
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	State Emergencies and Security
	4
	

	
	
	
	Crime
	6
	

	
	
	
	Forensic Services
	15
	

	Exemptions by Classifications
	
	
	Operations Support
	1
	

	VPS6
	7
	
	Media and Corporate Communications
	5
	

	VPS5
	10
	
	Office of the Chief Commissioner
	0
	

	VPS4
	26
	
	Legal Services
	0
	

	VPS3
	16
	
	Intelligence and Covert Support
	5
	

	VPS2
	26
	
	Operations Co-ordination
	3
	

	VPS1
	1
	
	North West Metro Region
	7
	

	VPS7
	2
	
	Southern Region
	3
	

	FO2
	2
	
	Eastern Region
	1
	

	FO3
	3
	
	Western Region
	1
	

	FO4
	4
	
	Ethical Standards Department
	1
	

	FO6
	1
	
	ANZPAA
	4
	

	Total
	98
	
	Total
	98
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ANNUAL REPORT OF CHIEF COMMISSIONER UNDER PART IV – EMPLOYMENT DISCIPLINE AND OTHER MATTERS – POLICE REGULATION ACT 1958
Results of Discipline Charges Determined by Hearing Officers
Part 1: Full Year 2011–12

Members – Charges and Results of Hearings

	
	Discipline Hearings
	Inquiries into
	Inquiries into

	
	Police Regulation
	
	Convictions
	Fitness for Duty

	
	Act 1958 Sec 69
	Police Regulation
	Police Regulation

	
	
	
	Act 1958 Sec 80
	Act 1958 Sec 82

	
	2010–11
	2011–12
	2010–11
	2011–12
	2010–11
	2011–12

	Total discipline charges
	126*
	60
	9
	9
	1
	0

	laid against members
	
	
	
	
	
	

	(charge authorisation date)
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Total members charged
	91
	50
	5
	8
	
	

	(charge authorisation date)
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Members appearing
	109
	49
	7
	7
	
	

	before a hearing officer
	
	
	
	
	
	

	(last hearing date)
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Members dismissed from
	14
	7
	0
	2
	
	

	force (last hearing date)
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Members – all charges
	2
	2
	0
	0
	
	

	dismissed after a discipline
	
	
	
	
	
	

	hearing (last hearing date)
	
	
	
	
	
	


Notes
A member can be charged with one or more Discipline charges.
*The increase in the number of members charged with Discipline Charges in 2010–11 was largely attributed to members investigated as a result of Operation Barrot, an inquiry into inappropriate use of the email system.
Statistics for Fitness for Duty hearings were sourced from the Professional Development Unit. The result of the 2010–11 hearing was not finalised prior to the 2010–11 Annual Report. This was heard in 2011–12 and resulted in the member being terminated. (Police Appeals Board) PAB Appeal lodged but not yet reviewed.
The data for this report was taken from Register of Complaints database (ROCSID) on 1 August 2012. This data only includes Discipline statistics under the Police Regulation Act 1958 Part IV.

Results of Hearings

	Hearing Level
	
	Level 1
	Level Assistant
	
	
	
	Totals

	
	Superintendent
	Commissioner
	
	
	
	

	
	
	or Above
	
	or Above
	
	
	
	

	Financial Year
	2010–11
	2011–12
	2010–11
	2011–12
	2010–11
	2010–11
	2011–12
	2011–12

	Discipline charges
	27
	9
	74
	35
	101
	66%
	44
	90%

	found proven
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Charge dismissed
	1
	2
	3
	1
	4
	3%
	3
	6%

	Not heard members issued
	0
	0
	48
	2
	48
	31%
	2
	4%

	with discipline charges
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	(resigned/retired prior
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	to discipline hearing –
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	(count of charges)
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Total charges
	28
	11
	125
	38
	153
	100%
	49
	100%


Notes
Table includes public complaint and internally initiated investigations. Data relates to action taken during the relevant year not withstanding the year in which the public complaint/internal discipline matter was received. The increase in the number of members charged and/or dismissed in 2010–11 was largely attributed to Operation Barrot, an inquiry into inappropriate use of the e-mail system.
The data for this report was taken from Register of Complaints database (ROCSID) on 1 August 2012. This data only includes Discipline statistics under the Police Regulation Act 1958 Part IV.
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Results of Discipline Charges Determined by Hearing Officers
Review of Sanctions Resulting from Complaint Files
Part 2: 1 July 2010 – 30 June 2011

Review Result

	
	
	Number of
	Sanction
	Sanction
	Sanction
	

	
	
	Sanctions
	Affirmed
	Withdrawn
	Varied
	

	
	
	Reviewed
	
	
	
	

	Admonishment notices issued
	31
	2
	0
	2
	0
	

	Discipline charge
	PAB
	20
	10
	2
	8
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	(s.76 Police Regulation Act)
	DC
	0
	0
	0
	0
	

	Discipline charge
	PAB
	0
	0
	0
	0
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	(s.80 Police Regulation Act)
	DC
	0
	0
	0
	0
	


Review of Sanctions Resulting from Complaint Files
Part 2: 1 July 2011 – 30 June 2012

Review Result

	
	
	Number of
	Sanction
	Sanction
	Sanction
	

	
	
	Sanctions
	Affirmed
	Withdrawn
	Varied
	

	
	
	Reviewed
	
	
	
	

	Admonishment notices issued
	72
	2
	
	
	
	

	Discipline charge
	PAB
	17
	7
	5
	4
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	(s.76 Police Regulation Act)
	DC
	0
	0
	0
	0
	

	Discipline charge
	PAB
	0
	0
	0
	0
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	(s.80 Police Regulation Act)
	DC
	0
	0
	0
	0
	


Notes
Relates to Admonishments to be reviewed results pending.
Section 91F of the Police Regulation Act 1958 only permits the Police Appeals Board (PAB) to review specific sanctions (i.e. Fine in excess of $500; reduction in rank, seniority, remuneration; transfer to other duties, or dismissal from the Force) Reviews of other sanctions arising from a discipline charge or inquiry are determined by a Deputy Commissioner (DC). Data relates to reviews completed during the stated financial year notwithstanding the year in which the sanction
was originally handed down.
Discipline Charge (s.76 Police Regulation Act) relates to sanctions imposed if a member is charged with a breach of discipline, whereas Discipline inquiry (s.80 Police Regulation Act) relates to sanctions imposed if a member has been charged under
the criminal law with an offence punishable by imprisonment (whether or not within the State or in any other jurisdiction) and the offence has been found proven. Each figure is to be taken individually, not as a cumulative total as Discipline charge (s.76 Police Regulation Act) may include sanctions under Disciplinary Inquiry (s.80 Police Regulation Act).
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Details of Individual Consultancies

	Consultant
	Purpose of
	Start
	End
	Total
	Expenditure
	Future

	
	Consultancy
	Date
	Date
	Approved
	2011–12
	Expenditure

	
	
	
	
	Project Fee
	(excluding
	(excluding

	
	
	
	
	(excluding
	GST)
	GST)

	
	
	
	
	GST)
	
	

	Council of
	General duties
	17/05/2010
	30/06/2013
	218,181
	45,000
	23,931

	Textile and
	uniform specification
	
	
	
	
	

	Fashion
	advice and prototype
	
	
	
	
	

	
	development
	
	
	
	
	

	Strategic
	Review of
	13/05/2011
	31/05/20111
	21,000
	21,000
	0

	Safety
	operational
	
	
	
	
	

	Solutions
	driver training
	
	
	
	
	

	Red Rock
	Assessment of
	01/07/2011
	31/08/2011
	19,772
	19,113
	0

	Consulting
	patch upgrade
	
	
	
	
	

	
	requirements for
	
	
	
	
	

	
	VPFS Oracle patch
	
	
	
	
	

	
	upgrade project
	
	
	
	
	

	KPMG
	Victoria Police
	22/07/2011
	30/10/2011
	78,136
	76,359
	0

	
	Information
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Governance
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Implementation
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Review
	
	
	
	
	

	The University
	Staffing Structure
	15/08/2011
	01/12/2011
	63,636
	65,000
	0

	of Melbourne
	Review for Centre
	
	
	
	
	

	
	for Law and Police,
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Police Academy
	
	
	
	
	

	Strategies
	Preparation of
	24/02/2012
	16/05/2012
	22,650
	22,697
	0

	and Solutions
	advice and strategic
	
	
	
	
	

	
	framework for
	
	
	
	
	

	
	IT restructuring
	
	
	
	
	

	CIO Advisory
	Review of Victoria
	05/03/2011
	09/03/2012
	10,000
	10,000
	0

	Pty Ltd
	Police strategy
	
	
	
	
	

	Peter Stone
	Expert advice for
	05/03/2012
	14/01/2014
	150,681
	61,401
	89,280

	
	the installation and
	
	
	
	
	

	
	testing of microwave
	
	
	
	
	

	
	video link system
	
	
	
	
	



Notes
1 Consultancy services engaged and delivered in 2010–11 financial year, payment made in 2011–12 financial year.
DETAILS OF CONSULTANCIES UNDER $10,000
· In 2011–12, Victoria Police engaged 12 consultancies where the total fees 
payable were less than $10,000 with a total expenditure of $58,857.37 (excluding GST). 
Disclaimer
The accuracy of this data cannot be guaranteed due to the way in which data is entered into Oracle Financials (i.e. descriptions are unclear, consultancy charge code is selected as the default mainly due to local delegates’ interpretation of contractors).
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Implementation of the Victorian
Industry Participation Policy (VIPP)
CONTRACTS/PROJECTS COMMENCED
TO WHICH VIPP APPLIED
During 2011–12, Victoria Police commenced three contracts totalling $19,039,549.62 in value to which the VIPP applied. Of the contracts that commenced, one contract was in metropolitan Melbourne ($5,827,768.62) and two contracts are state-wide ($13,211,781.00).
A summary of the skills and technology transfer commitments in these contracts are as follows:
· General and project specific commitments were made to staff training and skills development; 
· Ongoing training in areas of the technology of the devices and procedural aspects 
of each persons role; 
· Estimated 5 full-time equivalent jobs created; and 
· Estimated 104.6 full-time equivalent jobs retained. 
Benefits to the Victorian economy in terms of skills and technology transfer include attendance at training courses to improve skills.



CONTRACTS/PROJECTS COMPLETED TO WHICH VIPP APPLIED
Victoria Police completed two contracts during 2011–12 to which VIPP applied totalling $4,126,776.50. Of the contracts that were completed, both were in regional Victoria.
Achievements against planned commitments were as follows:
· Enhanced supervisors skills in dealing with suppliers and sub-contractors; 
· Subcontractor staff benefitted from new work experience; 
· 10 full-time equivalent jobs were created; and 
· 16 full-time equivalent jobs were retained. 
Benefits to the Victorian economy in terms of skills and technology transfer include:
· Increased skills in dealing with suppliers and sub-contractors; and 
· Increased number of apprentices in the construction industry. 
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National Competition Policy Compliance
The National Competition Policy promotes greater competition and encourages economic growth. One of the key requirements of the policy is in regards to Competitive Neutrality. Competitive neutrality requires government businesses to ensure where services compete with the private sector, advantages arising from their government ownership are removed if they are not in the public interest. This policy does not override other policy objectives of government and focuses on efficiency in the provision of service.
During the 2011–12 reporting period, Victoria Police was not required to apply the competitive neutrality policy as we did not procure goods and services within this market.
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Freedom of Information
FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT 1982
The Freedom of Information Act 1982 gives people the right to request access to information held by the Victorian Government and its agencies, including personal documents and documents relating to government activities. The Act also allows people to request that incorrect or misleading information held by an agency
is amended and provides an appeal process to review access decisions.
During 2011–12, Victoria Police received 2,393 requests for access to documents under the
Freedom of Information Act 1982, including requests from applicants to amend personal information. Of all requests received, 1,854 related to personal requests and 539 were non-personal requests. Nine (9) applications were from Members of Parliament, 161 were from the media and
the remainder were from the general public.
An internal review of the decision made was requested on 83 occasions, which resulted in the original decision being confirmed in 63 applications. Fourteen (14) original decisions were varied,
one decision was overturned and five had yet to be finalised as at 30 June 2012.
Thirty-nine (39) appeals against the original decision were lodged with the Victorian Civil and Administrative Tribunal (VCAT) for final determination, with 37 cases being decided upon in 2011–12, including cases from previous years.

Requests for Access to Documents

Type of Request

	Personal
	1854

	Non personal
	539

	
	

	Total
	2393

	
	

	Internal review requested
	83

	Original decision confirmed
	63





Compliance
For the 12 months ending 30 June 2012, Victoria Police processed 31 per cent of requests within statutory requirements (45 days or less), 29 per cent within 46–90 days and 40 per cent
in over 90 days. The average processing time taken to finalise requests was 87 days.
Application Procedure
CCP Lay is the Principal Officer for the purpose of administering the requirements of the Freedom of Information Act 1982. The authorised officer is the Manager of the Freedom of Information Division who is responsible for all decisions relating to Freedom of Information applications received by Victoria Police.
Applications for documents under the provisions of the Freedom of Information Act 1982 must
be in writing and addressed to:
Freedom of Information Officer
Freedom of Information Division
GPO Box 913
Melbourne VIC 3001
PH: (03) 9247 6801
Alternatively, you may apply online at the Freedom of Information Victoria website at www.foi.vic.gov.au.
Categories of Documents
The general types of documents which may be the subject of an FOI request include briefs of evidence, patrol duty returns and incident reports.
Additional Information
Additional information about Victoria Police is available from our web site located
at www.police.vic.gov.au.
Publication Requirements
Victoria Police publishes a range of material regarding crime prevention and community safety issues. Members of the community requiring such information should contact:
	Original decision appealed to VCAT
	39
	Media and Corporate
	

	Appeals actually determined
	37
	
	

	
	
	Communications Department
	


Victoria Police Centre
GPO Box 913
Melbourne VIC 3001
PH: (03) 9247 5276
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Freedom of Information
Documents Available for Purchase
The Victoria Police Manual is available for purchase from the Corporate Strategy and Governance Department within the Victoria Police Centre. The contact telephone number is (03) 9247 6719.
Accident reports and crime reports (insurance)
are also available for purchase. Further information is available at www.police.vic.gov.au.
The Corporate Statistics Unit collects, collates, analyses and disseminates statistical data collected by Victoria Police. Reports that provide statistics and analysis for crime and traffic issues are published regularly. Further information is available
at www.police.vic.gov.au.
Documents Available for Public Inspection
The Victoria Police Manual is available for perusal at the Supreme Court Library and the State Law Library, Melbourne.
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Privacy Policy Statement
Victoria Police is bound by the Information
Privacy Act 2000 and Health Records Act 2001 in how it collects, uses and/or discloses and secures personal and health information. Victoria Police is committed to protecting the personal and health information
of the persons with whom it interacts in the course of its functions and activities. In line with the provisions of the Freedom of Information Act, individuals can request access to personal and health information held by Victoria Police. Applications should be addressed to the Freedom of Information Officer, Freedom of Information Division.
Further information about the Information Privacy Act or Health Records Act can be obtained from:
Privacy Unit
Victoria Police Centre
GPO Box 913
Melbourne VIC 3001
PH: (03) 9628 7349
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Statement in Relation to the Building Act
Victoria Police complies with the requirements of the Building Act 1993 and the Building Regulations 2006, and other Victorian legislation referenced by the Building Commission. Victoria Police controls a large property portfolio comprising: 8, 16 and 24 hour police stations; police residences; educational and training complexes; forensic laboratories; and other special purpose facilities.
NEW BUILDINGS CONFORMING TO STANDARDS
For the 2011–12 financial year, Victoria Police conducted its works in compliance with the Building Act 1993, other relevant building regulations and statutory requirements. Victoria Police maintains the appropriate mechanisms to ensure all building conformity is met. Capital works projects were completed throughout the year at Mortlake, Lara, Koo Wee Rup, Loch Sport, Korumburra, Trafalgar and Marysville.



MAINTENANCE OF BUILDINGS IN SAFE AND SERVICEABLE CONDITION
Maintenance of Victoria Police built infrastructure was arranged through the Government Infrastructure Management System. Shared Services Provider (SSP) of Government continues to manage all leased facilities. Occupational Health and Safety, functionality for service delivery and upkeep of plant and equipment are the key corporate priorities for the allocation of funding for maintenance. Essential Safety Measures (ESM) obligations on owned buildings are managed in-house by Victoria Police, while ESM for leased facilities is managed by SSP. All legislative requirements for asbestos monitoring have
been met. Victoria Police no longer has cooling towers at its owned sites.
REGISTERED BUILDING PRACTITIONERS
Victoria Police continues to maintain a Contractor List to ensure that only registered building practitioners perform work on its properties. Victoria Police also complies with the Ministerial Directions issued pursuant to the Public Development and Construction Management Act by only engaging contractors and consultants from the Department of Infrastructure’s Construction Supplier Register where required.
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Report Under The Corrections Act 1986
MELBOURNE CUSTODY CENTRE
The Melbourne Custody Centre (MCC) is operated pursuant to agreed service specifications and levels under contract to G4S Australia Pty Ltd. The contract commenced on 28 March 2010, with a term of
seven years, which incorporates two, two-year options. The options are dependent on the CCP being satisfied with the performance by G4S. G4S operate in accordance with the relevant legislation, and
in compliance with contractual and commercial arrangements.
During 2011–12, the MCC:
· Managed 19,420 prisoner movements (counted in and out), in addition to this 3,776 intoxicated persons were lodged; 
· Managed 9,929 court movements with an average of 45 per day between the MCC and the Melbourne Magistrates’ Court; 
· Provided full time security of prisoners in 14 Melbourne Magistrates’ Courts; 
· Facilitated a total of 16,119 visits to prisoners including 2,173 visits by relatives and friends, 12,587 visits by members of the legal profession and 1,359 by Police; 
· Escorted 43 Prisoners to Hospital and provided 1st shift guard on the prisoners while they were receiving medical treatment; 
· Provided 24-hour nursing services at the MCC through the Victoria Police Custodial Risk Management Unit (CRMU). Over 50 per cent of prisoners are on prescribed medication, including assisting with drug and alcohol withdrawal regimes. Two (2) nurses were rostered night shift Thursday to Saturday to meet the needs of Safe Streets. 
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The installation of the upgraded CCTV system is due for completion in September 2012.
The costs for the period are based on fixed establishment costs, custodial services staff and facility services. Variable costs are incurred for custodial supplies such as medical supplies,
staffing, meals and prisoner provisions. There have also been ongoing capital costs incurred in the maintenance of the Centre.
During 2011–12, CRMU had 6,939 prisoner encounters requiring treatment by Custodial Nurses, including the assessment of 3,776 drunks and 1,614 medical consultations by Custodial Doctors.
G4S continue to work collaboratively with Victoria Police in observance of the Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities Act 2006 which took effect on 1 January 2008. G4S have implemented ongoing mandatory Human Rights and Responsibilities training for all staff. G4S Australia are accredited with an AS /NZS ISO 9001:2000 Certified Quality Management System.
Operations and commercial arrangements are jointly managed by Victoria Police through the Prisoner Management Unit and the Business Services Department respectively.
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Reports under the Whistleblowers Protection Act 2001 – Disclosures
Disclosures under the Whistleblowers Protection Act 2001
The current procedures established by the public body under Part 6 are available on request.

Disclosures

	
	2011–12

	Public Interest Disclosures – Number and Type
	6
	Allegations of:

	
	
	▶ Perverting justice – fabricating evidence

	
	
	▶ Perverting justice – falsifying documents

	
	
	▶ Deception

	
	
	▶ Bribery

	Protected Disclosures – Number and Type
	3
	Allegations of:

	
	
	▶ Drug trafficking/possession and/or use

	
	
	▶ Theft

	The number of disclosures referred during the year
	3
	

	by the public body to the Ombudsman for determination
	
	

	as to whether they are public interest disclosures
	
	




The number and type of disclosed matters referred to the public body during the year by the Ombudsman

The number and type of disclosed matters referred during the year by the public body to the Ombudsman to investigate
The number and type of investigations of disclosed matters taken over by the Ombudsman from the public body to investigate
The number of requests made under Section 74 during the year to the Ombudsman to investigate disclosed matters
The number and type of disclosed matters that the public body has declined to investigate during the year
The number and type of disclosed matters that were substantiated on investigation and the action taken on completion of the investigation
Any recommendation of the Ombudsman under this Act that relate to the public body



· Allegations of: 

· Perverting justice – fabricating evidence 
· Bribery 
· Assault 

0

0

0

· Allegation of perverting justice – fabrication of evidence 


– Unable to definitively advise as 3 investigations were still active as at 30 June 2012 

Nil recommendations made in 2011–12 under Whistleblowers Protection Act 2001.
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Environmental Reporting
OFFICE-BASED ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS
The Environmental Solutions Branch (ESB) again produced significant environmental outcomes for Victoria Police in 2011–12. These results were achieved despite the organisation experiencing an increase in staffing of over 7 per cent and an
increase in building floor area in excess of 6 per cent during 2011–12. The results are an outcome of sustainability work undertaken across all areas of the organisation and not just office-based locations.
ESB staff have maintained their engagement with individuals and organisations outside Victoria Police as a means of knowledge and skills exchange within the environmental discipline. Involvement with the Whole of Victorian Government Environmental Data Management System (EDMS), continued during 2011–12 with the System achieving go-live status in June 2012. Engagement with third party providers and education organisations also provided improved opportunities for exploring new technologies and systems for use with our environmental work.
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Some of the major highlights for 2011–12 were:
Energy
· Energy use per unit of area (MJ/m2), was reduced from 795 in 2010–11, to 789 in 2011–12. 
Water
· Following the completion of Phase 1 and significant aspects of Phase 2 of the Management of Water Program, during 2010–11, only limited actions were undertaken this financial year. 
The main emphasis was on audits to ensure compliance with previously implemented initiatives. Despite this, the achievements of past years were maintained during this cycle. 
Waste
1. The Waste Minimisation System was implemented at 34 sites during the financial year. The System is now used by around 40 per cent of staff. 
2. Rates for diversion from landfill remained at a very satisfactory level of 88 per cent. 


Explanatory Notes – General

· ESB endeavours to ensure the reliability and validity of all reported information but notes that in some instances it is dependent on: 

2. An assumption of the accuracy and veracity of third party data; 
3. Assumptions regarding coverage of third party data; and 
4. Extrapolation of data where unavoidable information gaps exist. 
· The adjusted deadline for annual report data submission for 2011–12, from mid-August to mid-July, has created/exacerbated information gaps in some cases, particularly where third party data has yet to become available. The delays to the development and implementation of the WoVG EDMS will result in increased information gaps. In these instances, the ESB has produced data according to best practice estimation techniques. 

· With reference to the limitations associated with Note 1 above, all listed targets for 2011–12 and beyond are qualitative at this stage. 

· FTEs – In accordance with the FRD24C definition of FTE, no contractors or consultants have been included in the Victoria Police figures. 
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ENERGY MANAGEMENT PROGRAM
Victoria Police consumes energy at many different facilities including police stations, administration offices, training, transport and warehouses. Energy is used for lighting, heating, cooling, office equipment and appliances.



The data below was obtained from energy retailers billing data and also from the Victoria Police accounts system. It represents 99 per cent of the sites occupied by Victoria Police.


Actions Undertaken During 2011–12

	New Buildings
	
	
	▶ Police stations built today are 20–25 per cent more energy

	
	
	
	efficient than those built prior to 2000.
	
	

	Existing Buildings
	
	
	▶ Piloting of high efficiency LED lighting solutions at five police

	
	
	
	stations with results to be analysed to assess applicability

	
	
	
	for broader implementation.
	
	
	

	
	
	
	▶ Installation of 1.5 kW solar electricity systems as retrofits

	
	
	
	on 38 small police stations in northern Victoria, together

	
	
	
	with 6 systems installed at construction of new stations

	
	
	
	will generate in excess of 100MWH of renewable electricity.

	
	
	
	▶ Funds previously used to purchase Green Power now being

	
	
	
	invested in energy efficient initiatives to derive long-term

	
	
	
	reductions in energy use and expenditure.
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Results for 2011–12
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Indicator
	
	
	
	2010–11
	
	
	
	2011–121

	
	Electricity
	Natural
	LPG2
	Green
	Electricity
	Natural
	LPG2
	Green

	
	
	Gas
	
	Power
	
	Gas
	
	Power

	Total energy
	95,447
	103,127
	1,415
	33,345
	234,444
	96,600
	1,344
	1,744

	usage (GJ)
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Greenhouse
	65,692
	5,352
	85
	0
	78,799
	5,014
	80
	0

	gas emissions
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	(tonnes CO2-e)
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Percentage
	25.6%
	
	
	
	0.7%
	
	
	

	of electricity
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	purchased as
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	green power
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Energy use per
	22,315
	
	
	
	20,744
	
	
	

	FTE (MJ/FTE)
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Energy use
	795
	
	
	
	789
	
	
	

	per unit of
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	area (MJ/m2)
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	



Notes
1 Energy figures cover a full 12 months to the latest available data.
2 Energy units calculated from total expenditure and average cost per Kg of LPG.

Explanatory Notes

· Compared to 2010–11, electricity consumption increased by 2.6 per cent, natural gas consumption decreased by 6.4 per cent, and LPG decreased by 5 per cent. This amounted to an overall decrease in energy consumption of 0.2 per cent. The decrease occurred due to the previous year’s energy saving initiatives taking effect. 
· The energy intensity, (MJ/m2), decreased by 0.7 per cent due to energy reduction initiatives and improved energy efficiency of new police stations. There has been a 7 per cent decrease in energy use per FTE. 
· GreenPower purchases were reduced considerably and part of the cost savings used to invest in energy efficiency initiatives. This has caused an increase in the greenhouse gas emissions, 
however, in the long run both greenhouse gas emissions and cost will be reduced by this approach. 
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Environmental Reporting
Trends in Energy Consumption
Data in the graph shown at Figure 1.1 is based on GSET actual data.
Figure 1.1 Total Energy Consumption by Floor Area (MJ/m2)
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Targets for 2012–13

· Whole of Government targets have not been renewed. In the interim, an aspirational target in line with the Federal Government is to reduce greenhouse gas emissions by 5 per cent below 2000 levels by 2020. This will require an annual reduction in energy use of 3 per cent. 
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MANAGEMENT OF WATER PROGRAM
The data provided in this section is based on water meter readings from approximately 95 per cent1 of Victoria Police sites; covering approximately
96 per cent of FTEs.



Actions Undertaken During 2011–12
· Following the significant achievements in past years, limited additional work was undertaken in this Program during the assessment period which allowed for the associated funding to be used in other Programs where it was determined a better return on investment could be achieved. 
· Compliance audits were conducted during the year to ensure the benefits of past initiatives were being maintained. 


Results of 2011–12

	Indicator
	2010–11
	2011–12

	Total units of metered water consumed by usage types (kilolitres)
	183,394
	186,198

	Units of metered water consumed in offices per FTE (kilolitres/FTE)
	12.22
	11.56

	Units of metered water consumed in offices per unit of office area
	0.45
	0.44

	(kilolitres/m2)
	
	


Trends in Water Consumption
Despite a modest increase in overall water consumption, the use of water per FTE and by floor area both decreased during the assessment period. The full impact of recent increases in
Figure 2.1 Victoria Police Annual Water Consumption (kL)



sworn staffing have not been assessed over a complete financial year and these may result in further modest increases to overall consumption in the next assessment period.
Figure 2.2 Victoria Police Water Consumption per FTE (kL)
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Targets for 2012–13

▶ The conduct of compliance audits will continue during this period.

Explanatory Notes

· Water usage (kL) data requested from 16 separate retailers through the Department of Sustainability and Environment (DSE). 
▶ 1One man stations not included in the analysis, as residential and operational consumption not separable in most cases. They account in total for 26 per cent of sites, and 0.007 per cent of FTEs. 
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Environmental Reporting
WASTE MANAGEMENT PROGRAM
The ESB has developed and implemented a range of projects and systems designed to reduce the quantities of waste being sent to landfill annually. Among the initiatives to be introduced by ESB are the Waste Minimisation System (WMS), the Paper Management System, metals recycling, and
a range of other targeted waste functions.
During 2011–12, the ESB has continued with the implementation of the WMS and other initiatives to sites across the State. The data provided below relates only to those sites where the WMS has been implemented. Almost 40 per cent of staff (6,350) are at sites where this system has been introduced.
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Actions Undertaken During 2011–12
· The Waste Minimisation System was implemented at 34 sites during the year. 
· Revised arrangements for the collection of waste from Victoria Police sites were developed by the ESB during this cycle which will streamline the backend of the WMS system and generate significant savings for line areas. 


Results for 2011–12

	Indicator
	
	
	2010–11
	
	
	2011–12

	
	Landfill
	Co-mingled
	Compost
	Landfill
	Co-mingled
	Compost

	
	
	Recycling
	
	
	Recycling
	

	Total units of waste disposed
	19,231
	119,439
	39,878
	24,000
	146,500
	51,500

	of by destination (kg/year)
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Units of waste disposed of per
	3.75
	23.26
	7.77
	3.78
	23.07
	8.11

	FTE by destinations (kg/FTE)
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Recycling rate (per cent of
	
	89.23%
	
	
	89.19%
	

	total waste)
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Greenhouse gas emissions
	
	18.04
	
	
	19.25
	

	associated with waste
	
	
	
	
	
	

	disposal (t CO2-e)
	
	
	
	
	
	


Figure 3.1 Waste Streams per FTE (kg)
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Targets for 2012–13

· Rollout of the WMS will be further increased for 2012–13 with the goal of completing all 16 and 24 hour stations by the end of the 2013–14. 

Explanatory Notes

Extrapolated data
· Figures are whole-of-financial-year extrapolations based on single-day audits at representative sites. 
· Waste figures are now rounded to nearest 100. 
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PAPER MANAGEMENT
Victorian Government policy requires all copy paper to be purchased through Corporate Express and all the data represented in the following table relates to paper purchased through this arrangement.



Actions Undertaken During 2011–12
· Continued focus on the use of duplex rather than simplex printing in addition to using mono rather than colour printing during the reporting period. 
· Emphasis on the use of recycled-content paper and Australian made products was also high on the agenda for this function. 


Results for 2011–12

	Indicator (A4 Ream Equivalents)
	2010–111
	2011–12

	Total units of copy paper used
	182,419
	191,672

	Units of copy paper used per FTE (reams/FTE)
	12.16
	11.90

	Percentage of 76–100% recycled content copy paper purchased (%)
	43.20
	44.26

	Percentage of 50–75% recycled content copy paper purchased (%)
	43.73
	42.41

	Percentage of 1–49% recycled content copy paper purchased (%)
	3.22
	3.23

	Percentage of virgin-fibre copy paper purchased
	9.86
	10.10


Trends in Copy Paper Consumption
Figure 4.1 provides a comparison of copy paper usage over the past 5 years. During this time there has been a significant increase in the use of recycled-content paper. Whilst this chart also indicates an overall increase in paper usage this



is a result of increased staffing rather than increased individual consumption. This trend is highlighted in Figure 4.2 which demonstrates an overall reduction in the use of paper on an FTE basis.
Figure 4.1 Victoria Police Purchase of Copier Paper (A4 Equivalents)   Figure 4.2 Victoria Police Reams per FTE (A4 Equivalents)
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Targets for 2012–13

· Renew interaction with procurement areas across the organisation to determine reasons for the continued use of virgin-fibre copy paper and develop strategies to reduce the current levels. 
· Actions proposed under the ESB’s Sustainable IT Program have potential to reduce overall copy paper consumption. 

Explanatory Notes

6 1Minor adjustment of figures provided in last year’s annual report based on revised analysis of source data. 
7 For paper usage reporting purposes, Victoria Police is completely reliant on external supplier data. 
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Environmental Reporting
SUSTAINABLE TRANSPORT
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The Transport Branch is responsible for the management of Victoria Police’s fleet and, at present, this includes the associated environmental reporting responsibilities.

Results for 2011–12

	Indicator
	2010–11
	2011–12

	Total energy consumption by vehicles (megajoules)
	368.60
	373.15

	Total vehicle travel associated with Victoria Police
	87,171,188
	89,393,314

	operations (kilometres)
	
	

	Total greenhouse gas emissions from vehicle fleet
	27,643
	27,986

	(tonnes CO2-e)
	
	

	Greenhouse gas emissions from vehicle fleet
	0.317
	0.313

	per 1000 kilometres travelled (CO2-e)
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Compliance with Other Legislation

Firearms Act 1996 (S153C)

	
	2010–11
	2011–12

	Searches
	18
	12

	Firearms Found*
	
	

	Rifle
	0
	3

	Air rifle/gun
	0
	0

	Shotgun
	1
	0

	Handgun
	0
	0

	Machine gun
	0
	0

	Sawnoff firearm
	2
	0

	Imitation firearm
	1
	0

	Cartridge ammunition
	0
	0

	Other firearm
	0
	2

	Total
	4
	5


Note
Data extracted from LEAP on 18 July 2012 and is subject to variation. *This data is held in a free text field, not coded, and may not be complete.
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Compliance with Other Legislation 
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Control of Weapons Act 1990 (S10B)

	
	
	
	2010 –11
	2011–12

	Number of searches under act
	
	
	858
	2983

	
	
	
	
	

	Control of Weapons Act 1990 (S10G)
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	Number
	Number
	Number of
	Number

	
	of Wand
	of Weapons
	Outer Searches
	of Strip

	
	Searches
	Found
	(i.e Pat Down)
	Searches

	2010–11
	846
	15
	12
	0

	2011–12
	2506
	24
	475
	2
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Drugs, Poisons and Controlled Substances Act 1981

	Persons contacted
	Total 24

	Searches of persons under 18 years (s60 E)
	13 persons

	Searches of persons irrespective of age (s60 F)
	11 persons

	Unknown
	nil

	Male
	20

	Female
	2

	Unknown
	2

	
	

	Indigenous
	0

	Non indigenous
	16

	Unknown
	8

	Surrendered Substances and Items on Request of Police Officer (s60 H 1(b))
	

	None
	0

	Some
	0

	All
	24

	Unknown
	0

	Returned (s60 N)
	

	None
	0

	Some
	0

	All
	0

	Unknown
	0

	Disposed (s60 O)
	

	None
	0

	Some
	0

	All
	24

	Unknown
	0

	Forfeited (s60 P)
	

	None
	0

	Some
	0

	All
	24

	Unknown
	0

	Substances seized
	

	Aerosol (paint)
	18

	Solvent
	9

	Plastic bag
	10

	Paper bag
	0

	Container
	0

	Gases (butane)
	0

	Other (silicone)
	6

	Total
	43



Note
2011–12 figures have been manually collected from raw unit data.
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Compliance with Other Legislation 
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Graffiti Prevention Act 2007 (S17)

	
	2010–11
	2011–12

	Searches
	99
	194

	Graffiti Implements Found
	
	

	Aerosol paint container
	45
	29

	Texta/marker
	22
	14

	Other graffiti implement
	12
	5

	Total
	79
	48

	Note
	
	

	This data is held in a free text field, not coded, and may not be complete.
	
	

	
	
	

	Age Group by Financial Year of Date of Search
	
	

	
	
	

	Age
	2010–11
	2011–12

	<10
	0
	0

	10–14
	17
	18

	15–17
	58
	53

	18–23
	12
	38

	24+
	11
	85

	Unspecified
	1
	0

	Total
	99
	194
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Sex Work Act 1994 (S21L)

	a) the number of banning notices given;
	
	333

	b) the number of persons to whom banning notices were given;
	
	333

	c) the number of banning notices given to each person who
	
	n/a

	was given more than one banning notice;
	
	

	d) the declared areas in which those offences were suspected
	
	Not

	of being committed;
	
	available

	e) the ages of the persons to whom banning notices were given;
	
	

	
	
	

	Age Group
	2010–11
	2011–12

	
	
	

	<18
	0
	1

	18–24
	15
	42

	25–29
	27
	67

	30–34
	16
	37

	35–39
	18
	53

	40–44
	23
	50

	45–49
	12
	21

	50–54
	13
	17

	55–59
	3
	19

	60–64
	4
	12

	65–69
	3
	6

	70–74
	1
	2

	75+
	0
	1

	Unspecified
	4
	5

	Total
	139
	333

	f) whether any of the persons to whom banning
	
	No coded field to

	notices were given were of Koori origin;
	
	extract this data

	g) the number of banning notices given in relation
	
	No coded field to

	to each declared area.
	
	extract this data
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Comprehensive Operating Statement for the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2012

	
	2012
	2012

	
	Actual
	Budget

	
	$'000
	$'000

	Net Result from Continuing Operations
	
	

	Income from Transactions
	
	

	Output appropriations
	2,041,299
	2,035,047

	Interest
	98
	50

	Sale of goods and services
	836
	0

	Grants
	4,190
	3,700

	Fair value of assets and services received free
	179
	0

	of charge or for nominal consideration
	
	

	Other Income
	2,890
	1,514

	Total income from transactions
	2,049,491
	2,040,311

	Expenses from Transactions
	
	

	Employee benefits
	1,476,722
	1,422,225

	Depreciation and amortisation
	67,816
	85,447

	Interest expense
	3,485
	3,967

	Capital asset charge
	76,436
	76,436

	Purchase of supplies and services
	455,339
	449,395

	Total expenses from transactions
	2,079,798
	2,037,469

	Net result from transactions (net operating balance)
	(30,307)
	2,842

	Other Economic Flows Included in Net Result
	
	

	Net gain/(loss) on non-financial assets
	7,124
	10,700

	Other gains (loss) from other economic flows
	(13,104)
	

	Total other economic flows included in net result
	(5,979)
	10,700

	Net result
	(36,286)
	13,542

	Other economic flows – other non-owner changes in equity
	–
	–

	Comprehensive result
	(36,286)
	13,542
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Balance Sheet as at 30 June 2012

	
	2012
	2012

	
	Actual
	Budget

	
	$’000
	$’000

	Assets
	
	

	Financial Assets
	
	

	Cash and deposits
	32,491
	2,227

	Receivables
	340,982
	463,722

	Total financial assets
	373,473
	465,949

	Non Financial Assets
	
	

	Inventories
	5,274
	3,921

	Non-financial assets classified as held for sale, including disposal group assets
	21,735
	1,558

	Property, plant and equipment
	1,276,667
	1,293,824

	Intangible assets
	3,242
	2,615

	Other
	28,372
	12,742

	Total non financial assets
	1,335,290
	1,314,661

	Total assets
	1,708,763
	1,780,610

	Liabilities
	
	

	Payables
	53,075
	66,135

	Borrowings
	63,582
	49,468

	Provisions
	435,237
	447,303

	Total liabilities
	551,894
	562,906

	Net assets
	1,156,869
	1,217,704

	Equity
	
	

	Accumulated surplus/(deficit)
	42,639
	92,466

	Reserves
	570,491
	570,491

	Contributed capital
	543,739
	554,746

	Total equity
	1,156,869
	1,217,703
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Cash Flow Statement for the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2012

	
	2012
	2012

	
	Actual
	Budget

	
	$’000
	$’000

	Cash Flow from Operating Activities
	
	

	Receipts from Department of Justice
	2,054,691
	2,038,547

	Sales of goods – donations and contribution
	12,192
	2,700

	Payments to suppliers and employees
	(1,978,461)
	(1,865,883)

	Interest received
	98
	50

	Capital asset charge
	(76,436)
	(76,436)

	Borrowing costs
	(3,485)
	(3,967)

	GST paid to or received from ATO
	50,278
	39,923

	Net cash flows from /(used) in operating activities
	58,877
	134,934

	Cash Flows from Investing Activities
	
	

	Proceeds on sale of property, plant and equipment
	24,471
	34,000

	Payments for property, plant and equipment
	(65,324)
	(54,965)

	Net cash provided by/(used) in investing activities
	(40,852)
	(20,965)

	Cash Flows from Financing Activities
	
	

	Proceeds from capital contribution by Department of Justice
	17,190
	16,107

	Prepayments of finance leases
	(40,314)
	(26,723)

	Net cash flows from/(used) in financing activities
	(23,124)
	(10,616)

	Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
	(5,099)
	103,353

	Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year
	37,591
	0

	Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year
	32,492
	0
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Administered Items Statement for the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2012

	
	2012
	2012

	
	Actual
	Budget

	
	$'000
	$'000

	Administered Income
	
	

	Interest
	146
	17

	Sales of goods and services
	11,710
	13,767

	Grants
	2,849
	3,500

	Other income
	21,934
	14,472

	Total income from transactions
	36,639
	31,756

	Administered Expenses
	
	

	Employee benefits
	2,784
	2,321

	Depreciation and amortisation
	4
	43

	Grants and other transfers
	2,374
	–

	Payments into consolidated fund
	28,862
	26,563

	Other operating expenses
	1,137
	2,038

	Total expenses from transactions
	35,161
	30,965

	Other economic flows
	937
	700

	Other economic flows – other non owner changes in equity
	(9,316)
	(8,668)

	Departmental comprehensive result
	(6,901)
	(7,177)

	Administered Assets
	
	

	Cash and deposits
	20,459
	16,266

	Receivables
	4,789
	4,257

	Other financial assets
	0
	385

	Non financial assets classified as held for sale
	(5,480)
	(5,150)

	Property, plant and equipment
	(6,520)
	(5,960)

	Other financial assets
	0
	14

	Total administered assets
	13,249
	9,811

	Administered Liabilities
	
	

	Payables
	18,704
	18,948

	Provisions
	451
	511

	Total administered liabilities
	19,155
	19,459

	Accumulated surplus/(deficit)
	(6,901)
	(7,177)

	Contributed capital
	994
	994
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Comprehensive Operating Statement
for the Financial Year ended 30 June 2012

	
	Note
	2012
	2011

	
	
	$’000
	$’000

	
	
	
	

	Income from Transactions
	
	
	

	Revenue from government
	2(a)
	2,041,299
	1,958,040

	Other income
	2(b)
	10,183
	14,558

	Total income from transactions
	
	2,051,482
	1,972,598

	Expenses from Transactions
	
	
	

	Employee expenses
	3(a)
	1,476,981
	1,357,314

	Depreciation and amortisation
	3(b)
	67,816
	62,774

	Capital asset charge
	3(c)
	76,436
	71,801

	Supplies and services
	3(d)
	456,733
	469,970

	Interest expense
	3(e)
	3,485
	3,267

	Total expenses from transactions
	
	2,081,451
	1,965,125

	Net result from transactions (net operating balance)
	
	(29,969)
	7,473

	Other Economic Flows included in Net Result
	
	
	

	Net gain/(loss) on non-financial assets
	4(a)
	6,786
	3,648

	Net gain/(loss) from other economic flows
	4(b)
	(13,104)
	2,243

	Total other economic flows included in net result
	
	(6,317)
	5,892

	Net result
	
	(36,286)
	13,364

	Other Economic Flows – other Non-owner changes in Equity
	
	
	

	Changes in physical asset revaluation surplus
	20
	–
	309,576

	Comprehensive result – total change in net worth
	
	(36,286)
	322,941


Note
The above comprehensive operating statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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	Note
	2012
	2011

	
	
	$’000
	$’000

	
	
	
	

	Assets
	
	
	

	Financial Assets
	
	
	

	Cash and deposits
	19(a)
	32,491
	37,591

	Receivables
	5
	340,982
	357,116

	Total financial assets
	
	373,473
	394,707

	Non-financial Assets
	
	
	

	Other non-financial assets
	6
	28,372
	12,742

	Inventories
	
	5,274
	3,921

	Non-financial assets classified as held for sale
	7
	21,735
	8,196

	Property, plant and equipment
	8
	1,276,667
	1,291,014

	Intangible assets
	10
	3,241
	2,619

	Total non-financial assets
	
	1,335,290
	1,318,493

	Total assets
	
	1,708,763
	1,713,200

	Liabilities
	
	
	

	Payables
	11
	53,075
	65,178

	Borrowings
	12
	63,582
	58,726

	Provisions
	13
	435,237
	412,734

	Total liabilities
	
	551,894
	536,638

	Net assets
	
	1,156,869
	1,176,562

	Equity
	
	
	

	Accumulated surplus
	
	42,639
	78,925

	Contributed capital
	
	543,739
	527,146

	Physical asset revaluation surplus
	20
	570,491
	570,491

	Net worth
	
	1,156,869
	1,176,562

	Commitments for expenditure
	16
	
	

	Contingent liabilities
	17
	
	


Note
The above balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of Changes in Equity
for the Financial Year ended 30 June 2012

	
	Physical Asset
	Accumulated
	Contributions
	Total

	
	Revaluation
	Surplus
	by Owner
	$’000

	
	Surplus
	$’000
	$’000
	

	
	
	
	
	

	Balance at 1 July 2010
	260,915
	65,562
	495,250
	821,727

	Net result for the year
	
	7,472
	
	7,473

	Other comprehensive
	309,576
	5,892
	
	315,468

	income for the year
	
	
	
	

	Capital contribution from /(to)
	
	
	(4,565)
	(4,565)

	other state departments/entities
	
	
	
	

	Capital contribution by Department
	
	
	36,461
	36,461

	of Justice as part of annual grants
	
	
	
	

	Balance at 30 June 2011
	570,491
	78,927
	527,146
	1,176,564

	Net result for the year
	
	(29,969)
	
	(29,969)

	Other comprehensive
	
	(6,317)
	
	(6,317)

	Income for the year
	
	
	
	

	Capital contribution from /(to)
	
	
	(1,175)
	(1,175)

	other state departments/entities
	
	
	
	

	Capital contribution by Department
	
	
	17,768
	17,768

	of Justice as part of annual grants
	
	
	
	

	Balance at 30 June 2012
	570,491
	42,639
	543,739
	1,156,869
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	Note
	2012
	2011

	
	
	$’000
	$’000

	
	
	
	

	Cash Flows from Operating Activities
	
	
	

	Receipts from Department of Justice
	
	2,054,691
	1,934,364

	Donations and other contributions
	
	11,356
	10,754

	Sales of goods and services
	
	836
	2,070

	Interest received
	
	98
	84

	GST received from ATO
	
	50,278
	59,723

	Payments to suppliers and employees
	
	(1,978,461)
	(1,907,462)

	Capital asset charge
	
	(76,436)
	(71,801)

	Borrowing costs
	
	(3,485)
	(3,267)

	Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities
	19(c)
	58,877
	24,466

	Cash Flows from Investing Activities
	
	
	

	Proceeds on sale of property, plant and equipment
	
	24,471
	24,121

	Payments for property, plant and equipment
	
	(65,324)
	(69,774)

	Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities
	
	(40,852)
	(45,653)

	Cash Flows from Financing Activities
	
	
	

	Proceeds from capital contribution by the Department of Justice
	
	17,190
	31,896

	Repayment of finance leases
	
	(40,314)
	(43,947)

	Net cash flows from/(used in) financing activities
	
	(23,124)
	(12,051)

	Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
	
	(5,099)
	(33,238)

	Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year
	
	37,591
	70,830

	Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year
	19(a)
	32,492
	37,591


Note
The above cash flow statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 30 JUNE 2012
Note 1. Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies
The annual financial statements represent the audited general purpose financial statements for Victoria Police for the period ending 30 June 2012.
The purpose of the report is to provide users with information about Victoria Police’s stewardship of resources entrusted to it.
(A) Statement of Compliance
These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Financial Management Act 1994 (FMA) and applicable Australian Accounting Standards (AAS) which include Interpretations, issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB). In particular, they are presented in a manner consistent with the requirements of the AASB 1049 Whole of Government and General Government Sector Financial Reporting.
Where appropriate, those AAS paragraphs applicable to not-for-profit entities have been applied.
Accounting policies are selected and applied in a manner which ensures that the resulting financial information satisfies the concepts of relevance and reliability, thereby ensuring that the substance of the underlying transactions or other events is reported.
To gain a better understanding of the terminology used in this report, a glossary of terms and style conventions can be found in note 28 Glossary of terms.
The annual financial statements were authorised for issue by the Chief Commissioner of Police on 16th August 2012.
(B) Basis of Accounting Preparation
and Measurement
The accrual basis of accounting has been applied in the preparation of these financial statements whereby assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses are recognised in the reporting period to which they relate, regardless of when cash is received or paid.
Judgements, estimates and assumptions are required to be made about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on professional judgements derived from historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates.



Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and also in future periods that are affected by the revision.
Judgements and assumptions made by management in the application of AASs that have significant effects on the financial statements and estimates relate to:
· The fair value of land, buildings, plant and equipment, refer to note 1(L) Non-financial assets; and 
· Actuarial assumptions for employee benefit provisions based on likely tenure of existing staff, patterns of leave claims, future salary movements and future discount rates refer to note 1(M) Liabilities. 
These financial statements are presented in Australian dollars, prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention except for:
· Non-financial physical assets which, subsequent to acquisition, are measured at a revalued amount being their fair value at the date of the revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent impairment losses. Revaluations are made with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amounts do not materially differ from their fair value; 
· The fair value of an asset other than land is generally based on its depreciated replacement value; and 
· Long service leave liability that is calculated with regard to actuarial assessments of the future inflation factor. 
(C) Reporting Entity
The financial statements cover Victoria Police as an individual reporting entity. Victoria Police is an administrative agency acting on behalf of the Crown. Its principal address is:
Victoria Police Centre
637 Flinders Street
Docklands VIC 3008
The financial statements include all the controlled activities of Victoria Police, including all funds through which Victoria Police controls resources to carry on its functions.
A description of the nature of Victoria Police’s operations and its principal activities is included in the report of operations on page 5 which does not form part of these financial statements.
OBJECTIVES AND FUNDING
The objectives of Victoria Police are to provide a safe, secure and orderly society by serving the community and the law. Funding is provided to carry out its statutory obligations of preserving the peace, protecting life and property, preventing offences, detecting and apprehending offenders and helping those in need.
Victoria Police is predominantly funded by grants received from the Department of Justice.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 30 JUNE 2012
OUTPUTS OF VICTORIA POLICE
The Policing Services output represents the Victoria Police contribution to the Government’s desired outcome of Public Safety and Crime Reduction. It includes the prevention, detection and investigation of crime; responding to community calls for assistance in matters of personal and public safety and in emergencies; and promoting safer road
user behaviour by road traffic law enforcement. These services reflect a focus on reducing the overall incidence and fear of crime and enhancing the safety of the Victorian community.
(D) Basis of Consolidation
In accordance with AASB 127 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements:
· The consolidated financial statements of Victoria Police incorporates assets and liabilities of all reporting entities controlled by Victoria Police as at 30 June 2012, and their income and expenses for that part of the reporting period in which control existed. 
· The consolidated financial statements exclude bodies within Victoria Police’s portfolio that are not controlled by Victoria Police and therefore are not consolidated. Bodies and activities that are administered (see explanation below under administered items) are also not controlled and not consolidated. 
In the process of preparing consolidated financial statements for Victoria Police, all material transactions and balances between consolidated entities are eliminated. Bodies consolidated
into Victoria Police’s reporting entity are: Traffic Information System, and Commissioner for Law Enforcement Data Security.
Consistent with the requirements of AASB 1004 Contributions, contributions by owners (that is, contributed capital and its repayment) are treated as equity transactions and, therefore, do not form part of the income and expenses of Victoria Police.
ADMINISTERED ITEMS
Certain resources are administered by Victoria Police on behalf of the State. While Victoria Police is accountable for the transactions involving administered items, it does not have the discretion to deploy the resources for its own benefit or
the achievement of its objectives. Accordingly, transactions and balances relating to administered items are not recognised as Victoria Police income, expenses, assets or liabilities within the body of the financial statements.
Administered income includes fees and fines and the proceeds from the sale of administered surplus property. Administered assets include government income earned but yet to be collected. Administered liabilities include government expenses incurred but yet to be paid.



Except as otherwise disclosed, administered resources are accounted for on an accrual basis using the same accounting policies adopted for recognition of the Victoria Police items in the financial statements. Both controlled and administered items of Victoria Police are consolidated into the financial statements of the State.
Disclosures related to administered items can be found in Note 21 Administered items.
FUNDS HELD IN TRUST – OTHER TRUST ACTIVITIES ON BEHALF OF PARTIES EXTERNAL TO THE VICTORIAN GOVERNMENT
Victoria Police has responsibility for transactions and balances relating to trust funds on behalf of third parties external to the Victorian Government. Income, expenses, assets and liabilities managed on behalf of third parties are not recognised in these financial statements as they are managed on a fiduciary and custodial basis, and therefore are not controlled by Victoria Police or the Victorian Government. These transactions and balances are reported in note 23(C) Third party funds
under management.
(E) Scope and Presentation
of Financial Statements
COMPREHENSIVE OPERATING STATEMENT
Income and expenses in the comprehensive operating statement are classified according to whether or not they arise from ‘transactions’ or ‘other economic flows’. This classification is
consistent with the whole of government reporting format and is allowed under AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements.
‘Transactions’ and ‘other economic flows’ are defined by the Australian system of government finance statistics: Concepts, Sources and Methods 2005 and Amendments to Australian System of Government Finance Statistics, 2005 (ABS Catalogue No. 5514.0) (the GFS manual), refer note 28 Glossary of terms.
‘Transactions’ are those economic flows that are considered to arise as a result of policy decisions, usually interactions between two entities by mutual agreement. Transactions also include flows within an entity, such as depreciation where the owner is simultaneously acting as the owner of the depreciating asset and as the consumer of the service provided by the asset. Taxation is regarded as mutually agreed interactions between the Government and taxpayers. Transactions can be in kind (e.g. assets provided / given free of charge or for nominal consideration)
or where the final consideration is cash.
‘Other economic flows’ are changes arising from market re-measurements. They include gains and losses from disposals, revaluations and impairments of non-current physical and intangible assets.
The net result is equivalent to profit or loss derived in accordance with AASs.
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BALANCE SHEET
Assets and liabilities are presented in liquidity order with assets aggregated into financial and non-financial assets.
Current and non-current assets and liabilities (non-current being those assets or liabilities expected to be recovered or settled beyond 12 months) are disclosed in the notes, where relevant.
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
Cash flows are classified according to whether or not they arise from operating, investing, or financing activities. This classification is consistent with requirements under AASB 107 Statement of
Cash Flows.
For cash flow statement presentation purposes cash and cash equivalents include bank overdrafts, which are included in cash and deposits on the balance sheet.
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
The statement of changes in equity presents reconciliations of each non-owner and owner changes in equity from opening balance at the beginning of the reporting period to the closing balance at the end of the reporting period. It also shows separately changes due to amounts recognised in the ‘Comprehensive result’ and amounts recognised in ‘Other economic flows – other movements in equity’ related to ‘Transactions with owner in its capacity as owner’.
ROUNDING
Amounts in the financial statements (including the notes) have been rounded to the nearest thousand dollars, unless otherwise stated. Figures in the financial statements may not equate due to roundings.
(F) Income from Transactions
Income is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the entity and the income can be reliably measured at fair value.
REVENUE FROM GOVERNMENT – GRANTS RECEIVED FROM THE DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
Revenue from government becomes controlled and is recognised by Victoria Police when it has been granted by the Department of Justice. Additionally, Victoria Police is permitted under s29 of the
Financial Management Act 1994 to have certain income annotated to the revenue from government. The income which forms part of a s29 agreement is recognised by Victoria Police and the receipts paid into the Consolidated Fund as an administered item. At the point of income recognition, s29 provides for an equivalent amount to be added to the Department of Justice annual appropriation. Examples of receipts which can form part of a s29 agreement
are Commonwealth specific purpose grants, the proceeds from the sale of assets and income from the sale of products and services.



Where applicable, amounts disclosed as income are net of returns, allowances, duties and taxes. All amounts of income over which Victoria Police
does not have control are disclosed as administered income in the schedule of administered income and expenses, refer note 21 Administered items. Income is recognised for each of Victoria Police’s major activities as follows:
Income from grants received is based on the output Victoria Police provides to Government and is recognised when the output has been delivered and the relevant minister has certified delivery
of the output in accordance with specified performance criteria.
INTEREST
Interest includes interest received on term deposits and other investments and the unwinding over time of the discount on financial assets. Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method which allocates the interest over the relevant period.
Net realised and unrealised gains and losses on the revaluation of investments do not form part of income from transactions, but are reported as part
of income from other economic flows in the net result or as unrealised gains and losses taken directly to equity, forming part of the total change in net worth in the comprehensive result.
SALES OF GOODS AND SERVICES – INCOME FROM THE SUPPLY OF SERVICES
Income from the supply of services is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the services being performed. The income is recognised when:
· The amount of the income, stage of completion and transaction costs incurred can be reliably measured; and 
· It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to Victoria Police. 
Under the stage of completion method, income is recognised by reference to labour hours supplied or to labour hours supplied as a percentage of total services to be performed in each annual reporting period.
SALES OF GOODS AND SERVICES –
INCOME FROM SALE OF GOODS
Income from the sale of goods is recognised when:
· Victoria Police no longer has any of the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods transferred to the buyer; 
· Victoria Police no longer has continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold; 
· The amount of income, and the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transactions, can be reliably measured; 
· It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to Victoria Police. 
Sale of goods and services includes regulatory
fees which are recognised at the time the regulatory fee is billed.
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GRANTS
Income from grants (other than contribution by owners) is recognised when Victoria Police gains control over the contribution.
Where such grants are payable into the Consolidated Fund, they are reported as administered income, refer to note 1(D) Basis of consolidation, and note 1(J) Financial instruments. For reciprocal grants (i.e. equal value is given back by Victoria Police to the provider), Victoria Police is deemed to have assumed control when the performance obligations under the terms of the grant have been satisfied. For non reciprocal grants, Victoria Police is deemed to have assumed control when the grant is receivable or received. Conditional grants may be reciprocal or non reciprocal depending on the terms of the grant.
FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS AND SERVICES RECEIVED FREE OF CHARGE OR FOR NOMINAL CONSIDERATION
Contributions of resources received free of charge or for nominal consideration are recognised at fair value when control is obtained over them, irrespective of whether these contributions are subject to restrictions or conditions over their use. Contributions in the form of services are only recognised when a fair value can be reliably determined and the services would have been purchased if not received as a donation.
OTHER INCOME
Other income includes income in relation to trusts, income from sale of goods and services, assets received free of charge or for nominal consideration, and assets recognised for the first time.
(G) Expenses from Transactions
Expenses from transactions are recognised as they are incurred and reported in the financial year to which they relate.
EMPLOYEE EXPENSES
Refer to the section in note 1(M) Liabilities regarding employee benefits.
These expenses include all costs related to employment (other than superannuation which is accounted for separately) including wages and salaries, fringe benefits tax, leave entitlements, redundancy payments and WorkCover premiums.
For the purposes of reporting responsible persons remuneration, Victoria Police has complied with the requirement of FRD 21B Responsible Person and Executive Office Disclosure in the Financial Report.
However these disclosures do not reflect the range of disclosures required of for-profit entities under AASB 124 Related Party Disclosures. Notwithstanding this, as Victoria Police is a not for profit entity, disclosure requirements under AASB 124 do not apply.



SUPERANNUATION
The amount recognised in the comprehensive operating statement is the employer contributions for members of both defined benefit and defined contribution superannuation plans that are paid or payable during the reporting period.
The Department of Treasury and Finance (DTF) in their Annual Financial Statements disclose on behalf of the State as the sponsoring employer,
the net defined benefit cost related to the members of these plans as an administered liability. Refer
to DTF’s Annual Financial Statements for more detailed disclosures in relation to these plans.
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION
All buildings, plant and equipment and other non-financial physical assets (excluding items under operating leases, assets held-for-sale, and land) that have finite useful lives are depreciated. Depreciation is generally calculated on a straight-line basis,
at rates that allocate the asset’s value, less any estimated residual value, over its estimated useful life. Refer to note 1(L) Non-financial assets for the depreciation policy for leasehold improvements.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period, and adjustments made where appropriate.
The following are typical estimated useful lives for the different asset classes for current and prior years:

	
	2012
	2011

	
	
	

	Buildings
	1–53 years
	1–53 years

	Leasehold
	1–42 years
	1–42 years

	improvements
	
	

	Plant and
	1–39 years
	1–39 years

	equipment
	
	

	Leased plant
	1–3 years
	1–3 years

	and equipment
	
	

	Software
	1–3 years
	1–3 years


Land and core cultural assets, which are considered to have an indefinite life, are not depreciated. Depreciation is not recognised in respect of these assets because their service potential has not,
in any material sense, been consumed during the reporting period.
Intangible produced assets with finite useful lives are depreciated as an expense from transactions on a systematic (typically straight-line) basis over the asset’s useful life. Depreciation begins when the asset is available for use, that is, when it is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management.
The consumption of intangible non-produced assets with finite useful lives is not classified as a transaction, but as amortisation and is included in the net result as an other economic flow.
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INTEREST EXPENSE
Interest expense is recognised in the period in which it is incurred. Refer to Note 28 Glossary of terms for an explanation of interest expense items.
GRANTS AND OTHER TRANSFERS
Grants and other transfers to third parties (other than contribution to owners) are recognised as an expense in the reporting period in which they are paid or payable. Refer to Note 28 Glossary of terms for an explanation of grants and other transfers.
CAPITAL ASSET CHARGE
The capital asset charge is calculated on the budgeted carrying amount of applicable non-financial physical assets.
OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
Other operating expenses generally represent the day to day running costs incurred in normal operations.
SUPPLIES AND SERVICES
Supplies and services costs are recognised as an expense in the reporting period in which they are incurred. The carrying amounts of any inventories held for distribution are expensed when distributed.
EX GRATIA PAYMENTS
These are payments made to employees or members of the public to compensate or reimburse, where Victoria Police are not legally bound to make one. They may also be made in order to avoid litigation.
BAD AND DOUBTFUL DEBTS
Refer to note 1(K) Financial assets – Impairment of financial assets.
FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS AND SERVICES PROVIDED FREE OF CHARGE OR FOR NOMINAL CONSIDERATION
Contributions of resources provided free of charge or for nominal consideration are recognised at their fair value when the transferee obtains control over them, irrespective of whether restrictions
or conditions are imposed over the use of the contributions, unless received from another government department or agency as a consequence of a restructuring of administrative arrangements. In the latter case, such a transfer will be recognised at its carrying value.
(H) Other Economic Flows Included
in the Net Result
Other economic flows measure the change in volume or value of assets or liabilities that do not result from transactions.
NET GAIN/(LOSS) ON NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
Net gain/(loss) on non-financial assets and liabilities includes realised and unrealised gains and losses as follows:



REVALUATION GAINS/(LOSSES) OF
NON-FINANCIAL PHYSICAL ASSETS
Refer to note 1(L) Non-financial assets – Revaluations of non-financial physical assets.
DISPOSAL OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
Any gain or loss on the sale of non-financial assets is recognised at the date of disposal and is determined after deducting from the proceeds the carrying value of the asset at the time.
IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
Intangible assets not yet available for use or with indefinite useful lives are tested annually for impairment (as described below) and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.
All other assets are assessed annually for indications of impairment, except for:
· Inventories, refer to note 1(L) Non-financial assets; 
· Non-financial physical assets held-for-sale, refer to note 1(L) Non-financial assets. 
If there is an indication of impairment, the assets concerned are tested as to whether their carrying value exceeds their recoverable amount. Where an asset’s carrying value exceeds its recoverable amount, the difference is written off as an other economic flow, except to the extent that the write-down can be debited to an asset revaluation surplus amount applicable to that class of asset.
If there is an indication that there has been a change in the estimate of an asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised, the carrying amount shall be increased to its recoverable amount. This reversal of the impairment loss occurs only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised in prior years.
It is deemed that, in the event of the loss of an asset, the future economic benefits arising from the use of the asset will be replaced unless a specific decision to the contrary has been made. The recoverable amount for most assets is measured at the higher of depreciated replacement cost and fair value less costs to sell. Recoverable amount for assets held primarily to generate net cash inflows is measured at the higher of the present value of future cash flows expected to be obtained from the asset and fair value less costs to sell.
Refer to note 1(L) Non-financial assets in relation to the recognition and measurement of non-financial assets.
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OTHER GAINS (LOSSES) FROM OTHER ECONOMIC FLOWS
Other gains/(losses) from other economic flows include the gains or losses from:
· Transfer of amounts from the reserves and/ or accumulated surplus to net result due to 
disposal or derecognition or reclassification; and 
· The revaluation of the present value of the long service leave liability due to changes in the bond interest rates. 
(I) Administered Income
FINES AND REGULATORY FEES
Victoria Police does not gain control over assets arising from fines and regulatory fees, consequently no income is recognised in Victoria Police’s financial statements.
Victoria Police collects these amounts on behalf
of the State. Accordingly the amounts are disclosed as income in note 21 Administered items. Refer to note 1(F) Income from transactions in relation to the accounting for grants.
GRANTS FROM THE COMMONWEALTH GOVERNMENT AND OTHER JURISDICTIONS
Victoria Police’s administered grants mainly comprise funds provided by the Commonwealth to assist the State Government in meeting general or specific service delivery obligations, primarily for the purpose of aiding in the financing of the operations of the recipient, capital purposes and/or for on-passing to other recipients. Victoria Police also receives grants for on passing from other jurisdictions. Victoria Police does not have control over these grants, and the income is not recognised in Victoria Police’s financial statements. Administered grants are disclosed in note 21 Administered items.



(J) Financial Instruments
Financial instruments arise out of contractual agreements that give rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. Due to the nature of Victoria Police’s activities, certain financial assets and financial liabilities arise under statute rather than a contract. Such financial assets and financial liabilities do
not meet the definition of financial instruments in AASB 132 Financial Instruments: Presentation.
For example, statutory receivables arising from taxes, fines and penalties do not meet the definition of financial instruments as they do not arise under contract. However, guarantees issued by the Treasurer on behalf of Victoria Police are financial instruments because, although authorised under statute, the terms and conditions for each financial guarantee may vary and are subject to an agreement.
Where relevant, for note disclosure purposes, a distinction is made between those financial assets and financial liabilities that meet the
definition of financial instruments in accordance with AASB 132 and those that do not.
The following refers to financial instruments unless otherwise stated.
CATEGORIES OF NON-DERIVATIVE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Loans and Receivables
Loans and receivables are financial instrument assets with fixed and determinable payments that are not quoted on an active market. These assets are initially recognised at fair value plus any directly attributable transactions costs. Subsequent to initial measurement, loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment.
Loans and receivables category included cash and deposits, (refer to note 1(K) Financial assets), trade receivables, loans and other receivables, but not statutory receivables.
Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost
Financial instrument liabilities are initially recognised on the date they are originated. They are initially measured at fair value plus any
directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these financial instruments are measured at amortised cost with any difference between the initial recognised amount and the redemption value being recognised in profit and loss over the period of the interest-bearing liability, using the effective interest rate method, refer to note 18 Financial instruments.
Financial instrument liabilities measured at amortised cost include all contractual payables, deposits held and advances received, and interest-bearing arrangements other than those designated at fair value through profit or loss.
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(K) Financial Assets
CASH AND DEPOSITS
Cash and deposits, including cash equivalents, comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, deposits at call and those highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less, which are held for the purpose of meeting short term cash commitments rather than for investment purposes, and which are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
For cash flow statement presentation purposes, cash and cash equivalents includes bank overdrafts, which are included as cash on the balance sheet.
Any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset is recognised in the comprehensive operating statement as a transaction.
RECEIVABLES
Receivables consist of:
· Statutory receivables, which include predominantly amounts owing from Department of Justice for undrawndown appropriations and GST input tax credits recoverable; and 
· Contractual receivables, which include mainly debtors in relation to goods and services and accrued investment income. Receivables that are contractual are classified as financial instruments. Statutory receivables are not classified as financial instruments. 
Contractual receivables are classified as financial instruments and categorised as loans and receivables, refer to note 18 Financial instruments. Statutory receivables are recognised and measured similarly to contractual receivables (except for impairment), but are not classified as financial instruments because they do not arise from a contract.
Receivables are subject to impairment testing as described below. A provision for doubtful receivables is made when there is objective evidence that the debts may not be collected, and bad debts are written off when identified.



DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised when:
· The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or 
· Victoria Police retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass through’ arrangement; or 
· Victoria Police has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either: 
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or 

has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. 

Where Victoria Police has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards or transferred control, the asset is recognised to the extent of Victoria Police’s continuing involvement in the asset.
IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
At the end of each reporting period, Victoria Police assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. All financial instrument assets, except those measured at fair value through profit or loss, are subject to annual review for impairment.
Receivables are assessed for bad and doubtful debts on a regular basis. Those bad debts considered as written off by mutual consent are classified as
a transaction expense. Bad debts not written off by mutual consent and the allowance for doubtful receivables are classified as other economic flows in the net result.
The amount of the allowance is the difference between the financial asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate.
In assessing impairment of statutory (non-contractual) financial assets, which are not financial instruments, professional judgement is applied in assessing materiality using estimates, averages and other computational methods in accordance with AASB 136 Impairment of Assets.
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(L) Non-financial Assets
INVENTORIES
Inventories include goods held for distribution at zero or nominal cost, or for consumption in the ordinary course of business operations.
Inventories held for distribution are measured at cost, adjusted for any loss of service potential. All other inventories, including land held for sale,
are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Where inventories are required for no cost
or nominal consideration, they are measured at current replacement cost at the date of acquisition.
Cost includes an appropriate portion of fixed and variable overhead expenses. Cost is assigned to land held for sale (undeveloped, under development and developed) and to other high value, low volume inventory items on a specific identification of cost basis. Cost for all other inventory is measured on the basis of weighted average cost.
Bases used in assessing loss of service potential for inventories held for distribution include current replacement cost and technical or functional obsolescence. Technical obsolescence occurs when an item still functions for some or all of the tasks it was originally acquired to do, but no longer matches existing technologies. Functional obsolescence occurs when an item no longer functions the way
it did when it was first acquired.
NON-FINANCIAL PHYSICAL ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE, INCLUDING DISPOSAL GROUP ASSETS
Non-financial physical assets (including disposal group assets) are treated as current and classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use.
This condition is regarded as met only when:
(a) The asset is available for immediate use in the current condition; and 
(b) The sale is highly probable and the asset’s sale 
is expected to be completed within twelve months from the date of classification. 
These non-financial physical assets, related liabilities and financial assets are measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell,
and are not subject to depreciation or amortisation.



PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
All non-financial physical assets are measured initially at cost and subsequently revalued at fair value less accumulated depreciation and impairment. Where an asset is received for no or nominal cost, the cost is the asset’s fair value at the date of acquisition.
The initial cost for non-financial physical assets under a finance lease (refer to note 1(N) Leases) is measured at amounts equal to the fair value of the leased asset or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments, each determined at the inception of the lease.
Non-financial physical assets such as Crown land and heritage assets are measured at fair value with regard to the property’s highest and best use after due consideration is made for any legal or constructive restrictions imposed on the asset, public announcements or commitments made in
relation to the intended use of the asset. Theoretical opportunities that may be available in relation to the asset are not taken into account until it is virtually certain that the restrictions will no longer apply.
The fair value of cultural assets and collections, heritage assets and other non-financial physical assets that the State intends to preserve because of their unique historical, cultural or environmental attributes, is measured at the replacement cost of the asset less, where applicable, accumulated depreciation (calculated on the basis of such cost to reflect the already consumed or expired future economic benefits of the asset) and any accumulated impairment. These policies and any legislative limitations and restrictions imposed on their use and/or disposal may impact their fair value.
The fair value of plant, equipment and vehicles, is normally determined by reference to the asset’s
depreciated replacement cost. For plant, equipment and vehicles, existing depreciated historical cost
is generally a reasonable proxy for depreciated replacement cost because of the short lives of the assets concerned.
Certain assets are acquired under finance leases, which may form part of a service concession arrangement. Refer to note 1(N) Leases and
note 1(P) Commitments for more information.
The cost of constructed non-financial physical assets includes the cost of all materials used in construction, direct labour on the project, and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overheads.
For the accounting policy on impairment of non-financial physical assets refer to note 1(H) Other economic flows included in the net result.
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LEASEHOLD IMPROVEMENTS
The cost of a leasehold improvement is capitalised as an asset and depreciated over the shorter of the remaining term of the lease or the estimated useful life of the improvements.
RESTRICTIVE NATURE OF CULTURAL AND HERITAGE ASSETS, CROWN LAND AND INFRASTRUCTURES
Certain agencies hold cultural assets, heritage assets, and Crown land infrastructure which are deemed worthy of preservation because of the social rather than financial benefits they provide to the community. Consequently, there are certain limitations and restrictions imposed on their use and/or disposal.
NON-FINANCIAL PHYSICAL ASSETS
CONSTRUCTED BY VICTORIA POLICE
The cost of non-financial physical assets constructed by Victoria Police includes the cost of all materials used in construction, direct labour on the project, and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overheads.
REVALUATIONS OF NON-FINANCIAL
PHYSICAL ASSETS
Non-financial physical assets are measured at fair value on a cyclical basis in accordance with the Financial Reporting Directions (FRDs) issued by the Minister for Finance. A full revaluation normally occurs every five years, based upon the asset’s government purpose classification, but may occur more frequently if fair value assessments indicate material changes in values. Independent valuers are used to conduct these scheduled revaluations and any interim revaluations are determined in accordance with the requirements of the FRDs.
Revaluation increases or decreases arise from differences between an asset’s carrying value and fair value.
Net revaluation increases (where the carrying amount of a class of assets is increased as a result of a revaluation) are recognised in ‘Other economic flows – other movements in equity’ and accumulated in equity under the asset revaluation surplus. However, the net revaluation increase is recognised in the net result to the extent that it reverses a
net revaluation decrease in respect of the same class of property, plant and equipment previously recognised as an expense (other economic flows) in the net result.



Net revaluation decreases are recognised in
‘Other economic flows – other movements in equity’ to the extent that a credit balance exists in the asset revaluation surplus in respect of the same class of property, plant and equipment. Otherwise, the net revaluation decreases are recognised immediately as other economic flows in the net result. The net revaluation decrease recognised in ‘Other economic flows – other movements in equity’ reduces the amount accumulated in equity under the asset revaluation surplus.
Revaluation increases and decreases relating to individual assets within a class of property, plant and equipment, are offset against one another within that class but are not offset in respect of assets in different classes. Any asset revaluation surplus is not normally transferred to accumulated funds on derecognition of the relevant asset.
INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Purchased intangible assets are initially measured at cost. Subsequently, intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation/amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Costs incurred subsequent
to initial acquisition are capitalised when it is expected that additional future economic benefits will flow to Victoria Police.
When the recognition criteria in AASB 138 Intangible Assets are met, internally generated intangible assets are recognised and measured at cost less accumulated depreciation/amortisation and impairment. Refer to note 1(G) Expenses from transactions – Depreciation and amortisation,
and to note 1(H) Other economic flows included in the net result – Impairment of non-financial assets.
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.
An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development (or from the development phase of an internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the following are demonstrated:
· the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale; 

· an intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it; 

· the ability to use or sell the intangible asset; 

· the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits; 

· the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the intangible asset, and 

· the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during 

its development. 



105
07  Financial Statements



Victoria Police Annual Report 2011–12
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 30 JUNE 2012
OTHER NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
Advances paid to Department of Treasury and Finance
Advances paid to Department of Treasury and Finance are for goods or services not yet received. Payments are for the purchase of property on behalf of Victoria Police, and leasehold building fit-outs.
Prepayments
Prepayments represent payments in advance of receipt of goods or services or that part of expenditure made in one accounting period covering a term extending beyond that period.
(M) Liabilities
PAYABLES
Payables consist of:
(i) Contractual payables, such as accounts payable and unearned income. Accounts payable represent liabilities for goods and services provided to Victoria Police prior to the end of the financial year that are unpaid, and arise when Victoria Police becomes obliged to make future payments in respect of the purchase of those goods and services; and 
(ii) Statutory payables, such as goods and services tax and fringe benefits tax payables. 
Contractual payables are classified as financial instruments and categorised as financial liabilities at amortised cost, refer to note 1(J) Financial instruments. Statutory payables are recognised and measured similarly to contractual payables, but are not classified as financial instruments and not included in the category of financial liabilities at amortised cost, because they do not arise from a contract.



BORROWINGS
All interest bearing liabilities are initially recognised at fair value of the consideration received, less directly attributable transaction costs, refer also
to note 1(N) Leases. The measurement basis subsequent to initial recognition depends on whether Victoria Police has categorised its interest-bearing liabilities as either financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss, or financial liabilities at amortised cost. Any difference between the initial recognised amount and the redemption value is recognised in net result over the period of the borrowing using the effective interest method.
PROVISIONS
Provisions are recognised when Victoria Police has a present obligation, the future sacrifice of economic benefits is probable, and the amount of the provision can be measured reliably.
The amount recognised as a liability is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows, using a discount rate that reflects the time value of money and risks specific to the provision.
When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be received from a third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that recovery will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.
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EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Provision is made for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and long service leave for services rendered to the reporting date.
(iii) Wages and Salaries and Annual Leave 

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, and annual leave are recognised in the provision for employee benefits, classified as current liabilities. Those liabilities which are expected to be settled within 12 months of the reporting period are measured at their nominal values. 
Those liabilities that are not expected to be settled within 12 months are also recognised 
in the provision for employee benefits as current liabilities, but are measured at present value 
of the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled using the remuneration rate expected to apply at the time of settlement. 
(iv) Long Service Leave 

Liability for long service leave (LSL) is recognised in the provision for employee benefits 
Unconditional LSL is disclosed in the notes 
to the financial statements as a current liability even where Victoria Police does not expect to settle the liability within 12 months because 
it will not have the unconditional right to defer the settlement of the entitlement should an employee take leave within 12 months. 
The components of this current LSL liability are measured at: 
nominal value – component that Victoria Police expects to settle within 12 months; and 
present value – component that Victoria Police does not expect to settle within 12 months. 
Conditional LSL is disclosed as a non-current liability. There is an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the entitlement until the employee has completed the requisite years of service. This non-current LSL liability is measured at present value. 
Any gain or loss following revaluation of the present value of non-current LSL liability is recognised as a transaction, except to the extent that a gain or loss arises due to changes in bond interest rates for which it is then recognised as an ‘other economic flow’, refer to note 1(H) Other economic flows included in the net result. 



(i) Termination Benefits 

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated before the normal retirement date, or when an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. Victoria Police recognises termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed to either terminating the employment of current employees according to a detailed formal plan without possibility of withdrawal or providing termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting period are discounted to present value. 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS ON-COSTS
Employee benefits on-costs such as payroll tax, workers compensation and superannuation are recognised separately from the provision for employee benefits.
(N) Leases
A lease is a right to use an asset for an agreed period of time in exchange for payment.
Leases are classified at their inception as either operating or finance leases based on the economic substance of the agreement so as to reflect the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. Leases of property, plant and equipment are classified as finance infrastructure leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership from the lessor to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.
FINANCE LEASES – VICTORIA POLICE AS LESSEE
At the commencement of the lease term, finance leases are initially recognised as assets and liabilities at amounts equal to the fair value of the lease property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payment, each determined at the inception of the lease. The lease asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset or the term of the lease.
Minimum finance lease payments are apportioned between reduction of the outstanding lease liability, and periodic finance expense which is calculated using the interest expense implicit in the lease
and charged directly to the comprehensive operating statement.
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OPERATING LEASES – VICTORIA POLICE AS LESSEE
Operating lease payments, including any contingent rentals, are recognised as an expense in the comprehensive operating statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of the benefits derived from the use of the leased asset. The leased asset is not recognised
in the balance sheet.
All incentives for the agreement of a new or renewed operating lease are recognised as an integral part of the net consideration agreed for the use of the leased asset, irrespective of the incentive’s nature or form or the timing of payments.
In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases, the aggregate cost of incentives are recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis, unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
(O) Equity
CONTRIBUTIONS BY OWNERS
Additions to net assets which have been designated as contributions by owners are recognised as contributed capital. Other transfers that are in the nature of contributions or distributions have also been designated as contributions by owners.
(P) Commitments
Commitments for future expenditure include operating and capital commitments arising from contracts. These commitments are disclosed by way of note (refer to note 16 Commitments for expenditure) at their nominal value and inclusive of
the goods and services tax (GST) payable. In addition, where it is considered appropriate and provides additional relevant information to users, the net present values of significant individual projects
are stated. These future expenditures cease to be disclosed as commitments once the related liabilities are recognised in the balance sheet.



(Q) Contingent Liabilities
Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the balance sheet, but are disclosed by way of a note (refer note 17 Contingent liabilities) and, if quantifiable, are measured at nominal value.
(R) Accounting for the Goods and Services Tax (GST)
Income, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of associated GST, except where GST incurred is not recoverable from the taxation
authority. In this case the GST payable is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or
as part of the expense.
Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included with other receivables or payables in the balance sheet.
Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable to the taxation authority, are presented as operating cash flow.
Commitments and contingent assets and liabilities are also stated inclusive of GST.
(S) Events after the Reporting Period
Assets, liabilities, income or expenses arise from past transactions or other past events. Where the transactions result from an agreement between Victoria Police and other parties, the transactions are only recognised when the agreement is irrevocable at or before the end of the reporting period. Adjustments are made to amounts recognised in the financial statements for events which occur after the reporting period and before the date the financial statements are authorised for issue, where those events provide information about conditions which existed in the reporting period. Note disclosure is made about events between the end of the reporting period and the date the financial statements are authorised for issue where the events relate to conditions which arose after the end of the reporting period and which may have a material impact on the results of subsequent reporting periods.
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(T) AASs Issued that are not yet Effective
Certain new AASs have been published that are not mandatory for the 30 June 2012 reporting period. The Department of Treasury and Finance assesses the impact of these new standards and advises Victoria Police of their applicability and early adoption where applicable.



As at 30 June 2012, the following AASs have been issued by the AASB but not yet effective. They become effective for the first financial statements for reporting periods commencing after the stated operative dates as follows:


	Standard/Interpretation
	Summary
	Applicable
	Impact on Public
	

	
	
	for Annual
	Sector Entity
	

	
	
	Reporting
	Financial Statements
	

	
	
	Periods
	
	

	
	
	beginning on
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	AASB 9
	This standard simplifies
	1 Jan 2013
	Detail of impact is
	

	Financial
	requirements for the
	
	still being assessed.
	

	Instruments
	classification and
	
	
	

	
	measurement of financial
	
	
	

	
	assets resulting from Phase 1
	
	
	

	
	of the IASB’s project to replace
	
	
	

	
	IAS 39 Financial Instruments:
	
	
	

	
	Recognition and Measurement
	
	
	

	
	(AASB 139 Financial
	
	
	

	
	Instruments: Recognition
	
	
	

	
	and Measurement).
	
	
	

	AASB 10
	This Standard establishes
	1 Jan 2013
	Not-for-profit entities
	

	Consolidated
	principles for the presentation
	
	are not permitted to apply
	

	Financial Statements
	and preparation of consolidated
	
	this Standard prior to the
	

	
	financial statements when an
	
	mandatory application
	

	
	entity controls one or more
	
	date. The AASB is
	

	
	other entities and supersedes
	
	assessing the applicability
	

	
	those requirements in AASB
	
	of principles in AASB 10
	

	
	127 Consolidated and Separate
	
	in a not-for-profit context.
	

	
	Financial Statements and
	
	As such, impact will
	

	
	Interpretation 112 Consolidation
	
	
	

	
	
	
	be assessed after
	

	
	– Special Purpose Entities.
	
	
	

	
	
	
	the AASB’s deliberation.
	

	
	
	
	
	

	AASB 13
	This Standard outlines the
	1 Jan 2013
	Disclosure for fair value
	

	Fair Value
	requirements for measuring
	
	measurements using
	

	Measurement
	the fair value of assets and
	
	unobservable inputs
	

	
	liabilities and replaces the
	
	are relatively onerous
	

	
	existing fair value definition
	
	compared to disclosure for
	

	
	and guidance in other AASs.
	
	fair value measurements
	

	
	AASB 13 includes a ‘fair value
	
	using observable inputs.
	

	
	hierarchy’ which ranks the
	
	Consequently, the
	

	
	valuation technique inputs
	
	Standard may increase
	

	
	into three levels using
	
	the disclosures for public
	

	
	unadjusted quoted prices
	
	sector entities that
	

	
	in active markets for identical
	
	have assets measured
	

	
	assets or liabilities; other
	
	using depreciated
	

	
	observable inputs; and
	
	replacement cost.
	

	
	unobservable inputs.
	
	
	

	AASB 1053
	This Standard establishes a
	1 July 2013
	The Victorian Government
	

	Application of
	differential financial reporting
	
	is currently considering
	

	Tiers of Australian
	framework consisting of two
	
	the impacts of Reduced
	

	Accounting Standards
	tiers of reporting requirements
	
	Disclosure Requirements
	

	
	for preparing general purpose
	
	(RDRs) for certain public
	

	
	financial statements.
	
	sector entities and has
	

	
	
	
	not decided if RDRs will
	

	
	
	
	be implemented in the
	

	
	
	
	Victorian public sector.
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	Standard/Interpretation
	Summary
	Applicable
	Impact on Public

	
	
	for Annual
	Sector Entity

	
	
	Reporting
	Financial Statements

	
	
	Periods
	

	
	
	beginning on
	

	
	
	
	




AASB 2009-11
Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9 [AASB 1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 101, 102, 108, 112, 118, 121, 127, 128, 131, 132, 136, 139, 1023 and 1038 and Interpretations 10 and 12]



	This Standard gives effect to
	1 Jan 2013
	No significant impact

	consequential changes arising
	
	is expected from

	from the issuance of AASB 9.
	
	these consequential

	
	
	amendments on

	
	
	entity reporting.




	AASB 2010-2
	This Standard makes
	1 July 2013
	The Victorian Government

	Amendments to Australian
	amendments to many
	
	is currently considering

	Accounting Standards
	Australian Accounting
	
	the impacts of Reduced

	arising from Reduced
	Standards, including
	
	Disclosure Requirements

	Disclosure Requirements
	Interpretations, to
	
	(RDRs) for certain public

	
	introduce reduced
	
	sector entities and has

	
	disclosure requirements
	
	not decided if RDRs will

	
	to the pronouncements
	
	be implemented in the

	
	for application by certain
	
	Victorian public sector.

	
	types of entities.
	
	




AASB 2010-7
Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9 (December 2010) [AASB 1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 101, 102, 108, 112, 118, 120, 121, 127, 128, 131, 132, 136, 137, 139, 1023 & 1038 and Interpretations
2, 5, 10, 12, 19 & 127]



	These consequential
	1 Jan 2013
	No significant impact

	amendments are in relation
	
	is expected from

	to the introduction of AASB 9.
	
	these consequential

	
	
	amendments on

	
	
	entity reporting.




AASB 2010-10
Further Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Removal of Fixed Dates for First-time Adopters [AASB 2009-11 & AASB 2010-7]



	The amendments ultimately
	1 Jan 2013
	No significant impact

	affect AASB 1 First-time
	
	is expected on

	Adoption of Australian
	
	entity reporting.


Accounting Standards and provide relief for first-time adopters of Australian Accounting Standards from having to reconstruct transactions that occurred before their date of transition to Australian Accounting Standards.


	AASB 2011-2
	The objective of this
	1 July 2013
	The Victorian Government

	Amendments to Australian
	amendment is to include some
	
	is currently considering

	Accounting Standards
	additional disclosure from the
	
	the impacts of Reduced

	arising from the Trans-Tasman
	Trans-Tasman Convergence
	
	Disclosure Requirements

	Convergence Project – Reduced
	Project and to reduce
	
	(RDRs) and has not

	Disclosure Requirements
	disclosure requirements for
	
	decided if RDRs will be

	[AASB 101 & AASB 1054]
	entities preparing general
	
	implemented in the

	
	purpose financial statements
	
	Victorian public sector.

	
	under Australian Accounting
	
	

	
	Standards – Reduced
	
	

	
	Disclosure Requirements.
	
	

	AASB 2011-4
	This Standard amends AASB
	1 July 2013
	No significant impact

	Amendments to Australian
	124 Related Party Disclosures
	
	is expected from

	Accounting Standards to
	by removing the disclosure
	
	these consequential

	Remove Individual Key
	requirements in AASB 124
	
	amendments on

	Management Personnel
	in relation to individual key
	
	entity reporting.

	Disclosure Requirements
	management personnel (KMP).
	
	

	[AASB 124]
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	Standard/Interpretation
	Summary
	Applicable
	Impact on Public

	
	
	for Annual
	Sector Entity

	
	
	Reporting
	Financial Statements

	
	
	Periods
	

	
	
	beginning on
	

	
	
	
	




AASB 2011-6
Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Extending Relief from Consolidation, the Equity Method and Proportionate Consolidation – Reduced Disclosure Requirements [AASB 127, AASB 128 & AASB 131]



The objective of this Standard   1 July 2013    The Victorian Government
is to make amendments to
is currently considering
AASB 127 Consolidated and
the impacts of Reduced
Separate Financial Statements,
Disclosure Requirements
AASB 128 Investments in
(RDRs) and has not
Associates and AASB 131
decided if RDRs will
Interests in Joint Ventures
be implemented in the
to extend the circumstances
Victorian public sector.
in which an entity can obtain
relief from consolidation,
the equity method or
proportionate consolidation.


AASB 2011-7
Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Consolidation and Joint Arrangements Standards [AASB 1, 2, 3, 5, 7, 9, 2009-11, 101, 107, 112, 118, 121, 124, 132, 133, 136, 138, 139, 1023 & 1038 and Interpretations
5, 9, 16 & 17]



	This Standard outlines
	1 Jan 2013
	No significant impact

	consequential changes arising
	
	is expected from

	from the issuance of the five
	
	these consequential

	‘new Standards’ to other
	
	amendments on

	Standards. For example,
	
	entity reporting.


references to AASB 127
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements are amended to AASB 10
Consolidated Financial Statements or AASB 127 Separate Financial Statements, and references to AASB 131
Interests in Joint Ventures are deleted as that Standard has been superseded by AASB 11 and AASB 128 (August 2011).


	AASB 2011-8
	This amending Standard
	1 Jan 2013
	Disclosures for fair value
	

	Amendments to Australian
	makes consequential changes
	
	measurements using
	

	Accounting Standards
	to a range of Standards and
	
	unobservable inputs is
	

	arising from AASB 13
	Interpretations arising from
	
	potentially onerous, and
	

	[AASB 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 7, 9, 2009-
	the issuance of AASB 13.
	
	may increase disclosures
	

	11, 2010-7, 101, 102, 108, 110,
	In particular, this Standard
	
	for assets measured
	

	116, 117, 118, 119, 120, 121,
	replaces the existing definition
	
	using depreciated
	

	128, 131, 132, 133, 134, 136,
	and guidance of fair value
	
	replacement cost.
	

	138, 139, 140, 141, 1004, 1023
	measurements in other
	
	
	

	& 1038 and Interpretations 2,
	Australian Accounting
	
	
	

	4, 12, 13, 14, 17, 19, 131 & 132]
	Standards and Interpretations.
	
	
	

	AASB 2011-9
	The main change resulting
	1 July 2012
	This amending Standard
	

	Amendments to Australian
	from this Standard is a
	
	could change the current
	

	Accounting Standards –
	requirement for entities to
	
	presentation of ‘Other
	

	Presentation of Items of
	group items presented in other
	
	economic flows – other
	

	Other Comprehensive Income
	comprehensive income (OCI)
	
	movements in equity’
	

	[AASB 1, 5, 7, 101, 112, 120,
	on the basis of whether they
	
	that will be grouped
	

	121, 132, 133, 134, 1039 &
	are potentially reclassifiable
	
	on the basis of whether
	

	1049]
	to profit or loss subsequently
	
	they are potentially
	

	
	(reclassification adjustments).
	
	reclassifiable to profit
	

	
	These amendments do not
	
	or loss subsequently.
	

	
	remove the option to present
	
	No other significant
	

	
	profit or loss and other
	
	
	

	
	
	
	impact will be expected.
	

	
	comprehensive income in two
	
	
	

	
	statements, nor change the
	
	
	

	
	option to present items of OCI
	
	
	

	
	either before tax or net of tax.
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	Standard/Interpretation
	Summary
	Applicable
	Impact on Public

	
	
	for Annual
	Sector Entity

	
	
	Reporting
	Financial Statements

	
	
	Periods
	

	
	
	beginning on
	

	
	
	
	

	AASB 2011-10
	This Standard makes
	1 Jan 2013
	No significant impact

	Amendments to Australian
	consequential changes to
	
	is expected from

	Accounting Standards
	a range of other Australian
	
	these consequential

	arising from AASB 119
	Accounting Standards and
	
	amendments on

	(September 2011)
	Interpretation arising from
	
	entity reporting.

	[AASB 1, AASB 8, AASB
	the issuance of AASB 119
	
	

	101, AASB 124, AASB 134,
	Employee Benefits.
	
	

	AASB 1049 & AASB 2011-8
	
	
	

	and Interpretation 14]
	
	
	

	AASB 2011-11
	This Standard makes
	1 July 2013
	The Victorian Government

	Amendments to AASB 119
	amendments to AASB 119
	
	is currently considering

	(September 2011) arising
	Employee Benefits (September
	
	the impacts of Reduced

	from Reduced Disclosure
	2011), to incorporate reduced
	
	Disclosure Requirements

	Requirements
	disclosure requirements into
	
	(RDRs) and has not

	
	the Standard for entities
	
	decided if RDRs will

	
	applying Tier 2 requirements
	
	be implemented in the

	
	in preparing general purpose
	
	Victorian public sector.

	
	financial statements.
	
	

	2011-13
	This Standard aims to improve
	1 July 2012
	No significant impact

	Amendments to
	the AASB 1049 Whole of
	
	is expected from

	Australian Accounting
	Government and General
	
	these consequential

	Standard – Improvements
	Government Sector Financial
	
	amendments on

	to AASB 1049
	Reporting at the operational
	
	entity reporting.

	
	level. The main amendments
	
	

	
	clarify a number of
	
	

	
	requirements in AASB 1049,
	
	

	
	including the amendment
	
	

	
	to allow disclosure of other
	
	

	
	measures of key fiscal
	
	

	
	aggregates as long as they
	
	

	
	are clearly distinguished
	
	

	
	from the key fiscal aggregates
	
	

	
	and do not detract from the
	
	

	
	information required by AASB
	
	

	
	1049. Furthermore, this
	
	

	
	Standard provides additional
	
	

	
	guidance and examples on
	
	

	
	the classification between
	
	

	
	‘transactions’ and ‘other
	
	

	
	economic flows’ for GAAP
	
	

	
	items without GFS equivalents.
	
	

	2012-1
	This amending Standard
	1 July 2013
	As the Victorian whole

	Amendments to Australian
	prescribes the reduced
	
	of government and the

	Accounting Standards –
	disclosure requirements
	
	general government (GG)

	Fair Value Measurement –
	in a number of Australian
	
	sector are subject to Tier 1

	Reduced Disclosure
	Accounting Standards as
	
	reporting requirements

	Requirements
	a consequence of the
	
	(refer to AASB 1053

	[AASB 3, AASB 7, AASB 13,
	issuance of AASB 13 Fair
	
	Application of Tiers of

	AASB 140 & AASB 141]
	Value Measurement.
	
	Australian Accounting

	
	
	
	Standards), the reduced

	
	
	
	disclosure requirements

	
	
	
	included in AASB 2012-1

	
	
	
	will not affect the financial

	
	
	
	reporting for Victorian

	
	
	
	whole of government

	
	
	
	and GG sector.
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Note 2. Income from Transactions

	
	2012
	2011

	
	$’000
	$’000

	
	
	

	Income
	
	

	(a) Revenue from Government
	
	

	Grants received from Department of Justice
	2,041,299
	1,958,040

	Total Revenue from government
	2,041,299
	1,958,040

	(b) Other Income
	
	

	Income from sale of goods and services
	836
	2,070

	Interest income
	98
	84

	Income in relation to trusts
	7,338
	8,042

	Other income
	1,273
	1,505

	Assets recognised for first time
	459
	2,711

	Plant and equipment received free of charge or nominal consideration
	179
	145

	
	10,183
	14,558

	Total income from transactions
	2,051,482
	1,972,598
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Note 3. Expenses from Transactions

	
	2012
	2011

	
	$’000
	$’000

	
	
	

	(a) Employee Expenses
	
	

	Salary and wages expense
	1,180,304
	1,085,509

	Superannuation expense (refer note 14)
	142,858
	138,250

	Long service leave expense
	43,581
	23,287

	Other on-costs (fringe benefits tax, payroll tax and workcover levy)
	110,239
	110,268

	
	1,476,981
	1,357,314

	(b) Depreciation and Amortisation
	
	

	Buildings
	25,301
	21,254

	Leasehold improvements
	2,191
	1,339

	Plant and equipment
	11,627
	11,799

	Leased plant and equipment
	28,274
	27,981

	
	67,393
	62,374

	Amortisation
	
	

	Intangibles
	423
	400

	
	67,816
	62,774

	(c) Capital Asset Charge
	
	

	Capital asset charge
	76,436
	71,801

	
	76,436
	71,801

	(d) Supplies and Services
	
	

	Communications
	30,348
	28,022

	Transport
	39,465
	34,649

	Administration
	19,268
	22,648

	Accommodation
	116,470
	112,132

	Computer facilities
	84,129
	88,106

	Police operating expenses
	153,620
	168,258

	Legal expenses
	12,471
	15,345

	Ex gratia payments
	138
	125

	Plant and equipment provided free of charge or for nominal consideration
	40
	24

	Land and building provided free of charge or for nominal consideration
	783
	658

	
	456,733
	469,970

	(e) Interest Expense
	
	

	Finance lease costs
	3,485
	3,267

	
	3,485
	3,267

	Total expenses from transactions
	2,081,451
	1,965,125
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Note 4. Other Economic Flows Included in Net Result

	
	
	2012
	2011

	
	
	$’000
	$’000

	
	
	
	

	
	(a) Net Gain/(Loss) on Non-financial Assets
	
	

	
	Net gain/(loss) on disposal of plant, equipment and motor vehicles
	6,786
	3,648

	
	
	6,786
	3,648

	
	(b) Net Gain/(Loss) from other Economic Flows
	
	

	
	Net Gain/(Loss) arising from revaluation of long service leave liability
	(13,104)
	2,243

	
	
	(13,104)
	2,243

	
	Total other economic flows included in net result
	(6,317)
	5,892


Note 5. Receivables

	
	
	2012
	2011

	
	
	$’000
	$’000

	
	
	
	

	Current Receivables
	
	
	

	Contractual
	
	
	

	Receivables from sale of goods and services
	(i)
	3,096
	4,761

	Other receivables
	
	1,046
	775

	Allowance for doubtful contractual receivables (a)
	
	(156)
	(52)

	
	
	3,986
	5,484

	Statutory
	
	
	

	Amounts owing from the Victorian Government
	(ii)
	165,930
	150,950

	GST input tax credit recoverable
	
	3,843
	5,090

	
	
	169,773
	156,040

	Total current receivables
	
	173,759
	161,524

	Non-current Receivables
	
	
	

	Statutory
	
	
	

	Amounts owing from the Victorian Government
	(ii)
	167,223
	195,592

	Total non-current receivables
	
	167,223
	195,592

	Total receivables
	
	340,982
	357,116

	(a) Movement in the Allowance for Doubtful Contractual Receivables
	
	
	

	Balance at beginning of the year
	
	(52)
	(25)

	Increase in provision recognised in the net result
	
	(154)
	(33)

	Reversal of unused provision recognised in the net result
	
	40
	6

	Write off during the period
	
	11
	–

	Balance at end of the year
	
	(156)
	(52)


Notes
(a) The average credit period for the sale of goods and services and for other receivables is 30 days. 

(b) Statutory receivables are amounts recognised from the Victorian Government for all funding commitments incurred through the appropriations and are drawn from the consolidated fund as they fall due. 



115
07  Financial Statements



Victoria Police Annual Report 2011–12
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 30 JUNE 2012
Note 6. Other Non-financial Assets

	
	2012
	2011

	
	$’000
	$’000

	
	
	

	Current
	
	

	Advances paid to Department of Treasury and Finance
	28,332
	6,649

	Prepayments
	40
	6,093

	Total other non-financial assets
	28,372
	12,742


Note. 7 Non-financial Physical Assets
Classified as Held for Sale

	
	2012
	2011

	
	$’000
	$’000

	
	
	

	Current
	
	

	Freehold land held for sale
	13,756
	4,244

	Freehold buildings held for sale
	3,378
	1,584

	Motor vehicles held for sale
	4,601
	2,368

	Total non-financial assets classified as held for sale
	21,735
	8,196


Notes
Properties held for sale have been identified as surplus to requirements under the Strategic Facility Development Plan. This plan is reviewed on a regular basis and forms part of the government multi-year investment strategy.
Motor vehicles held for sale are terminated leases awaiting disposal.
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Note 8. Property, Plant and Equipment
CLASSIFICATION BY ‘PUBLIC SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENT’ PURPOSE GROUP

	
	2012
	2011

	
	$’000
	$’000

	
	
	

	Land
	
	

	Crown Land
	
	

	At cost
	5,463
	1,312

	At fair value
	361,281
	372,026

	Total land
	366,744
	373,338

	Buildings
	
	

	At cost
	68,489
	31,612

	Less: accumulated depreciation
	(2,681)
	(746)

	
	65,809
	30,866

	At fair value
	679,387
	670,938

	Less: accumulated depreciation
	(23,618)
	(775)

	
	655,769
	670,163

	Leasehold improvements at cost
	21,138
	15,339

	Less: accumulated amortisation
	(12,987)
	(10,818)

	
	8,151
	4,521

	Buildings in the course of construction at cost
	54,108
	85,723

	Total buildings
	783,837
	791,273

	Total land, buildings and leasehold improvements
	1,150,580
	1,164,611

	Plant and Equipment
	
	

	At fair value
	134,240
	129,698

	Less: accumulated depreciation
	(72,389)
	(64,267)

	
	61,851
	65,431

	Motor vehicles under finance lease (at cost)
	90,813
	86,605

	Less: Accumulated Amortisation
	(32,059)
	(30,519)

	
	58,754
	56,085

	Plant and equipment in the course of construction at cost
	1,226
	628

	Total plant and equipment
	121,831
	122,143

	Cultural and Heritage Assets
	
	

	At cost
	20
	20

	At fair value
	4,235
	4,243

	Total cultural and heritage assets
	4,255
	4,263

	Total property, plant and equipment
	1,276,667
	1,291,014


Note
An independent valuation of Victoria Police’s land and buildings was performed by the Valuer-General to determine the fair value of the land and buildings. The valuation, which conforms to Australian Valuation Standards, was determined by reference to the amounts for which assets could be exchanged between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. In the case of police stations the method used was Depreciated Replacement Cost as the valuers believe it would be difficult to sell such assets in an active and liquid market. The valuation was based on independent assessments. The effective date of the valuation was 30 June 2011.
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Note 9. Property, Plant and Equipment
CLASSIFICATION BY ‘PUBLIC SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENT’ PURPOSE GROUP – MOVEMENTS IN CARRYING AMOUNTS
The basis of valuation of Victoria Police’s land and buildings adopted as at 30 June 2011 is in accordance with applicable accounting standards for the revaluation of non-current assets.



Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of each class of property, plant and equipment at the beginning and end of the current financial year are set out below.


	
	Crown Land
	Buildings at
	Leasehold

	
	at Cost and
	Cost and
	Improvements

	
	Fair Value
	Fair Value
	at Cost

	
	
	
	

	
	$’000
	$’000
	$’000

	Carrying Amount at Start of Year
	
	
	

	Balance at 1 July 2010
	225,823
	524,645
	3,594

	Fair value of assets received free of charge
	–
	–
	–

	Fair value of assets given free of charge
	–
	–
	–

	Additions
	–
	23
	70

	Disposals
	(115)
	(2,216)
	–

	Transfer in/out of assets under construction
	500
	37,968
	2,195

	Net Revaluation Increments/(decrements)
	146,750
	161,720
	–

	Transfers of assets via contributed capital
	(150)
	(58)
	–

	Other
	–
	–
	–

	Transfer (to)/from prepayments
	–
	–
	–

	Fair value of assets recognised for first time
	530
	198
	–

	Depreciation/amortisation expense
	–
	(21,252)
	(1,339)

	Transfers to assets classified as held for sale
	–
	–
	–

	Balance at 30 June 2011
	373,338
	701,029
	4,521

	Fair value of assets received free of charge
	–
	–
	–

	Fair value of assets given free of charge
	–
	(783)
	–

	Additions
	–
	89
	2,375

	Disposals
	(378)
	(224)
	(39)

	Transfer in/out of assets under construction
	4,151
	49,708
	3,485

	Net revaluation increments/(decrements)
	–
	–
	–

	Transfers of assets via contributed capital
	(25)
	(871)
	–

	Other
	–
	–
	–

	Transfer (to)/from prepayments
	–
	–
	–

	Fair value of assets recognised for first time
	–
	–
	–

	Depreciation/amortisation expense
	–
	(25,301)
	(2,191)

	Transfers to assets classified as held for sale
	(10,342)
	(2,070)
	–

	Balance at 30 June 2012
	366,744
	721,578
	8,151




118
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 30 JUNE 2012

	Plant and
	Leased
	Buildings,
	P & E in
	Cultural
	Total

	Equipment
	Motor    in the Course of
	the Course of
	and Heritage
	

	at Cost and
	Vehicles
	Construction
	Construction
	Assets at
	

	Fair Value
	at Cost
	at Cost
	at Cost
	Fair Value
	

	
	
	
	
	
	

	$’000
	$’000
	$’000
	$’000
	$’000
	$’000

	
	
	
	
	
	

	58,561
	58,467
	74,754
	4,622
	3,139
	953,609

	145
	–
	–
	–
	–
	145

	(24)
	–
	–
	–
	–
	(24)

	13,250
	42,032
	52,233
	893
	20
	108,522

	(2,178)
	(15,963)
	–
	–
	–
	(20,473)

	5,493
	–
	(41,270)
	(4,886)
	–
	–

	–
	–
	–
	–
	1,103
	309,573

	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	(208)

	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–

	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	–

	1,983
	–
	–
	–
	–
	2,711

	(11,799)
	(27,981)
	–
	–
	–
	(62,372)

	–
	(469)
	–
	–
	–
	(469)

	65,431
	56,085
	85,718
	628
	4,263
	1,291,014

	179
	–
	–
	–
	–
	179

	(32)
	–
	–
	–
	(8)
	(823)

	5,504
	50,337
	51,200
	2,122
	–
	111,628

	(483)
	(17,161)
	–
	–
	–
	(18,284)

	2,420
	–
	(58,439)
	(1,524)
	–
	(199)

	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	0

	–
	–
	–
	–
	–
	(896)

	–
	–
	(1,887)
	–
	–
	(1,887)

	–
	–
	(22,484)
	–
	–
	(22,484)

	459
	–
	–
	–
	–
	459

	(11,627)
	(28,274)
	–
	–
	–
	(67,393)

	–
	(2,233)
	–
	–
	–
	(14,645)

	61,851
	58,754
	54,108
	1,226
	4,255
	1,276,667
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Note 10. Intangible Assets

	
	
	2012
	2011

	
	
	$’000
	$’000

	
	
	
	

	Gross Carrying Amount
	
	
	

	Opening balance of work in progress
	
	320
	235

	Additions/(disposals)
	
	(320)
	85

	Closing balance of work in progress
	
	0
	320

	Opening balance of capitalised software
	
	2,299
	2,699

	Additions
	
	1,365
	0

	Amortisation
	(i)
	(423)
	(400)

	Closing balance of capitalised assets
	
	3,241
	2,299

	Net book value at the end of the financial year
	
	3,241
	2,619

	Note
	
	
	


(i) Amortisation expense is included in the line item ‘depreciation and amortisation expense’ in Note 3.
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Note 11. Payables

	
	
	2012
	2011

	
	
	$’000
	$’000

	
	
	
	

	Current
	
	
	

	Contractual
	
	
	

	Supplies and services
	(i)
	33,849
	49,852

	Amounts payable to government and agencies
	
	8,030
	5,464

	Other liabilities
	
	389
	256

	
	
	42,269
	55,572

	Statutory
	
	
	

	Taxes payable
	
	10,806
	9,606

	Total payables
	
	53,075
	65,178


Note
(i) The average credit period is 30 days and no interest is charged for the first 30 days from the date of the invoice.
(i) Maturity analysis of contractual payables 

Please refer to Table 18.4 in Note 18 for the maturity analysis of contractual payables. 
(ii) Nature and extent of risk arising from contractual payables 

Please refer to Note 18 for the nature and extent of risks arising from contractual payables. 
Note 12. Borrowings

	
	
	2012
	2011

	
	
	$’000
	$’000

	
	
	
	

	Current
	
	
	

	Finance lease liabilities
	(i)
	41,529
	43,485

	Non-current
	
	
	

	Finance lease liabilities
	(i)
	22,053
	15,241

	Total borrowings
	
	63,582
	58,726


Note
(a) Secured by the assets leased. Finance leases are effectively secured as the rights to the leased assets revert to the lessor in the event of default. 

(i) Maturity analysis of borrowings 

Please refer to Table 18.4 in Note 18 for the maturity analysis of borrowings. 
(ii) Nature and extent of risk arising from borrowings 

Please refer to Note 18 for the nature and extent of risks arising from borrowings. 
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Note 13. Provisions

	
	
	2012
	2011

	
	
	$’000
	$’000

	
	
	
	

	Current Provisions
	
	
	

	Employee benefits (note 13(a)) – annual leave:
	(i)
	
	

	Unconditional and expected to be settled within 12 months
	(ii)
	29,739
	27,990

	Employee benefits (note 13(a)) – long service leave:
	(i)
	
	

	Unconditional and expected to be settled within 12 months
	(ii)
	30,000
	30,000

	Unconditional and expected to be settled after 12 months
	(iii)
	265,515
	256,250

	
	
	325,254
	314,240

	Provisions related to employee benefit on-costs (note 13(a)):
	
	
	

	Unconditional and expected to be settled within 12 months
	(ii)
	12,386
	13,298

	Unconditional and expected to be settled after 12 months
	(iii)
	57,388
	55,543

	
	
	69,774
	68,841

	Other provisions
	
	835
	3,908

	Total current provisions
	
	395,863
	386,989

	Non-current
	
	
	

	Employee benefits (note 13(a))
	(i)
	23,846
	12,633

	Employee benefits on costs (note 13(a))
	
	5,154
	2,738

	
	
	29,000
	15,371

	Make-good provision
	
	10,374
	10,374

	Total non-current provisions
	
	39,373
	25,745

	Total provisions
	
	435,237
	412,734

	(a) Employee Benefits and Related On-costs
	
	
	

	Current Employee Benefits
	
	
	

	Annual leave entitlements
	
	29,739
	27,990

	Long service leave entitlements
	
	295,515
	286,250

	
	
	325,254
	314,240

	Non-current Employee Benefits
	
	
	

	Long service leave entitlements
	
	23,846
	12,633

	Total employee benefits
	
	349,100
	326,873

	Current on-costs
	
	69,774
	68,841

	Non-current on-costs
	
	5,154
	2,738

	Total on-costs
	
	74,928
	71,579

	Total employee benefits and related on-costs
	
	424,028
	398,452


Notes
(i) Provisions for employee benefits consist of amounts for annual leave and long service leave accrued by employees, not including on-costs. 

(ii) The amounts disclosed are nominal amounts. 

(iii) The amounts disclosed are discounted to present values. 
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	On-costs   Make-good
	Other
	Total

	
	
	
	
	

	(b) Movement in Provisions
	
	
	
	

	Opening balance 1 July 2011
	71,579
	10,374
	3,908
	85,860

	Additional provisions
	44,860
	–
	51,086
	95,946

	Reductions arising from payments/other
	(41,512)
	–
	(54,158)
	(95,670)

	sacrifices of future economic benefits
	
	
	
	

	Other
	
	
	
	

	Closing balance 30 June 2012
	74,928
	10,374
	835
	86,137

	Current
	69,774
	–
	835
	70,609

	Non-current
	5,154
	10,374
	–
	15,528

	
	74,928
	10,374
	835
	86,137



Note 14. Superannuation
GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES’
SUPERANNUATION FUND
Employees of Victoria Police are entitled to receive superannuation benefits and Victoria Police contributes to both defined benefit and defined contribution plans. The defined benefit plan(s) provides benefits based on years of service and final average salary.
Victoria Police does not recognise any defined benefit liability in respect of the plan(s) because the entity has no legal or constructive obligation to pay future benefits relating to its employees; its only obligation is to pay superannuation contributions as they fall due. The Department of Treasury



and Finance discloses the State’s defined benefit liabilities in its disclosure for administered items.
However, superannuation contributions paid or payable for the reporting period are included
as part of employee benefits in the Comprehensive Operating Statement of Victoria Police.
The name and details and amounts expensed
in relation to the major employee superannuation funds and contributions made by Victoria Police are as follows:


Fund

	
	Paid Contribution
	Paid Contribution

	
	for the Year
	for the Year

	
	2012
	2011

	
	$’000
	$’000

	Defined Benefit Plans
	
	

	State Superannuation Fund – revised and new
	127,750
	123,169

	Defined Contribution Plans
	
	

	VicSuper
	15,072
	15,046

	Other
	36
	35

	Total
	142,858
	138,250


Notes
The bases for contributions are determined by the various schemes.
The above amounts were measured as at 30th June 2012, or in the case
of employer contributions, they related to the period ended 30th June 2012.
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Note 15. Leases
DISCLOSURE FOR LESSEES – FINANCE LEASES
Leasing Arrangements

	
	Minimum Future
	Present Value of

	
	Lease Payments
	Minimum Future

	
	
	
	Lease Payments

	
	
	
	
	

	
	2012
	2011
	2012
	2011

	
	$’000
	$’000
	$’000
	$’000

	Finance Lease Liabilities
	(i)
	
	
	

	Not longer than one year
	43,763
	45,449
	41,529
	43,485

	Longer than one year and not longer than five years
	23,239
	15,929
	22,053
	15,241

	Minimum lease payments*
	67,003
	61,378
	63,582
	58,726

	Less future finance charge
	(3,420)
	(2,652)
	
	

	Present value of minimum lease payments
	63,582
	58,726
	63,582
	58,726

	Included in the Financial Statements as:
	
	
	
	

	Current borrowings lease liabilities (note 18)
	
	
	41,529
	43,485

	Non-current borrowings lease liabilities (note 18)
	
	
	22,053
	15,241

	
	
	
	63,582
	58,726


Notes
(i) Finance leases relate to motor vehicles with lease terms of 36 months or 60,000 kms, whichever comes first, with the average lease period being 18 months. The lease terms and conditions are in accordance with the whole of government lease management facility. 

* Minimum future lease payments includes the aggregate of all lease payments and any guaranteed residual.
DISCLOSURE FOR LESSEES – OPERATING LEASES
Leasing Arrangements

	
	2012
	2011

	
	$’000
	$’000

	
	
	

	Non-cancellable Operating Leases
	(ii)
	

	Not longer than one year
	40,604
	35,412

	Longer than one year and not longer than five years
	71,172
	95,137

	Longer than five years
	23,775
	20,196

	
	135,551
	150,745


Note
(ii) Some of the property leases in the above note may be subject to a CPI increase at a future date.
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Note 16. Commitments for Expenditure
The following commitments have not been recognised as liabilities in the financial statements:

	
	2012
	2011

	
	$’000
	$’000

	
	
	

	(a) Capital Commitments
	
	

	Plant, Equipment and Motor Vehicles
	
	

	Not longer than one year
	–
	1,240

	Longer than one year and not longer than five years
	
	

	Longer than five years
	
	

	
	–
	1,240

	(b) Buildings
	
	

	Not longer than one year
	2,456
	6,612

	Longer than one year and not longer than five years
	1,331
	433

	Longer than five years
	
	

	
	3,787
	7,045

	Total capital expenditure commitments
	3,787
	8,285

	(c) Outsourcing Commitments
	(i)
	

	Not longer than one year
	35,235
	31,917

	Longer than one year and not longer than five years
	124,348
	131,671

	Longer than five years
	31,075
	59,205

	Total other expenditure commitments
	190,658
	222,793

	Total commitments for expenditure (inclusive of GST)
	194,445
	231,078

	Less: GST recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office
	(17,677)
	(21,007)

	Total commitments for expenditure (exclusive of GST)
	176,768
	210,071


Notes
(i) The outsourcing commitments relate to a number of operational service agreements.
The two current projects are the Mobile Data Network (MDN), and the Metropolitan Mobile Radio (MMR). Service payments to Emergency Services Telecommunications Authority (ESTA) commenced during 2005–06 with contractual commitments to December 2014 (MDN $46.21M) and July 2016 ( MMR $108.74M).
Victoria Police is required under a Service Level Agreement with the Department of Justice (pre-transfer) and with the Emergency Services Telecommunications Authority (ESTA) (post-transfer) to make payments to DoJ/ESTA for use of the telecommunication systems.
Finance lease and non-cancellable operating lease commitments are disclosed in Note 15.
All amounts shown in the commitments note are nominal amounts inclusive of GST.
Note 17. Contingent Liabilities

	
	2012
	2011

	
	$’000
	$’000

	
	
	

	Contingent Liabilities
	
	

	Legal proceedings and disputes
	46,602
	47,690

	
	46,602
	47,690


Note
These estimates are based on a separate assessment of all Victoria Police files by our legal advisors.
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Note 18. Financial Instruments
(A) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
Victoria Police’s principal financial instruments comprise: cash assets; receivables (excluding statutory receivables); payables (excluding statutory payables); and finance lease payables. Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition,
the basis of measurement, and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, with respect to each class of financial asset and financial liability are disclosed in Note 1 to the financial statements.
The main purpose in holding financial instruments is to prudentially manage Victoria Police’s financial risks within the government policy parameters.



Victoria Police’s main financial risks include credit risk, liquidity risk, and interest rate risk. Victoria Police manages these financial risks in accordance with the Financial Management Act 1994, and the whole of government Standing Directions including the Financial Management Compliance Framework.
Victoria Police uses different methods to measure and manage the different risks to which it is exposed. Primary responsibility for the identification and management of financial risks rests with the
Chief Finance Officer.
The carrying amounts of Victoria Police’s contractual financial assets and financial liabilities by category are disclosed in Table 18.1 below.


Table 18.1 Categorisation of Financial Instruments

	
	2012
	2011

	
	$’000
	$’000

	Contractual Financial Assets – Loans and Receivables
	
	

	Cash and deposits
	32,491
	37,591

	Receivables
	(i)
	

	Sale of goods and services
	3,096
	4,709

	Other receivables
	890
	775

	Total contractual financial assets
	36,477
	43,075

	Contractual Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost
	
	

	Payables
	(i)
	

	Supplies and services
	33,849
	49,852

	Amounts payable to government and agencies
	8,030
	5,464

	Other payables
	389
	256

	Borrowings
	
	

	Lease liabilities
	63,582
	58,726

	Total contractual financial liabilities
	105,850
	114,298


Note
(i) The total amounts disclosed here exclude statutory amounts i.e. amounts owing from Department of Justice and GST input tax credit recoverable, and taxes payable. 

(B) CREDIT RISK
Credit risk arises from the contractual financial assets of Victoria Police which comprise cash and cash deposits, and non-statutory receivables.
Victoria Police’s exposure to credit risk arises from the potential default of counter party on their contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to Victoria Police. Credit risk is measured at fair value and is monitored on a regular basis.



Credit risk associated with Victoria Police’s contractual financial assets is minimal because the main debtor is the Victorian Government. For debtors other than the Government, it is Victoria Police’s policy to only deal with entities with high credit ratings of a minimum Triple-B rating and to obtain sufficient collateral or credit enhancements where appropriate.
In addition, Victoria Police does not engage in hedging for its contractual financial assets
and mainly obtains contractual financial assets that are on fixed interest, except for cash assets, which are mainly cash at bank.
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Provision of impairment for contractual financial assets is recognised when there is objective evidence that Victoria Police will not be able to collect a receivable. Objective evidence includes financial difficulties of the debtor, default payments, debts which are more than 60 days overdue, and changes in debtor credit ratings.



Except as otherwise detailed in the following table, the carrying amount of contractual financial assets recorded in the financial statements, net of any allowances for losses, represents Victoria Police’s maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of the value of any collateral obtained.


Table 18.2 Credit Quality of Contractual Financial Assets that are neither Past Due not Impaired

	
	Financial Institutions
	Government Agencies
	Total

	
	Double-A Credit Rating
	Triple-A Credit Rating
	$’000

	
	$’000
	$’000
	

	2012
	
	
	

	Cash and deposits
	(69)
	32,560
	32,491

	
	(69)
	32,560
	32,491

	2011
	
	
	

	Cash and deposits
	307
	37,284
	37,591

	
	307
	37,284
	37,591



Table 18.3 Ageing Analysis of Contractual Financial Assets

Past Due but not Impaired

	
	
	Carrying
	Not Past
	Less than 1
	1 – 3
	3 Months
	1 – 5

	
	
	Amount
	Due and Not
	Month
	Months
	– 1 Year
	Years

	
	
	$’000
	Impaired
	$’000
	$’000
	$’000
	$’000

	
	
	
	$’000
	
	
	
	

	2012
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Receivables
	(i)
	3,986
	3,206
	424
	95
	221
	40

	(contractual)
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	3,986
	3,206
	424
	95
	221
	40

	2011
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Receivables
	(i)
	5,484
	2,717
	203
	2,326
	207
	31

	(contractual)
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	5,484
	2,717
	203
	2,326
	207
	31



Note
(i) The total amounts disclosed here exclude statutory amounts i.e. amounts owing from Department of Justice and GST input tax credit recoverable. 

Contractual Financial Assets that are either Past Due or Impaired
There are no material financial assets which are individually determined to be impaired. Currently Victoria Police does not hold any collateral as security nor credit enhancements relating to any of its financial assets.



There are no financial assets that have had their terms renegotiated so as to prevent then from being past due or impaired, and they are stated at the carrying amounts as indicated. The aging analysis table above discloses the aging only of contractual financial assets that are past due but not impaired.
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(C) LIQUIDITY RISK
Liquidity risk is the risk that Victoria Police would be unable to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due. Victoria Police operates under the Government fair payments policy of settling financial obligations within 30 days and in the event of a dispute, making payments within 30 days from the date of resolution.
Victoria Police’s maximum exposure to liquidity risk is the carrying amounts of financial liabilities as disclosed in the face of the balance sheet. Liquidity risk is managed by careful maturity planning of financial obligations based on forecasts of future cash flows.



Victoria Police’s exposure to liquidity risk is deemed insignificant based on prior periods’ data and current assessment of risk. The carrying amount detailed in the following table of contractual financial liabilities represents Victoria Police’s maximum exposure to liquidity risk.
The following table discloses the contractual maturity analysis for Victoria Police’s contractual financial liabilities.


Table 18.4 Maturity Analysis of Contractual Financial Liabilities (ii)

Maturity dates

	
	
	Carrying
	Nominal
	Less than
	1–3
	3 Months
	1–5

	
	
	Amount
	Amount
	1 Month
	Months
	–1 Year
	Years

	
	
	$’000
	$’000
	$’000
	$’000
	$’000
	$’000

	2012
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Payables
	(i)
	42,269
	42,269
	42,269
	
	
	

	Borrowings
	(i)
	63,582
	63,582
	12,451
	4,978
	24,208
	21,945

	
	
	105,851
	105,851
	54,720
	4,978
	24,208
	21,945

	2011
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Payables
	(i)
	55,572
	55,572
	55,572
	
	
	

	Borrowings
	(i)
	58,726
	58,726
	13,020
	6,094
	26,300
	13,312

	
	
	114,299
	114,299
	68,592
	6,094
	26,300
	13,312



Notes
(e) The carrying amounts disclosed exclude statutory amounts (eg GST payable). 

(f) Maturity analysis is presented using the contractual undiscounted cash flows. 
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(D) MARKET RISK
Victoria Police’s exposure to market risk is primarily through interest rate risk which is insignificant and may arise through the interest bearing liabilities.
These liabilities relate to the whole of government VicFleet motor vehicle leasing arrangement. As the interest rates applied to the vehicle leases are not



variable or floating in nature, the vehicle leases are not subject to a sensitivity analysis. The adjustment to the interest rate that is made upon the settlement of the VicFleet leases is regarded as a recovery by the lessor of their borrowing costs. Hence the underlying interest rates in these leases are based on fixed interest rate exposure.


Table 18.5 Interest Rate Exposure of Financial Instruments

Interest rate exposure

	
	Weighted
	Carrying
	Fixed
	Variable
	Non-interest

	
	Average
	Amount
	Interest
	Interest
	Bearing

	
	Effective
	$’000
	Rate
	Rate
	$’000

	
	Interest Rate %
	
	$’000
	$’000
	

	2012
	
	
	
	
	

	Financial Assets
	
	
	
	
	

	Cash and cash equivalents
	4.49%
	32,491
	1,990
	
	30,501

	Receivables
	
	3,986
	7
	
	3,979

	Total financial assets
	
	36,477
	1,997
	–
	34,480

	Financial Liabilities
	
	
	
	
	

	Payables
	
	42,269
	
	
	42,269

	Borrowings
	6.40%
	63,582
	63,582
	
	

	Total financial liabilities
	
	105,851
	63,582
	–
	42,269

	2011
	
	
	
	
	

	Financial Assets
	
	
	
	
	

	Cash and cash equivalents
	4.74%
	37,591
	1,920
	
	35,671

	Receivables
	
	5,536
	4
	
	5,532

	Total financial assets
	
	43,127
	1,924
	–
	41,203

	Payables
	
	45,708
	
	
	45,708

	Borrowings
	6.48%
	60,948
	60,948
	
	

	Total financial liabilities
	
	106,656
	60,948
	–
	45,708



Notes
(a) Fair value 

The fair values and net fair values of financial instrument assets and liabilities are determined as follows: 
Level 1 – the fair value of financial instruments with standard terms and conditions and traded in active liquid markets are determined with reference to quoted market prices. 
Level 2 – the fair value is determined using inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the financial asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and 
Level 3 – the fair value is determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis using observable market inputs. 
Victoria Police only holds Level 1 financial instruments. We consider that the carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the financial report to be a fair approximation of their fair values, because of the short-term nature of the financial instruments and the expectation that they will be paid in full. 


129
07  Financial Statements



Victoria Police Annual Report 2011–12
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 30 JUNE 2012
Note 19. Cash Flow Information

	
	2012
	2011

	
	$’000
	$’000

	
	
	

	(a) Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents
	
	

	For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash includes cash on
	
	

	hand and in banks and investments in money market instruments,
	
	

	net of outstanding bank overdrafts. Cash at the end of the financial
	
	

	year as shown in the cash flow statement is reconciled to the related
	
	

	items in the balance sheet as follows:
	
	

	Total cash and deposits disclosed in the balance sheet
	285
	367

	Funds held in trust
	32,206
	37,224

	
	32,491
	37,591


Due to the State of Victoria’s investment policy
and government funding arrangements, government entities including Victoria Police generally do not hold a large cash reserve in their bank accounts. Cash received from the generation of revenue is generally paid into the State’s bank account, known as the Public Account. Similarly, any expenditure, including those in the form of cheques drawn by Victoria Police for the payment of goods and services to its suppliers and creditors are made via the Public Account. The process is such that the Public Account would remit cash required for the amount drawn on the cheques. This remittance by the Public Account occurs upon the presentation of the cheques by Victoria Police’s suppliers or creditors.
The above funding arrangements often result in Victoria Police having a notional shortfall in the cash at bank required for payment of unpresented cheques at the reporting date.



FUNDS HELD IN TRUST
These are monies provided by outside organisations for special purpose projects related to the normal operating activities of Victoria Police. The funds can only be used for those purposes and each trust fund has a nominated trustee. The funds are held in a departmental suspense account at the Department of Treasury and Finance on behalf of Victoria Police.
SHORT TERM DEPOSITS
The deposits held during the year were bearing floating interest rates of 4.39 per cent
(2011: 4.53 per cent).


(b) Restrictions on the Use of Cash

Funds held in trust are quarantined for use specifically for the purpose under which each trust has been established and not for operating purposes.
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	2012
	2011

	
	$’000
	$’000

	
	
	

	(c) Reconciliation of Net Result for the Period to Net Cash Flows
	
	

	from Operating Activities
	
	

	Net result
	(36,286)
	13,364

	Non-cash Movements
	
	

	(Gain)/loss on sale or disposal of non-current assets
	(6,786)
	(3,648)

	Depreciation and amortisation of non-current assets
	67,816
	62,774

	Plant and equipment received free of charge or nominal consideration
	179
	145

	Plant and equipment provided free of charge or for nominal consideration
	(40)
	(24)

	Movements in Assets and Liabilities
	
	

	(Increase)/Decrease in Assets
	
	

	(Increase)/decrease in receivables
	16,134
	(22,469)

	(Increase)/decrease in other non-financial assets
	6,094
	(12,145)

	(Increase)/decrease in inventories
	(1,352)
	300

	Increase/(Decrease) in Liabilities
	
	

	Increase (decrease) in payables
	(12,102)
	20,665

	Increase/(decrease) in provisions
	25,220
	(34,496)

	Net cash flows from operating activities
	58,877
	24,466
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Note 20. Physical Asset Revaluation Surplus

	
	2012
	2011

	
	$’000
	$’000

	
	
	

	Land Revaluation Surplus
	
	

	Balance at beginning of financial year
	290,381
	143,630

	Revaluation increments/(decrements)
	–
	146,751

	Balance at end of financial year
	290,381
	290,381

	Buildings Revaluation Surplus
	
	

	Balance at beginning of financial year
	276,084
	114,362

	Revaluation increments/(decrements)
	–
	161,722

	Balance at end of financial year
	276,084
	276,084

	Cultural and Heritage Assets Revaluation Surplus
	
	

	Balance at beginning of financial year
	4,026
	2,923

	Revaluation increments/(decrements)
	–
	1,103

	Balance at end of financial year
	4,026
	4,026

	Total physical asset revaluation surplus
	570,491
	570,491




132
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 30 JUNE 2012
Note 21. Administered Items
In addition to the specific departmental operations which are included in the balance sheet, comprehensive operating statement and cash flow statement, Victoria Police administers or manages activities on behalf of the State. The transactions relating to these State activities are reported as administered items in this note. Administered transactions give rise to income,



expenses, assets and liabilities and are determined on an accrual basis. Administered revenues include taxes, fees and fines and the proceeds from the sale of administered surplus land and buildings. Administered assets include government incomes earned but yet to be collected. Administered liabilities include government expenses incurred but yet to be paid.


	
	
	Total

	
	
	

	
	2012
	2011

	
	$’000
	$’000

	Administered Income
	
	

	Regulatory fees and fines
	26,218
	23,800

	Sale of government property
	13,081
	15,229

	Seized and unclaimed monies
	13,254
	6,102

	Other agency contributions
	4,690
	4,873

	Other
	207
	256

	Total income
	57,451
	50,260

	Administered Expenses
	
	

	Payments into the consolidated fund
	44,585
	35,740

	Repayment of seized and unclaimed monies
	10,249
	7,735

	Other agency expenses
	4,211
	5,084

	Other
	572
	483

	Total expenses
	59,616
	49,042

	Income less expenses
	(2,165)
	1,218

	Administered Assets
	
	

	Cash held at Treasury
	3,215
	3,036

	Receivables
	4,317
	9,736

	Non-current assets
	25
	29

	Total assets
	7,557
	12,801

	Administered Liabilities
	
	

	Trade creditors and accruals
	3,430
	4,220

	Other liabilities – trusts
	6,293
	7,362

	Total liabilities
	9,723
	11,583

	Net assets
	(2,165)
	1,218
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Note 22. Annotated Income Agreements
The following is a listing of Section 29 annotated income agreements approved by the Treasurer.

	
	2012
	2011

	
	$’000
	$’000

	
	
	

	User Charges, or Sales of Goods and Services
	
	

	Information services
	6,922
	5,566

	Security escort services
	147
	193

	Event management
	3,871
	4,325

	Training services
	84
	98

	Proceeds from Asset Sales
	
	

	Motor vehicles
	233
	128

	Land and buildings
	1,535
	8,154

	Plant and equipment
	115
	74

	
	12,907
	18,538
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Note 23. Trust Account Balances
(A) TRUST ACCOUNT BALANCES RELATING TO TRUST ACCOUNTS CONTROLLED AND/OR ADMINISTERED BY VICTORIA POLICE

Cash and Cash Equivalents

	
	2012
	2011

	
	$’000
	$’000

	Controlled Trusts
	
	

	Departmental Suspense Account
	29,258
	34,472

	FBT Trust Account
	991
	805

	Traffic Accident Info System Trust Account
	2,004
	1,954

	Total controlled trusts
	32,253
	37,230

	Administered Trusts
	
	

	Departmental Suspense Account
	17,509
	14,551

	Treasury Trust Fund
	738
	1,087

	Public Service Commuter Club
	(137)
	(147)

	Police Youth Fund
	617
	820

	Total administered trusts
	18,727
	16,311


Victoria Police’s portion of the Public Service Commuter Club Trust is temporarily in deficit due to the timing difference between the purchase of travel tickets and reimbursement from employees. The trust’s working capital is funded by Department of Treasury and Finance. The overall Public Service Commuter Club Trust is in surplus.
(B) TRUST ACCOUNTS OPENED AND CLOSED DURING 2012
No trust accounts were opened or closed during the reporting period.



(C) THIRD PARTY FUNDS UNDER MANAGEMENT
The third party funds under management are funds held in trust for certain clients. They are not used for government purposes and therefore are not included in Victoria Police’s financial statements. Victoria Police maintains one such trust: Australia and
New Zealand Policing Advisory Agency.

	
	2012
	2011

	
	$’000
	$’000

	
	
	

	Australia and New
	1,759
	2,232

	Zealand Policing
	
	

	Advisory Agency
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Note 24. Responsible Persons
In accordance with the Ministerial Directions of the Minister for Finance under the Financial
Management Act 1994, the following disclosures are made regarding responsible persons for the reporting period.



Names
The persons who held the positions of Ministers and Accountable Officers in Victoria Police are as follows:


Responsible Minister

Minister for Police and Emergency Services
1 July 2011 to 30 June 2012
The Hon Peter Ryan MP

Acting Minister for Police and Emergency Services
15 July 2011 to 31 July 2011 (17 days)
The Hon Andrew McIntosh MP

Acting Minister for Police and Emergency Services
16 January 2012 to 29 January 2012 (14 days)
The Hon Robert Clark MP


Acting Minister for Police and Emergency Services The Hon Andrew McIntosh MP



15 May 2012 to 21 May 2012 (7 days )


Accountable Officers

Chief Commissioner of Police
1 July 2011 (1 day)
Simon Overland

Acting Chief Commissioner of Police
1 July 2011 to 13 November 2011 (135 days)
Ken Lay

Chief Commissioner of Police
14 November 2011 to 30 June 2012
Ken Lay

Acting Chief Commissioner of Police
9 January 2012 to 28 January 2012 (19 days)
Kieran Walshe


Remuneration
Total remuneration including bonus payments, long service leave payments, redundancy payments and retirement benefits received or receivable by the Accountable Officer(s) in connection with the management of Victoria Police during the reporting period was in the range $480,000 – $489,999 (2011: $400,000 – $409,999)
Amounts relating to the Minister are reported in the financial statements of the Department of Premier and Cabinet.



Related party transactions
Other related transactions and loans requiring disclosure under the Directions of the Minister for Finance have been considered and there are no other matters to report.
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Note 25. Remuneration of Executives
The numbers of executive officers, other than the Minister and the Accountable Officers, and their total remuneration during the reporting period are shown in the first two columns in the table below in their relevant income bands. The base remuneration of executive officers is shown in the third and fourth columns. Base remuneration is exclusive of bonus payments, long service leave payments, redundancy payments and retirement benefits.



The total remuneration paid to executives during the reporting period decreased from the previous financial year. The departure of six executives this year along with a number of positions remaining vacant from the previous financial year, or part of this year, has influenced the total remuneration payable to Victoria Police executives.
There were key appointments to a number of executive positions including the appointment of a fourth Deputy Commissioner for six months of the year.


	
	Total Remuneration
	Base Remuneration

	
	
	
	
	

	Income Band
	2012
	2011
	2012
	2011

	
	No.
	No.
	No.
	No.

	$100,000 – $109,999
	1
	–
	1
	–

	$110,000 – $119,999
	–
	1
	–
	1

	$120,000 – $129,999
	–
	–
	–
	–

	$130,000 – $139,999
	1
	–
	1
	–

	$140,000 – $149,999
	1
	4
	2
	5

	$150,000 – $159,999
	1
	1
	2
	1

	$160,000 – $169,999
	1
	1
	1
	2

	$170,000 – $179,999
	2
	2
	1
	1

	$180,000 – $189,999
	1
	1
	2
	2

	$190,000 – $199,999
	5
	7
	6
	6

	$200,000 – $209,999
	3
	3
	2
	2

	$210,000 – $219,999
	1
	1
	–
	1

	$220,000 – $229,999
	1
	–
	2
	1

	$230,000 – $239,999
	1
	–
	–
	1

	$240,000 – $249,999
	–
	1
	1
	–

	$250,000 - $259,999
	3
	3
	4
	3

	$260,000 - $269,999
	3
	1
	1
	–

	$270,000 - $279,999
	2
	2
	1
	4

	$280,000 – $289,999
	1
	2
	1
	–

	$290,000 – $299,999
	–
	1
	–
	1

	$310,000 – $319,999
	1
	1
	1
	1

	Total number of executives
	29
	32
	29
	32

	Total annualised employee equivalent
	28.55
	31.80
	28.55
	31.36

	Total
	$6,230,703
	$6,759,810
	$5,986,614
	$6,605,548
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Note 26. Remuneration of Auditors

	
	2012
	2011

	
	$’000
	$’000

	
	
	

	Audit fees paid or payable to Victorian
	365
	361

	Auditor-General’s Office for audit of
	
	

	Victoria Police’s financial report
	
	

	
	365
	361


Note
The Victorian Auditor-General’s Office has not provided Victoria Police any other services.
Note 27. Subsequent Events
The Victorian Public Service Workplace Determination 2012 was made by Fair Work Australia on 23 July 2012, which replaces the 2009 Extended and Varied Version of the Victorian Public Service Agreement 2006. The Workplace Determination takes effect from 29 July 2012 and will remain in force until
31 December 2015. The Workplace Determination provides for wage increases of 3.25 per cent and 1.25 per cent on 1 July 2012 and 1 January 2013 respectively over 2012–13, with six monthly wage increases thereafter. A lump sum payment of



$1,500 (or equivalent pro-rata amount for part time employees) will also be payable to eligible Victorian Public Service employees who received a salary
on 1 July 2012 and were employed on 29 July 2012.
As the Workplace Determination takes effect from 29 July 2012, no adjustments have been made to these financial statements other than for the impact on the estimated accrued employee benefits as at 30 June 2012.
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Note 28. Glossary of Terms
AMORTISATION
Amortisation is the expense which results from the consumption, extraction or use over time of a non-produced physical or intangible asset. This expense is classified as an expense other economic flow.
CAPITAL ASSET CHARGE
The capital asset charge represents the opportunity cost of capital invested in the non-current physical assets used in the provision of outputs.
COMPREHENSIVE RESULT
Total comprehensive result is the change in equity for the period other than changes arising from transactions with owners. It is the aggregate of net result and other non-owner changes in equity.
COMMITMENTS
Commitments include those operating, capital and other outsourcing commitments arising from non-cancellable contractual or statutory sources.
DEPRECIATION
Depreciation is an expense that arises from the consumption through wear or time of a produced physical or intangible asset. This expense is classified as a ‘transaction’ and so reduces the ‘net result from transactions’.
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES
Employee benefits expenses include all costs related to employment including wages and salaries, leave entitlements, redundancy payments, defined benefits superannuation plans, and defined contribution superannuation plans.



FINANCIAL ASSET
A financial asset is any asset that is:
· cash; 

· a contractual or statutory right: 

(i) to receive cash or another financial asset from another entity; or 
(ii) to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially favourable to the entity. 
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial assets or liabilities that are not contractual (such as statutory receivables or payables that arise as a result of statutory requirements imposed by governments) are not financial instruments.
FINANCIAL LIABILITY
A financial liability is any liability that is:
(a) A contractual or statutory obligation:
(b) To deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or 

(c) To exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the entity; or 

(i) A contract that will or may be settled in the entity’s own equity instruments and is: 

A non-derivative for which the entity is or may be obliged to deliver a variable number of the entity’s own equity instruments; or 

A derivative that will or may be settled other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of the entity’s own equity instruments. For this purpose the entity’s own equity instruments do not include instruments that are themselves contracts for the future receipt or delivery of the entity’s own equity instruments. 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Depending on the context of the sentence where the term ‘financial statements’ is used, it may include only the main financial statements
(i.e. comprehensive operating statement, balance sheet, cash flow statements, and statement of changes in equity); or it may also be used to replace the old term ‘financial report’ under the revised AASB 101 (September 2007), which means it may include the main financial statements and the notes.
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GRANTS AND OTHER TRANSFERS
Transactions in which one unit provides goods, services, assets (or extinguishes a liability) or labour to another unit without receiving approximately equal value in return. Grants can either be operating or capital in nature. While grants to governments may result in the provision of some goods or services to the transferor, they do not give the transferor a claim to receive directly benefits of approximately equal value. For this reason, grants are referred to by the AASB as involuntary transfers and are termed non-reciprocal transfers. Receipt and sacrifice of approximately equal value may occur, but only by coincidence. For example, governments are not obliged to provide commensurate benefits, in the form of goods or services, to particular taxpayers
in return for their taxes.
Grants can be paid as general purpose grants which refer to grants that are not subject to conditions regarding their use. Alternatively, they may be
paid as specific purpose grants which are paid for a particular purpose and/or have conditions attached regarding their use.
INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Intangible assets represent identifiable non-monetary assets without physical substance.
INTEREST EXPENSE
Costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds Interest expenses include interest on bank overdrafts and short-term and long-term borrowings, amortisation of discounts or premiums relating to borrowings, interest component of finance leases repayments, and the increase in financial liabilities and non-employee provisions due to the unwinding of discounts to reflect the passage of time.
INTEREST INCOME
Interest income includes unwinding over time of discounts on financial assets and interest received on bank term deposits and other investments.
NET ACQUISITION OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS (FROM TRANSACTIONS)
Purchases (and other acquisitions) of non-financial assets less sales (or disposals) of non-financial assets less depreciation plus changes in inventories and other movements in non-financial assets.
It includes only those increases or decreases in non-financial assets resulting from transactions and therefore excludes write-offs, impairment write-downs and revaluations.



NET RESULT
Net result is a measure of financial performance of the operations for the period. It is the net result of items of income, gains and expenses (including losses) recognised for the period, excluding those that are classified as other non-owner changes in equity.
NET RESULT FROM TRANSACTIONS/
NET OPERATING BALANCE
Net result from transactions or net operating balance is a key fiscal aggregate and is income from transactions minus expenses from transactions. It is a summary measure of the ongoing sustainability of operations. It excludes gains and losses resulting from changes in price levels and other changes in the volume of assets. It is the component of the change in net worth that is due to transactions and can be attributed directly to government policies.
NET WORTH
Assets less liabilities, which is an economic measure of wealth.
NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
Non-financial assets are all assets that are not ‘financial assets’.
OTHER ECONOMIC FLOWS
Other economic flows are changes in the volume or value of an asset or liability that do not result from transactions. It includes gains and losses from disposals, revaluations and impairments of non-current physical and intangible assets, actuarial gains and losses arising from defined benefit superannuation plans, fair value changes of financial instruments and agricultural assets; and depletion of natural assets (non-produced) from their use or removal. In simple terms, other economic flows are changes arising from market re-measurements.
PAYABLES
Includes short and long term trade debt and accounts payable, grants, taxes and interest payable.
RECEIVABLES
Includes amounts owing from government through appropriation receivable, short and long term trade credit and accounts receivable, accrued investment income, grants, taxes and interest receivable.
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SALES OF GOODS AND SERVICES
Refers to income from the direct provision of goods and services and includes fees and charges for services rendered, sales of goods and services, fees from regulatory services and work done as an agent for private enterprises. It also includes rental income under operating leases and on produced assets such as buildings and entertainment, but excludes rent income from the use of non-produced assets such as land. User charges includes sale of goods and services income.
SUPPLIES AND SERVICES
Supplies and services generally represent cost of goods sold and the day-to-day running costs, including maintenance costs, incurred in the normal operations of Victoria Police.
TRANSACTIONS
Transactions are those economic flows that are considered to arise as a result of policy decisions, usually an interaction between two entities by mutual agreement. They also include flows within an entity such as depreciation where the owner is simultaneously acting as the owner of the depreciating asset and as the consumer of the service provided by the asset. Taxation is regarded as mutually agreed interactions between the government and taxpayers. Transactions can be in kind (e.g. assets provided/given free of charge or for nominal consideration) or where the final
consideration is cash. In simple terms, transactions arise from the policy decisions of the government.
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Acronym Glossary
AC
Assistant Commissioner
AGLO
Agricultural Liaison Officer
AIM
Advancing Investigation Management
ANPR
Automated Number Plate Recognition
APM
Australian Police Medal
CAD
Computer Aided Dispatch
CCP
Chief Commissioner of Police
CAPs
Continuous Auditing Programs
CED
Conducted Energy Device (Taser)
CEST
Community Engagement Support Team
CIG
Crime Intelligence Group
CIU
Criminal Investigation Unit
CLEDS
Commissioner for Law Enforcement
Data Security
CoPIFV
Code of Practice for the Investigation
of Family Violence
CPSU
Community and Public Sector Union
DC
Deputy Commissioner
DIU
Divisional Intelligence Unit
DOJ
Department of Justice
DTWP
Designated Training Workplace Program
EBA
Enterprise Bargaining Agreement
EO
Executive Officer
EHPR
Ethical Health Process Review
ESD
Ethical Standards Department
ESTA
Emergency Services
Telecommunications Authority
FMA
Financial Management Act 1994
FOI
Freedom of Information



FRD
Financial Reporting Direction
FTE
Full-Time Equivalent
FVI
Family Violence Incident
GLBTI
Gay Lesbian Bisexual Transgender
and Intersex
HSR
Health and Safety Representative
ICET
Internet Child Exploitation Team
ICCS
Incident Command and Control System
IMISC
Information Management and Information
Security Committee
IOEV
Integrated Operational Equipment Vest
IPRM
Integrated Planning and Risk Management
ISEC
Integrated State-wide Emergency
Communications
JCTT
Joint Counter Terrorism Team
JOCTF
Joint Organised Crime Taskforce
LEAP
Law Enforcement Assistance Program
MCC
Melbourne Custody Centre
MCIG
Major Collision Investigation Group
MDC
Multi-Disciplinary Centre
NCP
National Competition Policy
NOCTF
National Organised Crime Taskforce
OHS
Occupational Health and Safety
OMCG
Outlaw MotorCycle Gangs
OPI
Office of Police Integrity
ORU
Operations Response Unit
OTST
Operational Tactics and Safety Training
PACT
Police and Community Triage
PACER
Police, Ambulance and Crisis Assessment
Team Early Response
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PAEC
Public Accounts and Estimates Committee
PIPP
Policing Information Process and Practice
PIU
Prisons Intelligence Unit
POFT
Preliminary Oral Fluid Test (Drugs)
PORT
Public Order Response Team
PRIMeD
Police Responses to the Interface with Mental Disorder
PSA
Police Service Area
PSO
Protective Services Officer
RAW
Resilience At Work Program
RBT
Random Breath Test
SAFER
Safety and Accountability in Families:
Evidence and Research
SAP
Semi-Automatic Pistol
SCoP
Specialists Community of Practice
SOCIT
Sexual Offences and Child Abuse
Investigation Team
SOR
Sex Offender Registry
TIOs
Tactical Intelligence Operatives
TPA
The Police Association
VAGO
Victorian Auditor-Generals Office
VIPP
Victorian Industry Participation Policy
VPARC
Victoria Police Audit and Risk Committee
VPE
Victoria Police Executive
VPLG
Victoria Police Leadership Group
VPLH
Victoria Police Learning Hub
VPLMP
Victoria Police Leadership
Mentoring Program
VPS
Victorian Public Service
YRO
Youth Resource Officer
YSS
Youth Support Service
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Statement of Availability of other information (FRD22C)
Additional information about Victoria Police may be obtained from our website www.police.vic.gov.au

FRD22C of the Financial Management Act
1994 requires that certain categories of information not contained in the Annual Report be available on request.
The required additional information will be made available on the Victoria Police website by the end of the month in which this annual report is published.
	VETRO _ POL2456


CONTACT DETAILS
––
Head Office Departments:
The following departments are located at:
Victoria Police Centre
637 Flinders Street (GPO Box 913) Melbourne Victoria 3001 Telephone 03 9247 6666
––
Business Services Department
Corporate Strategy and Governance Department
Ethical Standards Department
Human Resources Department
Infrastructure and IT Department Intelligence and Covert Support Department Legal Services Department
Licensing and Regulation Division
Media and Corporate Communications Department
Office of the Chief Commissioner of Police
Operations Support Department Service Reform Group
State Emergencies and Security Department
State Policing Office
––
People Development:
Victoria Police Academy View Mount Road
Glen Waverley Victoria 3150 Telephone 03 9566 9566
––
Crime Department,
Intelligence and Covert Support Department:
412 St Kilda Road Melbourne Victoria 3004 Telephone 03 9865 2111
––
Victoria Police Forensic Science Centre:
Forensic Drive
Macleod Victoria 3085
Telephone 03 9450 3444

REGIONAL HEADQUARTERS
––
Eastern Region:
420 Burwood Hwy
Wantirna South Victoria 3152 Telephone 03 9837 7800
––
North-West Metropolitan Region:
15 Dimboola Road Broadmeadows 3047 Telephone 03 9302 8268
––
Southern Metropolitan Region:
50 Langhorne Street Dandenong 3175 Telephone 03 9767 7621
––
Western Region:
38 Little Malop Street
Geelong 3220
Telephone 5223 7801
The locations and contact details for each police station in Victoria are available from the Victoria Police website: www.police.vic.gov.au

